Public Document Pack

[ el | CITY OF
4o Lincoln
\\ |/  COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Committee Rooms 1-2, City

Wednesday, 23 March 2022 5.30 pm Hall

Membership: Councillors Naomi Tweddle (Chair), Bob Bushell (Vice-Chair),
Biff Bean, Chris Burke, Liz Bushell, Gary Hewson,
Rebecca Longbottom, Bill Mara, Mark Storer, Edmund Strengiel
and Calum Watt

Substitute members: Councillors Bill Bilton and Neil Murray

Officers attending: Simon Cousins, Democratic Services, Kieron Manning, Dave
Walker and Louise Simpson

The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda.
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant
information.

Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved,
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as
part of the process.

Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the
table at the relevant time.

AGENDA
SECTION A Page(s)
1. Confirmation of Minutes
(@) 12 January 2022 5-52
(b) 26 January 2022 53 - 60

(c) 23 February 2022 61-70



Declarations of Interest

Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct,
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary.

Update Sheet To Be
Tabled
Work to Trees in City Council Ownership 71-76

Applications for Development

(@ 10-11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln 77 - 136
(b) Former William Sinclair Holdings Site, Firth Road, Lincoln 137 - 226
(c) Land at Derwent Street, Lincoln 227 - 244
(d) 5 Christs Hospital Terrace, Lincoln 245 - 260
(e) 5 Christs Hospital Terrace, Lincoln (LBC) 261 - 264
() Hartsholme Country Park Dam Wall , Hartsholme Park, Lincoln 265 - 284

(g) Blue Lagoon, Farrington Crescent, Lincoln 285 - 288



THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 (AS AMENDED)

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and
Advertisement Applications are:

1. The Planning Application File. This is a file with the same reference number as that
shown on the Agenda for the Application. Information from the planning application file
is available online at https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

The application files contain the following documents:

the application forms;

plans of the proposed development;

site plans;

certificate relating to ownership of the site;

consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies;
letters and documents from interested parties;

memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council.

@~ooo0oTw

2. Any previous Planning Applications referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for the
particular application or in the Planning Application specified above.

3. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan — Adopted April 2017

4. National Planning Policy Framework - March 2012

5. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 5
above set out in the following table. These documents may be inspected at the Planning
Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln.

APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 5 above.)

Application No.: Additional Background Papers


https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006)

Criteria:

e Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of
information.

e Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc.

e Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason
of economic or environmental impact.

e Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in
the area of a site.

e Significant proposals outside the urban area.
e Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development.

e Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control.

e Development which could create significant hazards or pollution.

So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears
essential.

A proforma is available for all Members. This will need to be completed to request a site visit
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site
visit. It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration
of a planning application at Committee. It should also be used to request further or additional
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.



Item No. 1a

Planning Committee 12 January 2022

Present: Councillor Bob Bushell (in the Chair),
Councillor Naomi Tweddle, Councillor Bill Bilton,
Councillor Alan Briggs, Councillor Chris Burke, Councillor
Sue Burke, Councillor Liz Bushell, Councillor
David Clarkson, Councillor Thomas Dyer, Councillor
Matthew Fido, Councillor Gary Hewson, Councillor
Andy Kerry, Councillor Jackie Kirk, Councillor
Rosanne Kirk, Councillor Jane Loffhagen, Councillor
Rebecca Longbottom, Councillor Helena Mair, Councillor
Bill Mara, Councillor Ric Metcalfe, Councillor
Lucinda Preston, Councillor Christopher Reid, Councillor
Clare Smalley, Councillor Hilton Spratt, Councillor
Mark Storer, Councillor Edmund Strengiel, Councillor
Pat Vaughan, Councillor Calum Watt and Councillor
Loraine Woolley

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor Adrianna McNulty,

Councillor Laura McWilliams, Councillor Neil Murray and
Councillor Donald Nannestad

57. Introduction/House Keeping Rules

Councillor Bob Bushell welcomed everyone present at tonight's meeting of the
City of Lincoln Council Planning Committee.

As Vice Chair of the Committee, he advised that it would be clear why he was
chairing the meeting when we came onto the declaration of interest section of the
agenda.

He introduced planning officers who would present the application and respond to
any questions or points of clarification. Also present were legal representatives
who were available to offer guidance to Committee members and officers who
would record the minutes of the meeting.

He highlighted that the meeting was being held at the Engine Shed tonight as this
venue enabled the Council to accommodate increased numbers of members of
the public with socially distanced seating arrangements. This was in accordance
with the Council’s current Covid-19 risk assessment. In relation to the risk-
assessment, it was requested that if possible, visitors wore a face covering when
moving around the building and when seated and not talking.

He advised that with regards to other health and safety announcements, in the
event of the fire alarm sounding, visitors should leave the building using the
nearest fire exit.

He requested that mobile phones be either turned off or put on silent mode.
He advised that all committee members had access to their own microphone.
They did not need to press any buttons on the microphone, as it would

automatically be made live when members began to speak.

He outlined the process for tonight's meeting as follows:
5



58.

1. Firstly, all Councillors would be asked to make any declarations of interest;
2. Secondly, the Planning officers would be invited to present the report;

3. Thirdly, objectors who had registered to do so would be invited to address
the Committee;

4. The fourth element invited any Ward Advocate who had registered to do
so to address the Committee;

5. The fifth part invited the Applicant to address the Committee;
These contributions would be for up to 5 minutes per speaker and would be timed
using a traffic light system which started when each speaker began, 4 minutes on
the green light, 1 minute on amber and contributions were expected to stop on
the red light.

At this stage of proceedings, he planned to hold a twenty minute comfort break
before reconvening.

6. The matter would then be opened for debate to the full Planning
Committee;

7. Finally, a vote would be taken.

Declarations of Interest

Councillor Naomi Tweddle declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest with regard
to the Western Growth Corridor planning application.

Reason. Her husband worked for the City of Lincoln Council.

She left the building for the remainder of the meeting and took no part in the
discussion and vote on the matter to be determined.

Councillor Gary Hewson declared a Personal Interest with regard to Western
Growth Corridor planning application.

Reason: He sat as a member of the Upper Witham Drainage Board.

He had duly considered whether this interest was a pecuniary interest under the
Member Code of Conduct. When taking into consideration the reasonable
member of the public test, as outlined in the Code of Conduct, and the
assessment of how much this application would affect the Drainage Board, he did
not consider that his interest was a pecuniary interest. He would therefore be
participating in the meeting as a member of the Committee.

Councillor Pat Vaughan declared a Personal Interest with regard to the Western
Growth Corridor planning application.

Reason: He sat as a member of the Upper Witham Drainage Board.

He had duly considered whether this interest was a pecuniary interest under the
Member Code of Conduct. When taking into consideration the reasonable

6



member of the public test, as outlined in the Code of Conduct, and the
assessment of how much this application would affect the Drainage Board, he did
not consider that his interest was a pecuniary interest. He would therefore be
participating in the meeting as a member of the Committee.

Councillor Rebecca Longbottom declared a Personal Interest with regard to the
Western Growth Corridor planning application.

Reason: She sat as a member of the Upper Witham Drainage Board.

She had duly considered whether this interest was a pecuniary interest under the
Member Code of Conduct. When taking into consideration the reasonable
member of the public test, as outlined in the Code of Conduct, and the
assessment of how much this application would affect the Drainage Board, she
did not consider that her interest was a pecuniary interest. She would therefore
be participating in the meeting as a member of the Committee.

Councillor Thomas Dyer declared a Personal Interest with regard to the Western
Growth Corridor planning application.

Reason: He sat as a member of Lincolnshire County Council.

He had duly considered whether this interest was a pecuniary interest under the
Member Code of Conduct. When taking into consideration the reasonable
member of the public test, as outlined in the Code of Conduct, and the
assessment of how much this application would affect the County Council, he did
not consider that his interest was a pecuniary interest. He would therefore be
participating in the meeting as a member of the Committee.

Councillor Edmund Strengiel declared a Personal Interest with regard to the
agenda item titled 'Western Growth Corridor, Skellingthorpe Road, Lincoln'.

Reason: He sat as a member of Lincolnshire County Council.

He had duly considered whether this interest was a pecuniary interest under the
Member Code of Conduct. When taking into consideration the reasonable
member of the public test, as outlined in the Code of Conduct, and the
assessment of how much this application would affect the County Council, he did
not consider that his interest was a pecuniary interest. He would therefore be
participating in the meeting as a member of the Committee.

Councillor Hilton Spratt declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda
item titled 'Western Growth Corridor, Skellingthorpe Road, Lincoln'.

Reason: He sat as a member of Lincolnshire County Council.

He had duly considered whether this interest was a pecuniary interest under the
Member Code of Conduct. When taking into consideration the reasonable
member of the public test, as outlined in the Code of Conduct, and the
assessment of how much this application would affect the County Council, he did
not consider that his interest was a pecuniary interest. He would therefore be
participating in the meeting as a member of the Committee.



59.

60.
61.

Update Sheet

An update sheet was tabled at the meeting, which included additional public
responses received within the allotted deadline in relation to the planning
application, and not included in the original agenda pack

RESOLVED that the Update Sheet be received by Planning Committee.

Application for Development
Western Growth Corridor, Skellingthorpe Road, Lincoln

Kieron Manning, Assistant Director of Planning, Simon Cousins, Planning Team
Leader, and Lana Meddings, Principal Planning Officer, assisted by Nicola
Collins, Senior Planning Enforcement Officer:

a. advised that outline planning permission was sought for the sustainable
urban extension (SUE) of Lincoln on the site of Western Growth Corridor,
with all matters reserved except for two points of access

b. highlighted that this was a joint planning application between the City of
Lincoln Council and Lindum Western Growth Community Ltd

c. reported that at this stage the applicants were seeking to approve the
principle of the following uses:

e Housing development of up to 3,200 dwellings;

e Local centre comprising community, retail (E, F.2 and Pub or
drinking establishment/Takeaway as Sui Generis uses),

e Employment (E) uses and parking;

e A primary school;

e Up to 8 hectares of land (including key infrastructure) for up to
40,000sg.m of E and B2 development;

e Up to 12 hectares of land (including key infrastructure) for sport,

recreation, and leisure (E and F.1 and F.2),

A hotel (C1) food and drink outlets (E and Sui Generis) and

A new community stadium for Lincoln City Football Club;

Areas of formal and informal public;

A network of public footpaths and cycleways associated

engineering works to inform development platform and drainage

system;

e New transport bridge link over to Beevor Street, and a

e New public footpath bridge over to Tritton Road.

d. added that full planning permission was sought for two new access points
to the site as follows:

e The Skellingthorpe Road access/egress and the initial access Spine
Road spur into the site.

e A new signal controlled junction at Tritton Road, including the
associated bridge over the railway line.

e. referred to a suite of documents accompanied by the application, all of
which were available online, including:

8



Plans for Information
lllustrative Masterplan

Design and Access Statement
Environmental Statement
Planning Statement

Drainage Strategy

Flood Risk Assessment
Transport Assessment
Framework Travel Plan
Design Code

Health Impact Assessment
Sustainable Energy Statement

f. advised that:

Under EIA Regulations, the Proposed Development did not fall
within the definition of a ‘Schedule 1 development’, however, it did
fall within Schedule 2, Part 10(a): Industrial Estate development
projects and Part 10(b) Urban development projects, including the
construction of shopping centres and car parks, sports stadiums,
leisure centres and multiplex cinemas.

For Schedule 2, Part 10a development, EIA was required where the
area of the development exceeded 0.5 hectares and the
development was likely to have significant effects on the
environment.

For Schedule 2, Part 10b development, EIA was required where (i)
the area of development exceeded 1.0 ha of urban development
which was not dwellinghouse development; or (ii) the development
included more than 150 dwellings; or (iii) the overall area of the
development exceeded 5 ha, and the development was likely to
have significant effects on the environment.

In the case of the proposed development all of these criteria applied
and, as such, an environmental statement had been submitted with
the planning application.

g. described the location of the Western Growth Corridor application site:

Extending to 238.5 hectares, located approximately 1.5km
southwest of Lincoln City Centre.

Bounded by the Skellingthorpe Main Drain and the Lincoln to
Gainsborough railway line to the north; the Lincoln to Nottingham
railway line and Tritton Road to the east, existing residential
development around Skellingthorpe Road and the Catchwater Drain
to the south and agricultural land to the west with Decoy Farm and
the A46 beyond.

h. reported on the current make-up of the site:

Currently in arable agricultural use divided into rectilinear fields by
existing hedgerows and drainage ditches.
There was an area of woodland within the site towards the
southwest, with a larger wooded area around the Skewbridge
landfill tip to the northeast (which also fell within the application
site).

9



i. reported on a variety of land uses surrounding the site:

To the northwest lay the former Skellingthorpe Duck Decoy (a
scheduled ancient monument) with further agricultural land and the
A46 dual carriageway beyond.

Land to the southwest was mostly in residential use, with several
groups of houses lying between the application site boundary and
Skellingthorpe Road — one of the main arterial routes into the city
from the A46.

The Skellingthorpe Recreation Ground lay to the south of the site,
with Hartsholme Park beyond to the southwest of Skellingthorpe
Road.

Further residential development including Swanpool Conservation
Area lay south of the site to the east of Stones Park, along with The
Priory City of Lincoln Academy.

Land beyond the railway lines to the east and northeast was in a
variety of retail, commercial and industrial uses, Lincoln City Centre
being some 1.4km from the north-eastern corner of the site.

Land to the east was mixed-use served off Tritton Road.

The area off Beevor Street to the north-east included commercial
and retail uses as well as the Lincoln Science and Innovation Park
and the main University building.

j. reported in detail on the planning policy for the site which had long been
promoted for the creation of an urban extension

k. detailed the site history of the application site which included:

An application submitted in 2006 for development of 4,400
dwellings plus employment, leisure and retail uses, open space and
a park and ride site on a larger area of land than now proposed,
extending further west, beyond the A46, which included land within
North Kesteven and the City of Lincoln. This application was
subsequently withdrawn.

A revised application for 5,100 dwellings submitted in March 2008
and subsequently withdrawn in February 2016.

I. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan 2017:

Policy LP10:
Policy LP11:
Policy LP13:
Policy LP14:
Policy LP17:
Policy LP20:
Policy LP21.:
Policy LP22:
Policy LP23:
Policy LP25:
Policy LP26:
Policy LP28:
Policy LP29:

Meeting Accommodation Needs

Affordable Housing

Accessibility and Transport

Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk
Landscape, Townscape and Views

Green Infrastructure Network

Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Green Wedges

Local Green Spaces and other Important Open Space
The Historic Environment

Design and Amenity

Sustainable Urban Extensions

Protecting Lincoln’s Setting and Character

10



e Policy LP30: Lincoln Sustainable Urban Extensions
e National Planning Policy Framework 2021
e National Planning Policy for Waste (2014)

. referred to pre application public consultation having taken place in 2017
and again in February 2019 between plan-makers, communities, local
organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and statutory
consultees; the applicants had proactively sought engagement of the local
community in the evolution of the development proposals giving people the
opportunity to obtain information, voice concerns and suggestions and
influence the shape of the proposed development prior to a planning
application being submitted.

. reported that amendments resulting from concerns raised in the 2017
consultation and further transport modelling related discussions included:

e Confirmation that the access from Hartsholme Drive would be a
cycle/pedestrian link only

e Proposed improvement of the Skellingthorpe Road/A46 roundabout

e Removal of a potential future additional access to/from the A46 in
between the Skellingthorpe Road and A57 roundabouts

. expanded in further detail on the Masterplan for the planning application as
outlined within the officer’s report, covering the following areas:

e The Masterplan
e Site Constraints
e Phasing and Delivery Strategy

. gave further detail on the full planning application including:

e The Skellingthorpe Road Access
e Tritton Road Access

. advised Planning Committee of the main issues to be considered as part
of the application as detailed in full within the officer’s report, to assess the
proposal with regards to:

Environmental Impact Assessment
Landscape and Visual Amenity

Ecology and Nature Conservation
Cultural Heritage including Archaeology
Ground Conditions including Land Contamination
Materials

Water Resources and Flood Risk
Transportation

Noise and Vibration

Air Quality

Socio-Economics

Housing Provision

Health

Education

Sport Provision

Design and Visual Anﬁnity



r. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise, which included
a petition submitted by local residents

s. referred to the Update sheet tabled at the meeting which contained public
responses received within the allotted deadline and not included in the
original agenda pack

t. referred also to several comments received after the deadline for
information to be included in the ‘Update Sheet’ 4.00 pm five clear working
days prior to the meeting; and the protocol agreed at Full Council on 16
December 2021, although it was noted that the points raised within these
additional comments had already been covered within existing objections
submitted

u. referred to a formal consultation response submitted by Lincolnshire
County Council as Highways Authority objecting to Phase 1A of the
proposed development on grounds of severe impact and lack of alternative
sustainable transport modes in accordance with NPPF, which lead to an
independent highway’s consultancy being employed which gave a third-
party opinion as detailed within the officer’s report

v. reported on the extensive issues raised by the public as appended to the
officer’s report which covered a range of topics, addressed throughout the
body of the officer’s report; a brief summary of the issues raised being as
follows:

Traffic congestion

Air pollution

Flooding

Change the character of the area

Noise levels

Impact on local wildlife and environment
Pressure on existing infrastructure

Noise and disturbance during construction
Large number of heavy construction vehicles
Access should come from Tritton Road first
Loss of agricultural land

Lack of GP services

Effect on trees

Lack of pedestrian and cycle ways

Lack of park and ride

Lack of low carbon sustainable design
Impact on Skellingthorpe Village

Phasing of the proposed accesses into the site
Bridge designs

Impact on house prices

Wrong location for a football stadium

Trees subject to tree preservation orders

w. referred also to letters received in support of the planning application in
relation to:

12



Delivery of sustainable growth and affordable homes in a sensible
location
New football stadium needed.

X. concluded in relation to the following relevant issues:

Design

The applicants had submitted a design code in support of the
planning application which was supported by the Local Planning
Authority. The aspirations for the overall design of the site were
sound and would be in keeping with the NPPF and its requirement
to create high quality sustainable places.

Transport

Two points of access into the site were applied for in detail, a signal
controlled junction at Skellingthorpe Road and a signalled junction
at Tritton Road with a bridge over the railway into the site. These
detailed elements had been assessed and were acceptable in
planning terms. The principle of developing the site as an Urban
Extension was supported by Lincolnshire County Council as the
Highway Authority at the Local Plan stage prior to allocation. The
principle continued to be supported by the Highway Authority. The
Highway Authority had objected to the proposed first phase of the
development, 300 dwellings off Skellingthorpe Road, due to the
impact on Highway Capacity on the local highway network.

Flooding

The LPA were satisfied that the applicants had worked closely with
the relevant authorities through Multi Agency Group meetings to
ensure that the concerns of statutory consultees and local residents
were satisfactorily addressed. A significant amount of technical work
had been carried out and the EA had confirmed that they were
comfortable with the proposed development. The LPA were given
confidence by this support that the development would have no
adverse impacts on existing residents and that technical matters
had either been dealt with or were capable of being dealt with by
condition.

Heritage

The applicants had sufficiently set out the heritage assets affected
by the proposed development. There were both above ground and
below ground assets which required consideration. In the case of
the above ground impact on listed buildings the applicants had
demonstrated that there would be a minor adverse impact. The
work carried out to date had confirmed that the archaeological
remains below this site were of equivalent significance to scheduled
monuments, as confirmed by Historic England. The development of
that part of the site would inevitably lead to the total loss of
significance of the heritage asset. Added to this was the harm to
designated heritage assets identified above (e.g., listed buildings,
Swanpool Conservation Area and scheduled duck decoy) The site
was allocated for development and would contribute to the overall
delivery of the SUE and the 3200 houses and associated
infrastructure. The delivery of the development would provide
substantial public benefits and, as a consequence, it was
considered that, with suitable analysis, investigation and recording,
the harm to heritage assets was outweighed and justified.

13



Nature/Ecology

Both the green infrastructure constraints and opportunities identified
in the Design and Access statement and the study of biodiversity in
the ES had identified the significance of these factors in the overall
design of development on the masterplan. The ‘green infrastructure’
plan set out the way in which development had been planned
around these constraints with opportunities being taken to enhance
linkages and public access. With particular regard to enhancement
of biodiversity, the opportunity was being taken to utilise the areas
being excavated for the purposes of development platforms (i.e.,
the areas in the northern part of the site) for ecological
enhancement given they could potentially be wet areas.

Air Quality

During the demolition and construction phase, the proposed
development had the potential to impact on the level of dust
deposition/soiling and short-term concentrations of particulate
matter at sensitive receptor locations near to the proposed
development site boundary. However, providing that best practice
particulate control measures were implemented throughout the
construction phase it was predicted that potential impacts should be
adequately controlled such that significant effects would not occur.
The overall effect of the proposed development on local air quality
was considered not to be significant and the development proposals
and mitigation measures would ensure the development accorded
with local and national planning policy.

Noise and Vibration

With the proposed mitigation in place, the external baseline noise
levels were anticipated to not exceed the guideline criteria.
Therefore, the effect of the baseline noise impacts was classified as
minor and not significant. The effect of the baseline vibration impact
on the proposed development was classified as minor and therefore
not significant. The effect due to the impact of construction noise
and vibration on the nearby residential properties would be minor
and not significant. The effect due to the noise impact from
construction traffic was assessed as negligible and not significant.
Land Stability

The Environment Agency had assessed the documents referred to
above and had concluded that the proposed development would be
acceptable subject to the inclusion of some relevant planning
conditions. The development would not be put at unacceptable risk
from, or be adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water
pollution in accordance with national planning policy and policies 14
and 16 of the Local Plan.

Landscape and Visual

The proposed development was particularly successful at
considering the context of the site and the sites setting. The
masterplan layout had taken into account views of the hillside from
the site, views looking down onto the site and how the site would be
viewed from the periphery of the site boundary. It was considered
that the site could be successfully assimilated into the existing
landscape setting whilst still creating a new distinctive development.
Socio Economics

Policy LP28 required schemes to contribute to the provision of a
wide range of local employment opportunities that offered a range

14




of jobs in different sectors of the economy and incorporated
appropriate schooling dependent on the scale of the urban
extension. The LPA were satisfied that these criteria had been met.

e Housing

e The application proposed to deliver the full allocation for the SUE of
3200 houses. It also proposed to deliver the policy compliant
requirement for affordable housing and the Delivery Report that the
LPA had had independently evaluated demonstrated that the site
was viable, and that delivery could be reasonably expected.

y. gave a conclusion in relation to compliance with the main Local Plan

Policies LP28 and LP30 pertaining to the planning application dealing with
the location and approach to the Sustainable Urban Extensions (SUESs) as
detailed at Paragraph 5.2 and 5.3 of the officer’s report

further offered a conclusion in respect of the planning balance in relation to
The Central Lincolnshire Local Plan as detailed at Paragraph 5.4 of the
officer’s report.

Becky Melhuish, representing Lincolnshire County Council (LCC), addressed
Planning Committee in objection to the planning application, covering the
following points:

LCC could support the application for the whole development, subject to
agreeing detailed mitigation and further technical checks and clarifications
as identified in this response.

However, LCC objected to Phase 1A on the grounds of severe impact and
lack of alternative sustainable travel modes in accordance with NPPF as
follows:

Phase 1A

Traffic surveys of the existing highway network were undertaken in Feb
2020. These surveys showed the observed turning movements and
gueues, the survey results showed that Skellingthorpe Road in particular
experienced lengthy queues especially in the am peak rush hour.
Throughout the peak hour these queues were over 100 vehicles and
reaching around 200 vehicles at times.

The Phase 1A proposals were forecasted to add a further 81 vehicles to
this eastbound movement in the am peak hour. The existing surveyed
flows were 447 for this link and therefore this would be an increase of
around 18%. This was a significant increase in demand to a link which was
already operating over-capacity.

Capacity improvements on Skellingthorpe Road were not possible due to
physical constraints and the applicant had proposed mitigation on an
alternative route into the City from Birchwood via Doddington Road and
Tritton Road in the form of junction improvements.

These junction improvements could provide increased capacity, however,
they would not provide relief for the residents of the new development, and
it was questionable how many existing residents from Birchwood would
reallocate to Doddington Road, given the existing distribution, journey
times and destinations. Furthermore, was it acceptable in sustainability
terms to be providing extra capacity on a route which was considerably
longer to access the City Centre?

Phase 1A was a development which did not adequately promote
alternative sustainable modes, there was no improvement for walking and
cycling. The bus services W%Jld be adversely affected by additional traffic



on the local network and the pinch point of Skellingthorpe Road was not
addressed. The development added 18% additional car traffic to a link
which was already under severe stress, operating at capacity with frequent
extensive queuing and suppressed demand manifested in demand and
gueues extending beyond the peak hours.

The Local Planning Authority had commissioned BSP to provide an
opinion on traffic impact, no further evidence or assessment had been
undertaken by BSP. However, BSP concluded that even with an 18%
increase on an already over capacity link the proposal did not result in a
“Severe” impact provided that the junction improvements at Birchwood and
Doddington were implemented.

Members needed to decide whether the traffic from a further 300 houses
on Skellingthorpe Road would cause a severe impact given the existing
traffic conditions and the fact that no mitigation in the area was proposed.
Whole Development

LCC could support the development subject to agreeing detailed mitigation
and further technical checks and clarifications as set out in its consultation
responses.

LCC agreed that the spine road through the site, with a new bridge over
the railway linking Skellingthorpe Road to Tritton Road, would provide a
significant improvement to the highway network. The proposals would also
ensure that sustainable modes would gain the most benefit from this new
link.

Conclusion

The officer report concluded that the traffic impact of Phase 1A would be
“short term impact on the local highway network pending the delivery of
the bridge over the railway to Tritton Road and the construction of the link
road within the site” (Page 113).

However, the proposed consent only required the bridge to be provided
prior to the 301%t house, and there was therefore no guarantee that the
bridge would be delivered.

Approving this application could mean that the impact on the local highway
network of the first 300 houses remained in perpetuity without the
necessary mitigation of the bridge link.

Given the significant costs involved for a new railway bridge, circa £20M,
and the timescales to gain the necessary agreements and construct the
bridge, it was likely to be many years before the bridge was provided, if at
all.

LCC therefore requested that Members did not grant the consent for this
development as proposed. LCC considered that this important allocated
site could be delivered, but the proposals needed to be phased such that
mitigation was provided early and that there was no excessive adverse
impact on the highway network.

Mr lan Whiting, local resident, addressed Planning Committee in objection to the
proposed development, covering the following main points:

He thanked everyone for allowing him the opportunity to speak.

He was opposed to this development. He represented a significant number
of local people (through Skellingthorpe Road Community Residents Action
Plan).

He was not against development in general — he developed businesses for
a living, he loved the city, especially how it had maintained green spaces

16



but was very concerned about democracy, sustainability, and life in
Lincoln.

He stated that he and councillors should be on the same side. No doubt
members had been sold how fantastic this proposed development was by
their Leadership Team, however, that influence should not drive decisions
on this or any vote.

He understood that some members had a long-held pre-disposition to vote
in favour of a development on this site, but please, this was a huge,
controversial decision. The Members’ role here was to represent the
public. He had high expectations that members of the committee would
challenge such policy decisions on behalf of the people whom councillors
represented.

The LGA Councillor Code of Conduct committed councillors to; Respect
for the people you represent, Objectivity, Openness, Transparency,
Honesty and Impatrtiality in exercising your responsibilities in the interests
of the local community of the people you represent.

There were something like 250 objections to this proposed development
from those people councillors represented. Many of those objections
contained multiple, well-argued and evidenced issues. It would be
interesting to know how many of the councillors had read those detailed
public objections?

The objectors (the councillors public) had not had any official dialogue with
councillors or the planners regarding those objections or concerns. It had
been a Black Hole! He questioned whether councillors had been told those
objections were unfounded, invalid or dealt with, if so, that was a
misrepresentation.

If members of the committee were to vote in favour, abstain or decline to
vote against this development today, they would not have discharged their
duty to the people they represented. They would not have demonstrated
impartiality, which did not align with their Code of Conduct. He requested
that a record be taken to show how each member of the Committee voted.
This should not be ‘us & them’, councillors vs. members of the public.
Councillors should be working with the public, hence the reason why the
public elected them. This was their duty. To be clear 250 or so objections
may seem a small number, but the effort required to actually access and
read through over 700 documents and then create and submit planning
rule relevant responses was gargantuan.

Members should be amazed that so many people managed to jump
through the hoops and barriers necessary to actually respond. Many,
many people gave up. Furthermore, more, most people in Lincoln did not
even know about this proposed development because this Council’s
consultation process had been so very poor.

It appeared that the public were not encouraged to be truthfully informed,
and certainly when those did respond, you ignored us.

We were given just 5 minutes to speak. We could not even touch on the
detail in 5 mins - and we could not use anything visual.

Just two of the core issues; - High Flood risk area. Only originally
proposed in the last century because there were 'No alternatives’. Now
there were many alternative, safer, easier, lower cost development options
in the local area. This development could adversely affect flood risk to the
existing low-lying housing in Lincoln. Think of the risk to Central Lincoln,
Boultham, Moorland, Carholme, etc.

17



Transport; the Council’s publicists talked of a through road and relief for
the traffic between the city and its outskirts, but the plan did not include a
genuine through road.

Was there Network Rail permission for the railway bridges? If later
approved, who would pay? It looked pretty much like the council taxpayers
of Lincoln.

The build was planned in phases. It was probable that development would
cease after early phases because the plan was not commercially viable.
No through road. None of the glossy infrastructure. Additional congestion,
pollution, lots of cost and no benefits to the resident’'s which members
represented.

The Highway Authority objected to this plan. They were the experts. Why
did the Council not stop to assess the real situation here? Because you
had already sunk more than £2m of Council taxpayers’ money into a
seriously flawed scheme. The Council’s own paid consultants admitted
that there would be more queuing traffic on roads that were already close
to or already at capacity (and they had ignored the additional rail traffic that
we hear was likely).

Drivers were asked to take significantly longer routes, past schools,
shopping areas and pedestrian and cycle routes in order to get into and
out of town. In various parts of Lincoln. Hartsholme, Birchwood, Boultham,
Moorland. - proper traffic mitigation was not possible-the Council’s own
consultants said that.

There were at least 10 key development deliverables signed up to be
complied with as a council, that were directly broken by this proposal.

The proposal was a departure from the Central Lincolnshire Plan which
had been agreed in 2017. For example, boundaries had been changed
without consultation.

The public really did not understand why the Council continued to pursue
this development. There were just so many deep flaws. People could be
apathetic about this, but it must be remembered, it was not all ‘over’ once it
was decided to proceed.

The problems would start to affect communities very quickly and
constituents would be a lot more interested then about why the Council
had let this happen.

Please, if members really cared about the future of Lincoln and the people
they represented, they should take this opportunity to do what was right.
This plan was still not fit for a yes vote.

Ray Shooter, local resident, addressed Planning Committee in objection to the
proposed development, covering the following main points:

He had lived on Birchwood for nearly 55 years and involved in the local
Scout Group for over 40 years.

He walked his dog daily across the proposed development site, when it
was not ankle deep in water of course.

Most people he had spoken to seemed to know little about the current plan
or its impact on their daily lives.

About a third of the city lived in the 4 affected wards, Birchwood,
Hartsholme, Boultham and Moorland.

When told about the plans, Boultham residents were concerned about the
“no right turn” from Dixon St onto High St; three number 9 buses an hour
would have to use Rookery Lane or go through town.

18



Moorland residents were very concerned by the extra traffic this scheme
would generate through their ward.
To expect Birchwood residents to divert to Doddington Road when the
traffic was just as bad if not worse than Skellingthorpe Road and affected
by a railway crossing was too much.
It took up to 35 minutes to reach Sainsburys supermarket from the
Birchwood area already. When the new Aldi was completed at the
Moorland Centre the traffic along Tritton Road would be much worse. Also
added by the construction traffic, entering via Skellingthorpe Road and
Birchwood Avenue and more barrier down time, this was ludicrous.
The traffic from Skellingthorpe village had not been considered. There
were currently 600 houses under construction on two sites in the village
with 1400 more being proposed by 2036.
Quite a few of these residents would use Skellingthorpe Road and
Doddington Road, none of this had been taken into consideration.
Many Skellingthorpe residents now had to come to Birchwood to visit the
doctor’s surgery and for schooling.
There would be more road traffic and more children needing to cross the
A46 70mph dual carriageway at Skellingthorpe Road, however, there were
no plans for pedestrian bridges or underpasses. The opportunity to gain
those safety features had been lost.
If ever completed, the planned through road from Birchwood Avenue to
Tritton Road would have bus gates to prevent cars from using it.
The third exit via the bridge into Beevor Street would be for buses only
from the development. For 3200 homes there would only be one main exit.
As for flooding, did members believe in climate change? This area would
flood. Since the 2017 plan, everything had changed. This areas use must
be reconsidered. There was now a new Environment Act in place since the
submission was made.
The Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board, who kept our homes dry,
wanted to keep this area free from development, they called it a “safety
valve” for Lincoln itself. He guessed members knew better, although he
was not sure Boultham, Moorland, Hartsholme, Carholme and City
residents would be re-assured by that.
His greatest concern about this current application was how it had been
“advertised to the public”.
How could the public comment on these proposals if they had not been
made aware of them.
Access to planning proposals should be open, transparent, and widely
advertised to enable contributions by the public to be considered as part of
the planning process, especially for such a large development.
He did not feel that a couple of one-sided press releases in the weekly
local paper or on The Lincolnite were sufficient to inform the residents.
This whole process had been rolled out over Christmas and New Year
containing over 700 documents, this was undemocratic and bordering on
dishonesty. It was hard to believe members of this committee had read
and understood some of the paperwork.
Councillors not the planning officers would vote and were accountable for
the outcome of this and would be held to task when the reality sank home.
What was needed were proper, public presentations and debates in all
areas that were going to be affected.
These should have been carried out before these plans were even
considered by Planning Committee so that the residents could question
the planning officers in more detail as to what was really being put forward
19



to the large number of residents who would have to experience its
outcome daily for many years to come.

Tom Wilkinson, representing Decoy Farm, addressed Planning Committee in
objection to the proposed development, covering the following main points:

e He jointly owned Decoy Farm directly adjacent the A46 (Lincoln Bypass).

e His land was included within the Western Growth Corridor Allocation in the
Local Plan but not part of this planning application.

e He supported the principle of development; however, the applicants were
missing the opportunity to improve highway solutions without a direct link
to the A46.

e The applicants had made no attempt to contact him or his family to discuss
a potential link through his land. They paid a visit after the application was
submitted to try to convince them that a new link onto the A46 was not
necessary and why the token improvements they proposed to the
Skellingthorpe roundabout would be sufficient.

e He was not convinced by the applicant’s reasoning for not having a direct
link road to the A46 and the token alterations they proposed to
Skellingthorpe Roundabout were laughable.

e His farm access was directly off Skellingthorpe roundabout via a fifth arm
squeezed in between the A46 west bound carriageway and Skellingthorpe
Road. They ran a caravan site, horse livery business and farming activities
which generated significant vehicle movements every day, in and out of
this inadequate access.

e The highway consultants representing the applicants had made a number
of assumptions about traffic movements, walking, cycling, bus use etc,
then put the numbers into a computer model to come up with figures which
they claimed showed the development could go ahead, with the highway
solutions proposed.

e He was not a highways expert. He looked at this from a practical common
sense point of view. He did not believe 3,200 houses, 50 acres of
commercial land and a new football stadium could be built, with all the
associated construction traffic, using the access points proposed, without
causing significant congestion and misery to those already living on
Skellingthorpe Road, Birchwood Avenue and the wider area.

e The applicants had costed a new junction over the railway line onto Tritton
Road at approximately £17 million pounds and a future additional access
over the railway line onto Beevor Street at another £15 million pounds
instead of building two access points over the railway line.

e Would it not be better to delete one of those and use the money saved to
build a direct link onto the A46.This would:

» Open up more land for development, leisure use and open space

» Divert traffic away from the already congested Skellingthorpe Road
and Birchwood Avenue

» Reduce air pollution in those existing residential areas

» Allow Decoy Farm to close off the unsafe access onto the
Skellingthorpe roundabout.

e In summary his land was included in the Western Growth Corridor’s
allocation in the local plan. It was available for development, and he was
willing to work with developers to bring forward a viable solution to the
highway’s issues on this site. He could see the development had potential
to bring a great benefit to the community, but he believed more time must
be given to fully explore the best access points for this site.

20



Fen Kipley, local resident, addressed Planning Committee in objection to the
proposed development, covering the following main points:

e As a local advocate for those whose opinions and crucial local knowledge
had not been heard, and as a critical friend, she offered some informed
observations in relation to the Western Growth Corridor proposals.

e 1In 2017, the development team stated: “We will involve communities in the
planning, governance and ownership of the scheme...”

e Apparently, community involvement meant:

» A5 leaflets in a tiny white font printed on a black background only
distributed to 6,000 properties.

» Hundreds of jargon-laden planning documents only available online.

» Small print planning notices loosely tied to a few lamp posts.

e All development team press releases were reproduced in the media as if
the proposals were irrefutably a welcome asset to the city.

e There were a series of public engagement events despite the times and
places being restrictive to many; those in work, carers, teenagers, families
with young children, folks with mobility, hearing, visual, literacy and
language barriers.

e She was sorry to report that council and private consultancy staff often
outnumbered the public present, whom, when offering their opinions, were
frequently interrupted with a “yes, but”.

e |t didn’t look like community involvement; it seemed to be an exercise in
providing justification for a decision already made.

e The Local Government Association published a vast range of guidance on
effective community engagement, it said:

e Community engagement helps local government improve the efficiency,
legitimacy and transparency of their decision making. By encouraging
participation, they can make more informed decisions by engaging with,
and carefully mapping out the needs, opinions and visions of local
communities on issues that matter to them. This can increase trust in local
councils to make better public decisions.

e In relation to the planning application, there remained serious concerns
about the lack of a thorough and up to date Environmental Impact
Assessment, especially relating to local heritage, geographical, ecological,
and archaeological aspects; nor had these been addressed in the 2019
amended application.

e More recently, UK planning and environmental law had substantially
changed. Findings by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change and
COP 26 had drilled home the importance of how everybody needed to
adapt and mitigate for worsening climate effects locally and globally.

e The current planning proposal was no longer future proof; as sea levels
rose elsewhere and adverse weather conditions increased, it would
severely impact upon food distribution and its availability here in Lincoln.

e In the local neighbourhoods, there was already genuine food and fuel
poverty; heat or eat was a daily decision for many. This would worsen as
energy prices soared. Even working families were now reliant on the city’'s
foodbanks.

e Covid-19 affected how people used and valued their local green spaces.
Hartsholme and Boultham Parks could not cope with the increased
demand, so many more local people discovered the fantastic walks,
wildlife and views within the proposed planning site. This land would
become even more crucial not only as a vital green lung, a safe haven for

21



wildlife, a washland, a place for recreation and for growing food locally, but
a key site for developing innovative conservation and environmental
management skills for our young people.

Job creation was much needed, especially among those not academically
inclined. There were greater training and employment opportunities in
adapting, retrofitting and creating resilient, energy efficient and accessible
homes within the current housing stock. This included use of brownfield
land and empty spaces above shops. By improving the overall health and
wellbeing of our existing neighbourhoods, and providing unique, affordable
homes right in the heart of the city, everyone benefitted.

She knew and respected that many of the committee genuinely believed in
helping those less fortunate and truly understood what their young people
and grandchildren, would face within the next 30 years. The plan needed
to be changed to take account of climate science.

A more robust, open and fairer consultation was needed across the whole
of the city including surrounding villages, so everyone’s voice was heard.
People could no longer put profit and privilege over people and the local
environment.

Councillor Biff Bean addressed Planning Committee as Ward Advocate in
objection to the proposed development, covering the following main points:

Tonight, he was here personally to object to the proposed WGC
development.

He was also here to object on behalf of the people of Hartsholme.

He had been aware of this piece of land all his life and played there as a
young boy.

He grew up on the Hartsholme estate, his family had moved there in 1963.
Hartsholme today was very different to how it was back then. Over recent
decades the traffic congestion on Skellingthorpe Road and Doddington
Road had become a nightmare for local residents.

Whether you lived or worked in the area, which he did, it was not unusual
to be sat in traffic for 20 or 30 mins or even longer.

Changes to the road infrastructure were difficult to address with two sets of
train barriers that constantly held up the flow of traffic.

Without dropping or raising the track the community was stuck with this
problem for the foreseeable future.

When the WGC project was revived a few years ago, he thought if the
design was right, we could use the site to ease the traffic congestion for
the people of Hartsholme and Birchwood.

He got involved and fed some of his ideas into the many debates and
consultations held over the years, hoping to create a road infrastructure
plan that could quickly get people into the city centre and alleviate the
bottlenecks on Skellingthorpe and Doddington Road.

He wrote a traffic report back in January 2018 with lots of ideas to address
congestion throughout the city.

Unfortunately, it had not worked out that way, this application fell well short
of helping the situation on those roads. He believed this application would
make congestion worse.

There was no up-front funding for this development, so it could take over
20 years to complete. That was 20 years of disruption and added
congestion.

22



e This would mean there would be no emphasis on completing the road
infrastructure which was crucial to getting traffic congestion relief in our
communities.

e Added in the confusion as to when the two road bridges would get
permission and funding it was clear why people were sceptical of this
application.

e As local Councillor for Hartsholme, he had spoken to hundreds if not
thousands of people over many years about the WGC. Many of them
would be sat in this room tonight. 95% of the people he spoke to were
against building on this site.

e Flooding was also a massive issue along with wildlife concerns and loss of
green spaces.

e He spoke very recently to those people who lived closest to the proposed
development to see if they had a change of heart. If anything, they were
more determined that this application be rejected.

e The size of the petition also showed that this project had not convinced
local people that it was the right project for this area.

e As local Councillors they had a duty to listen to our constituents. He asked
members to think about that before they made their decisions tonight.

e He did understand the need for more housing, and the leisure facilities
would be a welcome addition for the city of Lincoln. But on the whole, and
in his opinion, the project had more negatives than positives. So, it was
back to the drawing board for him.

Kate Ellis, Strategic Director, Major Developments, City of Lincoln Council
addressed Planning Committee in support of the proposed development,
covering the following main points:

e She was responsible for leading the delivery of the Council’s priorities in
addressing Climate Change and inclusive economic growth. This involved
shaping visions, developing strategies and turning that policy into
deliverable outcomes that made Lincoln an even better place. On this
scheme, she led the Council’'s separate land-owning team acting as
developer.

e Lincoln was her home. She had lived in this beautiful city for over 25 years
and for the last 20 years she had lived on Doddington Road as a Moorland
resident, raising a family and travelling most days past this site into the city
centre.

e It mattered to her what the Council did in Lincoln.

e The city had a well-recognised and evidenced need now and in the future
for more housing of all types and tenure; more locations for businesses,
more and better-paid jobs; better leisure provision; improved highway
infrastructure for all forms of movement, where the benefits of a central rail
station were not negated by increasing travel congestion and unreliability
and frustration.

e The Council had a duty to not only plan for how that need was met, but
that it also facilitated, enabled and delivered against that need. The
Council for several decades had held development of Western Growth
Corridor in both its strategic policy documents and its corporate delivery
plans such as Vision 2020.

e This was not a site for uninspiring, tokenistic development with units
crammed into a sea of tarmac to maximise profit. It was a complex and
challenging site, where the Council’s masterplan showed the wonderful
existing hedgerows and tree shaping where development went, where

23



wetlands and rich ecology were enhanced and where sustainability in
every sense of the word dominated to create a flourishing, connected and
integrated community.

e The principle of development on this site had already been agreed
historically and reaffirmed following a robust and comprehensive review as
part of establishing the current Local Plan - this included independent
evidence of need, several rounds of public consultation and a public
examination by the Planning Inspectorate which she attended,
representing the Council as landowner.

e Whilst there remained some strong and emotive views and concerns about
building on this site, there was no other sites allocated in the plan, it had
already been agreed that development would happen here.

e |t was also accepted this would mean the development would start with a
first phase of around 500 homes (which the Council had reduced to 300),
accessed from Skellingthorpe Road, accepting the impact on existing
traffic issues until the next phase of development was in place.

e It was therefore not a question of “if” or “should®, or even a question of
‘how much “, but a question of whether what was proposed appropriately
delivered national and local planning policy requirements.

e We had spent thousands of hours with experts, reading reports, analysis,
listening to, hearing and understanding valid concerns and issues, working
with others to identify solutions, successfully securing funding from Homes
England to help open up the site for housing delivery to ensure that it
delivered the best the Council could, as Lincoln deserved.

e The Council had negotiated with national housebuilders and stood firm
when proposals had not been good enough, when profit had driven
choices. Quality of design, the value of the environment, building
communities and quality homes for people in the city drove the Council’s
choices not profit. It was no accident that today the joint applicant was a
local developer and construction group.

e The Council had spent the vast majority of the past 4 years trying to agree
with the Highway Authority a deliverable highways access plan both within
the development and in terms of its impact on the surrounding area.
Alongside the Council’s expert team, the Council had spent thousands of
hours modelling, examining, even bringing in additional highway
consultants to test whether there was a better solution, to then continue
testing, revising, reviewing, modelling, problem- solving, and testing
because the Council were and remained so committed to getting the best
workable solution it could.

e The Council could not deliver this overnight, and frankly, no-one could do
that without temporary disruption. The Council could not put £50 million of
infrastructure in from day one without building any homes to finance it, as
much as we would want to.

e What the Council could do was deliver a policy compliant exemplar
sustainable community for the city.

e So, she was therefore particularly proud to be advocating this scheme for
members consideration tonight.

Harry Flexman, representing Connect Transport Consultants, addressed
Planning Committee in support of the proposed development, covering the
following main points:

e He was an Associate Transport Planner at Connect Consultants, a
specialist firm of transport planning and highway design consultants.

24



He held a master’s degree in Physics and was a member of the Chartered
Institute of Highways and Transportation.

He had more than 14 years’ experience in highway engineering, traffic
engineering and transport planning.

Connect were brought in to work with City of Lincoln Council and Lindum
on the Western Growth Corridor in 2018, in order to review the transport
approach at the time and whether changes to that approach would better
balance the needs of the development and of the transport network.
Connect held multiple meetings and corresponded with Lincolnshire
County Council highways department, and National Highways (who looked
after the A46) and numerous technical reports had been submitted to both
highway authorities during our lengthy discussions.

Some changes Connect made were:

Previous traffic modelling assumed a direct route for all vehicles through
the site and predicted that a lot of non-development traffic would drive
through the site.

The Lincoln Transport Strategy was brought in which shifted focus away
from just providing more traffic capacity, towards sustainable transport
measures (like bus, cycle and walking).

Encouraged by this, Connect changed the site layout so the main
connection between Skellingthorpe Road, Tritton Road and Beevor Street
was for bus priority, with the vehicular route being mainly for access in and
out, but also to act as a relief valve if needed.

At the Skellingthorpe Road access Connect showed that either a
roundabout or traffic lights could be suitable.

Both provided traffic capacity, and assisted pedestrians and cycles (via
crossings).

Connect presented both options to the County who had a very strong
preference for traffic lights and that was the determining factor.

Connect integrated bus priority on the approach from Birchwood Avenue
The traffic effect of the full scheme had been tested using the County’s
own strategic traffic model.

To assess the early phases of the development, a new set of traffic
surveys were done (before COVID and not during school holidays or
unusual conditions).

He then watched 1,000s of hours of CCTV footage of roads, junctions,
gueues, slow-moving vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists. Although there
were obvious delays along Skellingthorpe Road, this should not taint
opinion by the occasions when there may be abnormally high levels of
gueuing.

Using industry standard methods, Connect calculated 139 traffic
movements exiting the Phase la development during the morning peak
hour, 11 travelling northwest to the A46, 47 travelling southwest along
Birchwood Avenue, 81 east along Skellingthorpe Road, and some existing
traffic would consider a different route.

To help this route choice, and mitigate the 81 vehicles, Phase 1a included:
signalisation of a junction, lane widening, yellow box markings, re phasing
of traffic lights and other related improvements, as listed in the committee
report.

These added upwards of 100 vehicles’ worth of capacity, which more than
mitigated the 81 traffic movements in the morning peak hour.

There were multiple, long term residual benefits - not only to traffic
management, but bus priority, and new cycle and pedestrian crossings.

25



On this basis Phase 1a was well conceived, for the short, mid and long
term.

The existing problems along Skellingthorpe Road could not be solved
without the bridge and connections through the site (otherwise it would
have been done by now)

Without this development, the issues would only get worse.

If the development did not happen, houses would need to be built
elsewhere which would add to the traffic without providing suitable
mitigation.

The transport elements of the application had been independently
assessed (on behalf of the planning authority) by consultants BSP.

It was clear that BSP had read all of the information, they had responded
in detail about every element, and agreed with our assessment
methodology, findings, mitigation, and conclusions.

National Highways also agreed with our assessment and welcomed the
benefits that the A46 improvements would deliver including the
pedestrian/cycle crossings.

The County was supportive of full development, as they knew it would
provide significant benefits over the long term.

In summary, this proposal had been subject to a very rigorous and lengthy
assessment and review, every step of the process had been followed to
industry standards.

There were no short-term significant detriments, and huge mid to long term
benefits particularly when measured against the existing situation and the
unsavoury possibility of the houses being provided elsewhere, with the city
having to deal with all the traffic, without the bridges and connections
through the site.

He hoped this provided the committee with confidence that the traffic and
transport effects had been fully investigated, and that the right measures
were being delivered as part of the development.

Mike Smith, representing Aecom Consultants, addressed Planning Committee in
support of the proposed development, covering the following main points:

He was an Associate Director at AECOM, a global infrastructure
consultancy, and would talk today about flood risk.

AECOM had been working with City of Lincoln Council and Lindum for a
number of years in developing the proposals for Western Growth Corridor.
By background, he was a chartered civil engineer, with a specialism in
flood risk and sustainable drainage infrastructure and had worked on many
large scale, mixed use developments across the midlands and the north of
England.

The site benefitted from existing flood defences in the form of raised flood
embankments along three separate watercourses that were adjacent to
the site. These defences were maintained by the Environment Agency and
would protect the site from flooding due to extreme river levels up to and
including a 1 in 100 year event.

There were also watercourses to the north of the site managed by Upper
Witham Internal Drainage Board (IDB), with water levels controlled by
downstream pumping stations.

The IDB’s pumping stations were capable of preventing any flooding within
the site from these watercourses for rainfall events up to and including a 1
in 100 year event, including the impacts of future climate change.

26



In the worst case scenario, if the IDB’s pumps were to fail, and this
coincided with a 1 in 100 year event, an area to the north of the site would
be at risk of flooding. However, no development was proposed for this part
of the site. He could also confirm that the development was not situated
within a functional flood plain.

The Environment Agency (EA) historically objected to the previous, much
larger, version of the scheme in 2006 on the grounds of flood risk. As a
result, a flood risk technical working group was formed, including members
from the EA, the IDB and the County Council as Lead Local Flood
Authority, to determine the safe, sustainable extent of development that
could be delivered within the site.

Flood modelling work undertaken on behalf of the Technical Working
Group, using the EA’s approved flood model, determined that two areas of
land raising could safely be undertaken within the southern part of the site,
so that even if the existing flood defences were to fail, the proposed
development would be above the flood water level and there would be no
negative impact on surrounding areas.

Following this flood modelling work, the site allocation was retained in the
2017 Local Plan, with the inspector concluding that “the risks to both new
and existing development could be adequately mitigated as part of the final
design”.

Further iterations of the EA’s flood model were run to refine the extent of
the development shown on the masterplan, including the addition of two
wetland areas to the north of the site, where ground levels would be
lowered, providing around 180 million litres of extra flood storage, more
than 5 times the volume of Hartsholme Lake.

As the proposed properties would sit above the potential extreme flood
level, the land would be classified by the EA as not being in a flood zone,
meeting the requirements of the Association of British Insurers, so that
residents would not pay higher rates for home insurance due to flood risk.
Small areas of standing water observed in some of the farmers’ fields
within the site following heavy or prolonged periods of rainfall was due to
poor drainage in these areas and completely normal for agricultural land.
The development proposals offered improved drainage across the site.
Developed with the technical working group, the proposed drainage
strategy would include sustainable drainage systems, allowing water to be
safely stored during extreme rainfall events.

The surface water drainage proposals had been modelled using the IDB’s
own hydraulic model to confirm that the existing drainage infrastructure
would have sufficient capacity to take flows from the development, without
having any negative impacts elsewhere.

Funding would be provided for the upgrade of the IDB’s existing pumping
stations, improving their resilience and benefitting not just Western Growth
Corridor, but also the existing homes currently served by the IDBs
infrastructure. The Local Plan Inspector concluded that “upgrading existing
pumps and improved management practices would reduce, rather than
increase the likelihood of localised flooding.”

Following completion of the detailed modelling work, and analysis of all
potential sources of flood risk to the local area, culminating in the
submission of the Flood Risk Assessment as part of the planning
application, the EA had now raised no objections to the development.
Whilst AECOM noted that the IDB had maintained its statutory and historic
objection to the development, they had and continued to work closely with
us to help shape the proposals for the site.

27



AECOM continued to liaise with all members of the technical working
group to keep them updated on the scheme and to agree the next steps
required to bring the development forward in a safe and sustainable
manner.

Mark Foster, representing Lindum Group, addressed Planning Committee in
support of the proposed development, covering the following main points:

He was the Land and Planning Director with Lindum and the joint
applicants planning lead for the scheme.

With a planning application of this scale, it was no surprise that a lot of
comment and speculation had been put forward. He was grateful for the
opportunity to provide some facts, detail and evidence that supported this
huge investment into the city, with a particular focus on why the project
would start at Skellingthorpe Road.

This site had been allocated within the Local Plan since 2017. Going even
further back, the site had been allocated since the 1990s. Whilst the
amount of development had been significantly scaled back and the
transport strategy altered at various stages, one of the main constants had
been that the first phase of development would be accessed from
Skellingthorpe Road.

This had always been the case on economic grounds because,
irrespective of where the other access points were in relation to the site,
they all involved substantial bridge and road structures, of significant
upfront cost which in themselves had been a key factor in preventing this
investment into the city coming forward.

As part of the examination process associated with the Local Plan in 2017,
the proposed allocation was considered in detail. This included the
highway impact of the scheme and, in allocating the site, the Inspectors
report concluded that; ‘Lincolnshire County Council confirm that recent
work with site promoters has shown that access could be taken from
Skellingthorpe Road without the residual cumulative impacts becoming
severe’.

The Inspectors report noted that a planning application for Phase 1 ‘would
be relatively infrastructure light’. This could only be the case if the first
phase was from Skellingthorpe Road and this ‘infrastructure light’ first
phase was critical to evidencing deliverability of development on the site in
the short term, and a central reason for its allocation, the Inspector being
convinced that the proposals could feasibly be delivered and be delivered
quickly.

This highlighted the inextricable link between phasing and deliverability, as
provided as detailed evidence within THE application. To start at the
Tritton Road end would cost around five times more, at approximately £50
million, than starting at the Skellingthorpe Road end, at around £10 million.
The difference was stark, but it was not just the headline costs which
rendered this unfeasible.

Starting at Skellingthorpe Road provided much needed initial revenue to
enable finance to be secured against the remainder of the site, which
would fund delivery of the spine road and Tritton Road bridge. With no
revenue being created first, the sheer size of the cost, the complexity and
risk of starting at the Tritton Road end would make this virtually impossible
to fund in isolation. Some revenue and value needed to be created first to
secure funding against, and this was typical of how developments of this
nature were funded, enabling infrastructure to be brought forward.

28



The overall deliverability of the scheme had been assessed independently
by the Planning Authority’s appointed viability consultants Aspinall Verdi.
One of the key questions the planners asked the consultants related to the
likelihood of the development not continuing past the first 300 units.
Lindum Group had always been very clear that it would make no sense to
stop after the first 300 and not deliver the critical pieces of infrastructure as
they were key to the success of the scheme, opening up the majority of the
land and enabling a return on our investment.

Aspinall Verdi confirmed this in their independent report, stating that ‘it is
very unlikely they could walk away after Phase 1A’ They continued, ‘there
should be little risk that the developers wouldnt continue the
development...and.. they would have to continue past Phase 2 to secure
the return on their investment from the scheme’.

We had always been clear it would make no sense to stop after the first
300, this had now been independently verified by expert viability
consultants.

The applicants had other equally compelling reasons to continue the
development beyond the 15t phase — Kate Ellis had already outlined some
of these and Paul McSorley would talk about this more next. Lindum
Group’s reputation was at stake here, and the success of the scheme in its
totality was of upmost importance to everyone.

Personally, he was Lincoln born and bred and it mattered to him what
Lindum Group did here. Professionally, he had been in development now
for 20 years, and had never seen such a unique opportunity to deliver such
a significant investment into Lincoln, all as part of the delivery of a truly
special sustainable urban extension so close to the heart of the city.
Lindum Group therefore hoped that Members resolved to grant the
application this evening to enable the opportunity to be realised

Paul McSorley, representing Lindum Group, addressed Planning Committee in
support of the proposed development, covering the following main points:

He joined Lindum Construction as a year out trainee surveyor in 1987. In
the 30 years leading up to the Examination in Public we had built and
invested in numerous local projects including much of Brayford North,

He was Deputy Chairman in 2016 and deciding to buy a farm within the
Lincoln by-pass and become a delivery partner on the Western Growth
Corridor was definitely the biggest decision the Lindum Group had made.
As a successful local building contractor, consistently in the top 100
companies to work for, Lindum Group’s reputation was everything.
Coupled with the scale of the development, the commercial risks and its
importance to the city it would have been easy to step back.

However, the decision was taken by the senior management team -
unanimously - that this was something that needed to come forward and
Lindum Group should be involved if it could be. This was not a decision
based on commercial return; Lindum Group had made key land available
to the City’s previous partners on an open book (non—-ransom) valuation
basis, to try to help delivery.

So why?

Lindum Group Head Office was less than 2 miles from the site, Lindum
Group had 386 employees living in the LN1-LN6 areas; the dozens of red
Lindum vans seen every day needed to get in, out and around the city for
Lindum Group to effectively carry out its construction activities for its local
clients.

29



If the Western Growth Corridor did not happen; if there were no bridge
over the railway line, things would get much worse, especially if the
houses needed had to be built elsewhere, surrounding the city and putting
added pressure on the same failing infrastructure.

He stated that when Kate Ellis and he had sat with the Inspector at the
Examination in Public, together with the County Council and other
stakeholders they were clear this was the right thing to do. They could
create the community they all believed in, if they could phase the project
as envisaged and proposed, starting on Skellingthorpe Road. He also
understood why two local organisations, with the City’s interests at heart
could make the proposal work, when there had been so many false starts.
However, there could be no compromises, no short cuts. A fully compliant
application where we could contribute to the creation of a truly sustainable
urban extension.

Lindum Group’s success was intrinsically linked with the vitality and
prosperity of the city, with which Lindum Group shared its name.
Thousands of hours spent with consultants, where they asked for honest
answers - not what they wanted to hear - the positive technical and
financial support of Homes England, Network Rail’s clear understanding as
to the mutual benefits of the proposals - had all reinforced Lindum Group’s
belief that this was the right development; one which was needed without
further delay.

There were no alternatives here and things were getting worse. This
proposal could not solve all the City’s existing issues, but it could make an
incredibly positive difference.

This was before the huge benefits and investment the scheme would bring
were considered, the affordable homes (both social and market housing),
a new primary school, a neighbourhood centre, hundreds of acres of
natural habitat and farming land protected. An incredible opportunity.
Finally: they had not moved the goal posts here; not only was this the right
development and proposal, but it was also a comprehensive, fully
compliant application done correctly.

At this stage proceedings were halted for a short comfort break of 20minutes from
7.22pm to 7.42pm, then reconvened.

The Chair advised he would take five questions from Members at a time allowing
officers to respond without opportunity for the questions to get lost in the process
as the evening progressed.

Members discussed the content of the officer's report and the individual
statements made in support and against the planning application as set out

below.

Councillor Ric Metcalfe commented as follows:

This decision was easily the biggest and most challenging known to him in
his 40 years on the Council.

They were reminded tonight that this was a major sustainable urban
extension to Lincoln, forming an important foundation stone to the adopted
Local Plan.

The Local Plan was supported by the City Council, County Council and
their two district council neighbours for many years, approved by the
government led Planning Inspectorate at the examination of the plan in
public in 2016. 30



e They were informed the proposals were designed to meet the anticipated
growth in population, homes and jobs in the city, and to allow the
infrastructure for this to be delivered in a sustainable way.

e Despite this, as a Planning Authority the Council was bound in law to
examine rigorously the merits of this application and any adverse impact
on local residents.

e Concerns had been raised about the impact on local residents from
additional traffic generated by this development.

e He wished to offer a reassurance to everyone that he had read all 731
pages of the planning application including the 500 pages of objections.

e He recognised that views expressed by local residents were strongly and
sincerely held and did need to be weighed in the balance in the decision
made tonight.

e This was all the more reason to test to the limit the evidence provided by
planning officers on the impact on traffic issues from the proposed
development.

e Questions

e The Committee had been told the first 300 properties would generate
approximately 81 additional vehicles at morning rush hour on an already
very congested Skellingthorpe Road eastbound carriageway, assuming
traffic emerging from the new development was allowed to turn left at the
new signalised Skellingthorpe Road junction. The applicant proposed other
mitigation measures in the form of junction improvements at other
locations in the area to reduce traffic travelling east on Skellingthorpe
Road by approximately 100 vehicles. Was it correct therefore the result
was a net reduction of 19 vehicles travelling east at peak rush hour on
Skellingthorpe Road?

e The Highways Authority view was that this reduction may not all be
achievable by the applicant’'s mitigation measures. Had the Highway
Authority provided evidence to support this view or was it an opinion that
there would not be a 100 vehicle reduction by way of the mitigations?

e There had been discussions in respect of a ban on vehicles emerging from
the new development turning left onto the eastbound carriageway of
Skellingthorpe Road. Was this a condition that could be imposed on the
applicants, and would this offer mitigation to the worsening of the current
congestion on Skellingthorpe Road?

e After Phase 1 it was claimed further road infrastructure would bring relief to
hold ups at the railway line at Skellingthorpe Road via two new
connections to the City Centre, and there would then be a modal shift
towards walking/cycling and bus usage. What conditions would be
imposed to ensure these measures took place?

e Could planning officers explain in layman’s terms the advice given by
Aspinall Verdi consultants to contradict the potential incentive for the
applicants to walk away from further development after the first 300
houses were built, without the remaining infrastructure/development not
going ahead?

Councillor Hilton Spratt commented as follows:

e He and Councillor Metcalfe were the only Members present this evening
also on the Council in the 1980’s when WGC came forward.

e The formation of the WGC had developed over time to a considerable
degree.

e There were some commendable elements.

31



It encouraged growth and jobs in the local economy, bus, cycle, walking
routes, extra housing and additional income from Council tax.

There needed to be extra housing somewhere.

He accepted the mitigation provided within the report on historical and
wildlife/flora protection.

He had also read all the agenda papers and accepted there were a
considerable number of objections.

Those who had not been involved in this planning application would think
how marvellous it was, however, realistically this was not the case.

He wished to address some of the concerns he held regarding the
proposed development.

The traffic situation in Lincoln as everyone accepted was horrendous.
Adding these numbers of houses even over 22-23 years would result in a
vast increase in the number of vehicles on the roads, even though the city
was already swamped with cars.

It was pleasing the report talked positively about cycle paths, walking
paths and bus routes, however, planners failed to accept that the car
remained a reality, as it was convenient and cheaper than public transport
in the city.

Dwellings would be allocated 1.5 car parking spaces. Several homes in his
Ward had two or three cars per household and had to park on the road.
The spaces were much bigger too in previous years.

The police also stated that generally putting car parking spaces together in
one ‘lot’ encouraged theft.

Deliverability - the development would take 22 years to complete.

He was not persuaded by speakers tonight who claimed the development
would reach conclusion. Once the first tranche of, houses was erected, no
developer would stick to the plans as a long term development, due to
infrastructure costs.

As for the bridge and social housing — let us just watch this space.

The development was situated on a flood plain like a number of areas of
the city. In 2007/08 the east end of the city was nearly totally flooded off
Monks Road area and in early 2001/2/3 there was flooding in Witham
Ward.

Most people accepted we had global warming. However, when houses
were built in areas liable to flooding, constituents would not be happy to be
told by officers it was a 1 in 100 year event when it had happened the
previous night.

Kieron Manning, Assistant Director of Planning, offered clarification to points
raised so far as follows:

In relation to additional vehicle movements onto Skellingthorpe Road from
the first 300 dwellings, and the assessment of a net reduction of 19
vehicles, this was not entirely the case. It was more an issue that it created
that additional capacity to enable road users to take alternative routes not
specifically related to Skellingthorpe Road.

Lincolnshire County Council as statutory consultee for the Highway
Authority had not provided any contrary modelling evidence to substantiate
their objection to the planning authority. This had led to the rationale of
seeking third party advice from BSP as highways consultants.

An additional condition on the grant of planning permission to prevent
vehicles turning left from the new development onto the eastbound
carriageway of Skellingthorpe Road was an option for members if so

32



minded, however it was important to be mindful that requisite tests must be
met when imposing planning conditions, one of which was ‘to be
necessary’. It had not been proposed or negotiated with the Highway
Authority. Evidence available and advice from consultants was that it was
not necessary and therefore he advised it would fall short of meeting this
essential test.

e In terms of what conditions would be imposed to ensure that modal shift
took place, condition number 37 went some way to address this issue.
Modal shift had very much been an inherent factor in the evolution of this
scheme, certainly to the principal link through this site, which was altered
to prioritise bus routes through it following detailed workshop sessions held
with the applicant and with the Highway Authority present. Additional
modal shift measures would be implemented through the travel planning
process, but fundamentally within the detail of reserved matters planning
applications coming through on a phase-by-phase basis, should outline
permission be granted this evening.

e In terms of concerns raised regarding the development not progressing
after the initial first phase of 300 houses, this was covered in his
presentation and by several of tonight’'s speakers. The likelihood of the
required infrastructure not happening was a key question that needed
answering. The applicants informed the Committee that they were
absolutely committed to full delivery of the scheme, however, as planning
authority, we sought validation through an external third party, Aspinall
Verdi, consultants. This company also assessed the viability of the Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan and were aware of the area, the Western Growth
Corridor and issues surrounding it. The consultants expressed a high level
of confidence that the applicants would not walk away, primarily, from a
commercial viability point of view. All developments needed a return, and
in order to open up the site and its required infrastructure, the applicant
would need to progress beyond the initial 300 dwellings to make a return
on their investment. Otherwise, there would be a financial loss to the
scheme.

e In relation to available car parking spaces per dwelling, 1.5 cars was an
average allocation for the whole development and hence produced an odd
number of vehicles. It was compiled to industry standards. There would be
a full range of accommodation types such as large family homes, starter
homes, apartments etc, with a range of car parking requirements. Some
dwellings would have 2 to 3 car parking spaces and some areas would
potentially be car free.

e In terms of flood risk, technical information was provided within the officers’
report and given at the meeting. The area was not a functional flood plain,
it was an area at risk of flooding if flood defences failed. There was a key
difference. This was also the case for many parts of central Lincoln. There
were flood risk issues, however. development platforms would be
established to allow some properties to be raised out of that flood zone. At
this time of year standing water did appear, as a drainage issue and not a
flood risk in itself. Measures such as Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUD’s)
principles would go into the site as it developed first and foremost, to
resolve this issue as required by the County Council as lead Flood
Authority.

Councillor Jane Loffhagen commented as follows:

e She reassured people who expressed some doubts as to whether all
councillors would read the papers and take the issues seriously. She had
33



never met a councillor of either persuasion who was not dedicated to the
role and did not prepare properly for meetings.

e She thanked officers and everyone involved in the successful planning of
this event which was very helpful in answering some of the issues she
had. She attended tonight in her capacity as a Planning Member having an
open mind, her duty to do so.

e Question

e She was aware of the duty of the Council to provide opportunities for
houses to be built. What was the difference between this development
jointly applied for by the City of Lincoln Council and a local firm, and other
developments that may be outside of the City Council and the city?

Councillor Calum Watt commented as follows:

e It was a pleasure to be back in this building where he studied politics as a
student several years ago, saying things that were not always popular.

e This building was also the centre of the railways project, which people had
been sceptical about to begin with but soon realised how railways changed
their lives.

e When he first looked at this planning application, he was somewhat
alarmed they were going to build another car dependent suburb, however,
after having read all the papers, spoken to officers, attended briefings etc,
he was very confident it would not be that.

e The most impressive part of the development was the spine road. People
by nature took the quickest and easiest route to get to their destination
whether it be by car, public transport or cycling. A spine road designed in
this way was impressive and very forward looking, setting a precedent for
other locations.

e He would not dwell on the drainage issue, which had been covered
elsewhere to his satisfaction.

e He noted that some people thought this area would eventually be under
the sea, if that happened so would the place they were standing in now,
which was a much bigger issue than they could look at here.

e They could deal with global issues in adapting the way they lived through
modal shift They could reduce traffic on Skellingthorpe Road through the
modelling he had seen to provide a quicker link into the city for people
living in the area and address the hold ups every morning there.

e He did have some reservations. He was surprised that a modern Highway
Authority had recommended in his view a downgrade of a roundabout to a
signalised junction.

e He had not grown up in the city, he was from Stevenage, a town mainly
made up of roundabouts where traffic lights or indeed traffic jams were
rarely seen. However, he was assured the signal junction could be
changed if it did not work.

e He was also surprised as part of the plans it would not be possible to drive
a private car from one end to the other at all in preference to a convoluted
route, however, this again could be changed, and traffic measures put into
place if it did not work.

e He sincerely hoped the development would not take 23 years to be built,
housing was badly needed. Planning Committee had approved yet another
infill for two flats squeezed between a few buildings recently, which he
voted against, this scheme was a much better solution providing decent
living for future residents and would probably get his vote for this reason.

34



Question

Would cycle routes be fully separated as all should be, starting from
scratch?

If we were to have different circumstances in coming years such as a
change in government and the economy, would this enable the speed of
delivery for the scheme to be increased?

Councillor Edmund Strengiel commented as follows:

It would have been easy for him to act as Ward Advocate at the meeting
as a Birchwood councillor, however, this would exclude him from voting on
the planning application and he had chosen to sit as a member of Planning
Committee for this reason.

He thanked officers for a very in- depth report; it took a lot of reading but
was well worth it.

To date he had been inundated with e mails from constituents regarding
the application, raising concerns in relation to issues such as road
congestion, loss of open space, wildlife habitat, and flooding, to name just
a few.

He had responded ensuring that he had not fettered his discretion through
predetermination. He wished to make this clear

In 1991 when he first became a Birchwood councillor, a similar project was
proposed to deliver 5,000 dwellings onsite called the Skewbridge or
Swanpool project, which did not go ahead. In 2006, it was later scaled
back to 4,500 properties by the City of Lincoln Council, incorporating a
business park on the western edge through North Kesteven District
Council land. The developer was Taylor Wimpey.

He remembered sitting with Councillor Metcalfe in a Senior Management
Team meeting in 2007 viewing the scheme on a large map.

At that time there were plans for a slip road midway, off the by-pass
between Skellingthorpe and Carholme roundabouts.

No mention was made of access or egress from the Skellingthorpe
Road/Birchwood Avenue junction.

Going back to the mid 1990’s, he advocated that the ‘free for all’ T-
Junction at Birchwood Avenue be changed to a traffic light junction

If the current application was granted, he would be happy it remained as a
signalled junction.

The former application posed no issues for him at the time apart from its
close proximity to Ward residents living on the north side of Skellingthorpe
Road.

That development also extended into Boultham and Hartsholme area with
another road proposed off Hartsholme Drive.

The Environment Agency was totally against the development at that time,
due to risk of flooding, however it had now changed its mind.

This project also fell through as the developer pulled out.

More recently the development had been brought back by the City of
Lincoln Council using Lindum Construction to deliver 3,200 properties.
Living in the area for 35 years he had witnessed continuous pressure on
the road infrastructure. Better traffic outlets were required in this proposed
development area being equivalent to a good-sized town.

The area was of high density and high population.

His problem with the WGC development centred on the issues of road
infrastructure and ensuing traffic congestion.

35



e He had lobbied over the years to improve Skellingthorpe Road.
roundabout. He was always told by Lincolnshire County Council it was
outside their area, being within the North Kesteven District Council
boundary and owned by National Highways.

e Improvements to Skellingthorpe roundabout linked to the WGC scheme
would not be sufficient to mitigate excess traffic on Skellingthorpe Road
caused by the development.

e Peak time traffic was horrendous in the area, an impediment in journeys
for people living south or immediately north of Skellingthorpe Road which
ever route they chose to take.

e The speaker from Lincolnshire County Council had reiterated the problems
of 81 additional cars due to issues with the road infrastructure.

e The average number of car parking spaces was set at 1.5, however 300
houses with only one vehicle amounted to 300 cars and 450 at 1.5 spaces.
This was greater than 81.

e New residents would use the local shopping centre, both surgeries and
pharmacies in Birchwood, schools etc, the mitigation measures put
forward would not happen overnight.

e He preferred the development to start from the Tritton Road/Beevor Street
end and worked inwards to the development, as there were no residents in
that area to be impacted upon.

e He was told this was not possible based on cost. However, two bridges
would be built at Beevor Street and Tritton Road at a cost of £20 million
each.

e He was concerned as to how much return the applicant would get from
each of the 300 houses.

e Question

e Who would pay for the bridges?

e Why could the development not be started from Tritton Road end, perhaps
with a loop system to provide access and egress around Tritton
Road/Beevor Street?

e He could not support the proposed development due to its impact on
current residents in Birchwood, Boultham and Hartsholme.

Kieron Manning, Assistant Director of Planning, offered clarification to further
guestions raised as follows:

e The cycle routes would be fully separated/segregated routes, as part of
reserved matters detail.

e Potentially, the development could be built more quickly in the event of
planning policy changes, or market/economic conditions, although he
could not confirm this.

e In terms of the difference between this development jointly applied for by
the City of Lincoln Council and a local firm, and other developments that
may be outside of the City Council, as a Planning Authority it was
completely autonomous and had to be by law. All applicants were treated
exactly the same.

e Discussions were being held about funding streams for the two bridges
forming part of the development, Homes England in particular. This was an
issue for the applicant to resolve, although not necessarily a material
planning consideration relevant to the decision this evening.

e The development could not start from Tritton Road with the access bridge,
due to consideration of financial constraints for the applicant in terms of
delivering that first as opposed to the Skellingthorpe Road access point.

36



The proposed development was included in the current adopted Local
Plan, to be built and opened from Skellingthorpe Road end. No objections
were received from the Highways Authority. They were also tasked with
considering the planning application in front of us this evening.

Councillor Andrew Kerry commented as follows:

A long time ago a decision was made to convert soggy agricultural land
into desirable new dwellings, which would cause much grief and disquiet to
so many for so long.

The development raised concerns due to the impact of the increase of
potentially 450+ additional cars into the junction at Skellingthorpe Road. As
the Highway Authority had pointed out, there would not be a maximum of
81 extra cars at any one time.

The Council had always said there was a need for new houses, but this
was not an ideal site It was wet most of the time.

The whole development had changed since 2008, with the financial crisis
and housing crash. The plans changed, the dwellings changed, North
Kesteven District Council withdrew, and with this a chance of a link to the
A46.

The potential return also nose-dived due to a reduction in the number of
houses from 4,500 to 3,200, not good in a global crisis.

One of the suggestions to deal with the flooding problems was to raise the
land.

The problem here was the number of lorry journeys required to bring in soil
to make that transition.

They were told a Transport Plan would be put in place to prevent
overcrowding of the local roads. Residents were not convinced.

During the period the development was not ongoing, he felt the eye had
been taken off the ball somewhat although discussions were ticking over in
the background.

Local residents felt misinformed and that they were not being updated on
the proposals.

He attended several Council workshops, suggestions and comments were
listened to with a polite smile; before the officer launched into a rehearsed
script prepared in case of awkward questions.

Councillor Davies of Lincolnshire County Council had stated at its
Executive the other day that the amount of extra traffic generated on
Skellingthorpe Road from the proposed development would be
unacceptable, and this was the reason for raising an objection. He stated
that as a local authority the residents had to be their first priority.

Many of the residents he had spoken to in his ward agreed.

300 additional homes would trigger nothing more than a signalled junction
and a road onto Birchwood Avenue.

600 houses would trigger nothing more than a bridge over Tritton Road
railway line.

If there was another global crisis, should the project stall again due to raw
worldly economics without the centre link being built, then Skellingthorpe
Road would bear the brunt of it.

The Director of Major Developments quoted in the Lincolnite 23 March
2019 that the developer was confident the new road through the
development connecting Skellingthorpe Road to Tritton Road via a new
bridge would play a major part in reducing current traffic issues in
bypassing the congestion at the railway crossing.

37



e On 15 September 2020 the Lincolnite reported large parts of the
development’s spine road would be for buses, pedestrians and cyclists
only with a 20 mph speed limit put in place throughout the development.
Also, Project Planning Director, Mark Foster, said we had listened to
comments made and were confident the updated proposals mitigated the
transport impacts to the scheme and maximised sustainable transport
opportunities for the proposed residents of the development.

e As an Elected Member, he did not think this development would change
the current traffic problems they had.

e An independent report was commissioned which concluded that traffic
could cope.

e |t was often said that if you looked hard enough you could always find an
expert that agreed with you.

e |If the independent report had not backed up the position of the managing
group, he suggested it would have been discarded and forgotten about
completely.

e The Highway Authority was against the proposals in their current format,
also our MP, local residents and Ward Councillors.

e So, we had a development where never had there been the potential to
impose misery on so many for the benefit of so few.

e The development should be looked at again, incorporating a link road not
dedicated to buses/cycles and pedestrians to alleviate some of the issues.

e Everyone who lived at houses 1-300 of the new development and did not
want to head into town would exit on Skellingthorpe Road and go up
Birchwood Avenue or Doddington Road to take the shortest route even if
the road link was in place.

e As a Ward Councillor he needed assurances for his residents that traffic
issues would be addressed and there would be no more misery.

e He had also chosen not to speak as a Ward Advocate to enable his vote to
be counted.

e He could not support the planning application before us this evening as it
inflicted more misery than that we currently had.

Councillor Matthew Fido commented as follows:

e Building houses was a good thing. There were more people in our cities
and country than ever before. They needed good quality; well insulated
homes fit for the future.

e What did the future hold? Climate change was a huge threat to our way of
life and the standards they had become accustomed to.

e Polar ice caps were melting leading to rising sea levels in a world similar to
little mermaid under the sea. Temperatures were rising together with more
frequent extreme weather conditions, which had a knock-on effect on the
eco systems.

e The proposed development was located in a flood risk area. Was it wise to
build on a flood risk area even with the mitigation measures proposed?

e December 15, 2015 was the wettest month of the century. An estimated
16,000 homes in England alone were flooded, amounting to £1 billion in
insurance pay outs.

e |If this development went ahead, what assurances would be made by
insurance providers in the private sector to offer affordable policies with
broad enough coverage for homeowners.

e Unless he was mistaken, he had not seen any assurance in writing within
the officer report from the Association of British Insurers that this was the

38



case, although Mike Smith had given assurances in his speech. Could this
assurance be obtained before any permission was granted to avoid burden
on taxpayers further down the line?

A scheme between the government and UK insurers called FloodRE
offered affordable cover to homeowners in flood risk areas in place until
2039, but only applied to homes built before 1 January 2009.

The opportunity of being able to purchase an affordable home local to
where we lived and worked was a sweet reward. Many young people in
the city aspired to own their own home.

More homes were badly needed but people must feel safe and secure in
those homes. If people did not have insurance security and the worst
happened, thousands of families could be left without a home or any
financial means to help themselves out.

Was this flood risk going to be a problem 20-40 years down the line? They
spoke about industry standards for flood risks, but industry standards were
followed in the past in relation to such things as cladding, and where had
this left them as a country now.?

There was no such thing as government money, only taxpayers’ money
and where was that going to go?

Councillor Alan Briggs commented as follows:

He thanked officers for their comprehensive presentation and the relevant
printed documents made available to everyone.

731 pages for 33 Councillors amounted to 24,123 pages.

He also took the option not to act as Ward Advocate to enable him to vote
on this planning application on behalf of his Birchwood residents.

There had been so many written objections and various petitions
circulated.

He had been inundated with e mails detailing various
objections/observations, some being substantially factual.

The main objections were flooding, air and noise pollution, environmental
damage and traffic congestion.

The traffic congestion objections were not nimbyism; they were based on
residents’ personal experience, often after many years of suffering long
delays on a daily basis.

After attending a number of organised meetings over the last four years,
he had always kept an open mind on the viability/objectives of this project.
As a resident of Skellingthorpe Road himself, he had many times tirelessly
endured the endless traffic congestion.

The Western Growth Corridor was an ambitious project, but the present
proposals did not outweigh these issues only exacerbated them.

The spine road and bridges were key to this scheme being a success and
should be built first not last in six years’ time prior to completion of the final
phase in 20 years’ time.

Question

Why could funding not be obtained for the bridges?

In respect of mention of no-right turn at the end of Dixon Street, this would
cause mayhem on Rookery Lane and further congestion on Newark Road
at peak times.

He quoted from BSP consulting transport advice note 19 April 2021,
section 4 which stated that the existing bus routes 6 and 9 currently used
Dixon Street, however, only the number 9 service would benefit from

39



proposed bus improvements to the Dixon Street/High Street junction. That
equated to one bus every 20 minutes whilst the number 9 was running.
Other bus services serving southern areas of the city would benefit from
the proposed bus lane on High Street as quoted in mitigation package B.
Overall, it looked like the consequences of the proposed development
were worse than the potential benefits, which was difficult to rationalise in
light of the Council’s declaration of a climate emergency.

For these reasons, he would be unable to support this project like a
number of his colleagues.

Kieron Manning, Assistant Director of Planning, offered clarification to further
comments/questions raised as follows:

In terms of considering the application again in a different form in relation
to the link road, he referred again to a workshop held by officers, the
applicant side and the Highway Authority, which centred on that route and
its function. The County Council as Highway Authority suggested that the
route be engineered in such a way to prioritise buses and other modal shift
means and requested that it function in that way through the scheme. The
vehicular route would be a longer and slightly slower route through the
site. The route evolved in that way as presented to Planning Committee
this evening largely due to this request from the Highway Authority at that
time. We were also tasked with a remit to consider the planning application
in front of us this evening.

In relation to an assurance that the highways issues would be dealt with,
data had been examined by officers tirelessly over the last three years and
longer than that at pre application stage trying to resolve all the issues for
this site, principally the highways issues. As a local planning authority, they
were now satisfied with the proposed scheme having also taken third party
advice. As part of the planning balance, whilst it was clear there would be
a short-term impact, it was not considered to be in itself severe and would
improve once the link road was in place within the scheme.

In terms of insurance cover and the flood risk issue for the site, it was an
area at risk of flooding being in a flood zone although not a flood plain, the
works to raise the land levels would result in the development platforms no
longer being in a flood zone. This was the trigger point for residents in
obtaining insurance. This matter was not a material planning consideration
on which members could form the basis of decision making this evening.

In relation to the cost of the railway bridges, there were discussions
ongoing to obtain funding streams although not necessarily material to this
planning application. These discussions would not alter the phasing of the
scheme to allow Tritton Road to be delivered first, however it may bring
forward development of that Tritton Road link.

Councillor David Clarkson commented as follows:

He had read through all the planning papers and listened to all the
comments made with interest so far.

The planning application told them Skellingthorpe Road was one of the
main arterial routes into the city from the A46, however it had never
intended to be as a narrow B road.

The joint footpath/cycleways along the sides were not wide enough or fit
for purpose. In the winter fallen leaves from overgrown vegetation caused
slippery surfaces not safe for cyclists. He spoke as a cyclist.

The road had been congest%%for years and kept worsening.



Despite extensive developments in the area over many years, the only
highway improvement had been the installation of traffic lights at
Birchwood Avenue. There was no room for any further improvement
although badly needed

A packed public meeting to discuss traffic congestion from the then
proposed initial 600 houses in the area was held on 7 February 2019
almost three years ago at Alive Church, Birchwood.

They were told at the meeting there would be a link road to avoid the level
crossing, the source of the congestion from Skellingthorpe Road to Tritton
Road and Beevor Street, although it was unclear when the bridges would
be built.

There had been no further public meetings since that date, although the
proposal had changed significantly since then.

That link road was now a spine road with significant portions of it buses
only, cycling and walking.

Any other traffic would have to divert from the spine road through
residential areas and re-join the spine road the other end.

They had been told at meeting this was intentional to stop the spine road
being used as a rat run. Local residents in Birchwood and Hartsholme had
been promised a link road.

The spine road would not be built for 6 years, but we had no idea when
these other residential areas and roads would be built to give private
access to vehicles.

We were told the spine road was not for through traffic but at the same
time a contradictory statement said that congestion on Skellingthorpe
Road would be reduced as a result of it.

Traffic on Skellingthorpe Road was more horrendous than could be
imagined.

Much was made of the Transport Assessment although it was not included
in the agenda documents.

The Transport Assessment formed the basis of the justification for a
mitigation scheme to alleviate congestion on Skellingthorpe Road.

The document stated that the spine road would provide a faster, more
direct route for buses, cycles and pedestrians and an alternative route for
cars into the city from the A46 and Birchwood Avenue. It would provide a
more reliable journey, with regular delays at Skellingthorpe Road railway
crossing being bypassed providing an alternative route in the event of
unexpected incidents on the road network. To achieve this, it would need
to be a proper road.

Although the bridge and connected spine road would not be finished for
another 6 years, 300 homes and all construction traffic would access and
exit the site via Skellingthorpe Road.

The Transport Assessment stated that traffic surveys were conducted in
February 2020 at 9 road junctions to assess traffic impact on the early
development phases l1a and 1b using spreadsheet models. The data was
used to arrive at projected extra traffic levels. However, the surveys were
carried out on only one day. A queueing survey was also conducted using
cameras recording the longest queue in any 5 minute period. Traffic flows
were judged as low to moderate on Birchwood Avenue to the A46
roundabout and from Birchwood Avenue to Skellingthorpe Road during
peak hours, and no queue through the Birchwood Avenue/Skellingthorpe
Road junction. This was not the reality of what he saw every day.

Everyone who lived in the area saw long queues every day of the week at
any time of day, not to forget the rat run through narrow residential roads

41



at Ashby Avenue and Hemswell Avenue which the traffic survey failed to
mention.

Were the queues just ignored, did they not happen, but then why would
the bus lane onto Birchwood Avenue be required?

The traffic survey gave no mention of the root cause of the daily delay at
the A46 Skellingthorpe roundabout, or covered the projected proposed
alterations to it, perhaps due to using cameras rather than human records.
The Greater Lincoln Traffic Model was quoted regularly in the traffic
survey, described as a computer software package to forecast changes in
traffic movements. In terms of the Skellingthorpe Road crossing the
document stated this software package was not designed for modelling
activity at railway junctions and was coded as a signalised junction
instead. There was no similarity between the two, the data did not provide
certainty, only approximations.

The accuracy of the data should be treated with scepticism.

The predictions did not take account of the substantial housing
development taking place in Skellingthorpe village.

Mitigation measures proposed for package A claimed to create extra
capacity for 100 vehicles, improving the situation, which included traffic
lights and pedestrian crossings at Birchwood Avenue junctions However, it
stated that the proposal to put in a yellow box junction at Doddington Road
had not been analysed for capacity, another guestimate, even though this
was proposed as an alternative route for vehicles instead of Skellingthorpe
Road.

Changes were also proposed to the Tritton Road/Doddington Road
approach to avoid blockages caused by vehicles turning right from Whisby
Road. This was due to traffic being slow moving when the lights tuned red
with stationary traffic across the junction. Yellow box junctions were not
adhered to and largely ignored.

The alternative route along Doddington Road to avoid congestion was
much longer than accessing the city along other routes, it still required
drivers to negotiate a railway crossing and was just as congested.

There was no new route to divert motorists.

Residents told him getting out of Forest Park onto the A46 was a
nightmare.

There were also issues with insufficient bus services. Stagecoach did not
respond to the consultation process but stated they would not increase bus
services.

There would be only three buses an hour on the spine road which was bus
superiority.

Cars were here to stay. He called into question the validity of the modelling
used, surveys completed on just one day, and calculation of traffic flows
and could not support this planning application. His residents would not
forgive him.

Councillor Clare Smalley commented as follows:

She thanked everyone for the information provided this evening, the
people who had taken part in the presentation which was incredibly useful
as well as all the documents received. She was very pleased many were
able to make comments and to contact local councillors to answer their
queries.

42



She would keep her speech short as a lot of people had already
mentioned issues she planned to talk about, particularly in relation to
flooding.

She acknowledged it had been clarified that insurance was not a planning
consideration.

She also referred to the platforms to be built and welcomed the
consideration that had been given in the report to potential additional
rainfall in the future.

Questions

Could officers clarify what increased levels of rainfall had been considered
and how fool proof that guarantee would be?

In terms of the traffic analysis and the fact it was only carried out on one
day, in February 2020, not likely to be the busiest day due to the
pandemic, should more detailed analysis have been conducted at that
point?

In relation to comments made regarding the risk of the developers pulling
out after the first 300 houses had been built, she understood that cost-wise
it was more beneficial to build these homes first, however it left them in a
vulnerable position. She understood there were assurances but were there
any guarantees or penalties in that regard?

They could be left in a position with 300 non-affordable homes; 20% of
affordable housing was welcome, but many people wanting to live in our
city struggled to find it. Could an element of the first 300 homes be
affordable?

If the new development was not built to a conclusion, they would be in a
position with no new affordable housing.

Councillor Gary Hewson commented as follows:

He noted comments made by Kate Ellis, during her presentation stating
that it was not a matter of when or if this application would take place, it
would be delivered without a doubt as a designated area in the Local Plan
for housing development. Economic development considerations were
also involved.

If this development was refused, it would be like ‘throwing the baby out
with the bath water’. The only way to solve the problems on Tritton Road
was to build a route over the railway line.

Councillor Bean had been campaigning to solve problems on
Skellingthorpe Road over the years also recognised the issue was the
railway line.

The railway line would not go away, raising it or diverting it underground
would not happen.

This development needed mitigation measures in place to cope with the
additional 81 vehicles expected to exit the proposed first stage of the
development.

Questions

We had been told there was another development further down the road
over which this planning authority had no input, to provide 600 homes in
Skellingthorpe. Would the developers of that scheme contribute to the
building of the bridge over the railway line? A great deal of the vehicles
from the site would use Skellingthorpe Road.

Was the developer allowed to make changes to the highway without the
agreement of the Highway Authority? Would the Council as a private

43



developer be allowed to do this as the Highway Authority was not in
support of the mitigation measures proposed?

It was disappointing that the main bus operator to benefit from this scheme
had failed to make any comments.

He referred to the Travel Plan for the proposed development contained
within the agenda documents designed to encourage people to use
alternative forms of transport. Could the bus operator encourage people to
make that change by providing discount ticket for commuters? For a young
family it was much cheaper to travel by car and park in the city centre than
use the local bus service.

There had to be encouragement from the operators who would benefit
from the development having bus lanes to get people into the city centre
more quickly, otherwise local people would not use the service.

He thanked officers for their fine presentation.

He thanked all those people who had contacted him by e mail with
concerns regarding flood risk and transport issues, he felt that all the
concerns had been answered correctly this evening and he had no
problem in supporting the proposed development on the table.

He had not heard anything from the County Council representative tonight
regarding mitigation measures it would put in place as Highway Authority
to deal with the traffic congestion it was well aware of on Skellingthorpe
Road. It had failed to do anything about it.

He felt the Highway Authority recognised too the only way to address the
traffic problems was a route over the railway line. This application gave
them the chance to take advantage of that opportunity. Those councillors
expressing concerns about the proposed development must support this
view.

The railway line was here to stay. Nobody wanted freight to be transported
on the road network. They had to look forward.

All governments recognised new houses were needed.

This planning development had been taken very seriously. Two previous
developers had walked away because they were not prepared to agree to
the type of scheme they wanted on that site.

The council had spent a great deal of money to arrive at the application
being brought forward tonight.

He urged for a push to get the bridge and spine road to come into fruition
before six years.

He urged everyone to work together with the developer and Highway
Authority to move this development forward, not to stand still.

It was needed for housing, employment and economic prospects.

He urged acceptance of the application.

Councillor Chris Burke commented as follows:

He thanked officers for all their hard work and partners including Lindum
Construction Group for working alongside the City of Lincoln Council.
Officers should not be put off by negative comments received tonight,
although he wanted to thank those who made such comments as there
was no doubt, they all cared about this development and their city,
including those people making contributions from the floor.

If he had learnt anything about Planning Committees during his time here
and at Lincolnshire County Council, it was that planners were capable of
bringing radical change if they had the courage.

44



Councillor Hewson had made inspiring comments and encapsulated much
of what he was going to say.

They all needed to have the courage of our convictions.

The County Council as Highway Authority needed to stand up to the mark
here

In his opinion this County Council as Highway Authority should take its
responsibilities seriously, then the public transport of this City would be
transformed, and fewer cars required.

In his Ward many residents were lucky to have a car at all and were
desperately reliant on defective public transport.

Question

Could officers expand on the car-free element of the proposals. It was not
an automatic assumption that they would always be reliant on motor cars.
Changes to move to electric cars had started, fewer people would own
cars eventually as pressure increased for public transport to be improved

If they failed to have the courage to build this housing development those
aspiring homeowners referred to would always remain as such,

Would officers agree if these homes were not built there would be more
appalling levels of infill developments?

Changes made by the government made it very difficult for them to refuse
infill developments even if they knew they were a bad idea.

To support their children and grandchildren who were struggling for
housing, they must support this huge project.

The project did have imperfections. It was the biggest one he had seen in
his lifetime, but he believed the mitigation levels proposed particularly
around issues of the flood plain had been ably answered by experts.

He had made the decision based on the professional advice of officers and
partners that this was a crucial development which we all should support.

Kieron Manning, Assistant Director of Planning, offered clarification to further
comments/questions raised as follows:

In terms of flood risk and the robustness of information used in respect of
levels of rainfall, this was in accordance with Environment Agency’s
projections. All the work pertained to flood risk had been done in
cooperation with the Environment Agency both at pre application stage
and as statutory consultee during the application stage.

It was not possible for the Planning Authority to give any guarantee about
delivery beyond the first 300 houses at Phase 1 of the scheme. It was in
the gift of members to consider this on balance considering all the
evidence provided, however, it was the belief of the planning authority that
it would be delivered. The application team and independent specialist
advice was also saying this. As the application team included the City
Council, there were routes and mechanisms for Members to drive that
agenda forward should it not be going in the direction they saw fit.

It was regrettable that the first 300 homes would not be affordable,
however the planning authority was tasked to provide sustainable
development. Deliverability and viability were part of the consideration as
to whether the development was acceptable. There were mechanisms
within the conditions of the scheme as a whole for a minimum of 20%
affordable homes to be provided across the site. Some phases may be
well above 20% even as much as 100% in areas with registered social
landlord schemes. The Planning Authority gave an assurance that a

45



minimum of 20% affordable housing would be provided across this
scheme.

e Developers could not carry out works to the highways network without
permission. There was a legal consent process to be followed seeking
agreement from the Highway Authority. In the event that the County
Council were against any proposals, caselaw suggested a requirement for
the Highway Authority to cooperate in matters where it objected to a
scheme which was subsequently approved planning permission.

e In terms of car ownership, in some situations they may see some car free
development across the site although there were no guarantees. In order
to arrive at the global phasing of the site, some homes would see more off
street parking and others less.

e In response to being asked whether they would see more infill
developments if planning permission was refused tonight, this was not for
him to comment. However, should the application be refused, there would
need to be 3,200 dwellings worth of sites found across Central
Lincolnshire.

Councillor Dyer reminded Mr Manning, Assistant Director of Planning that he had
not responded to many of the points made by Councillor Clarkson. Was he able
to do this or would he like Councillor Clarkson to repeat them?

Mr Manning responded that he would not request Councillor Clarkson repeated
his points verbatim. A number of pertinent technical comments were made. He
was not aware of any specific questions asked. In response to the issues raised,
the methodology used for the traffic assessments conducted was in consultation
and agreement with the Highway Authority. We ourselves were not highway
experts. They sought advice from our statutory consultee and commissioned an
external appraisal of the sustainability of the scheme. Together with the mitigation
measures proposed they were in support of it. The Highway Authority was not
disputing the data, it was that it did not agree with the applicant and considered
the severity of the impact from the first 300 dwellings was too great. It was the
remit of Members of Planning Committee to decide as to whether or not they
agreed with this.

Councillor Thomas Dyer commented as follows:

e It was wonderful to see City of Lincoln Council finally live streaming a
meeting.

e He had just checked, he wanted to thank the circa 160 people watching
the proceedings from their homes.

e He thanked all those people still here in the audience for bearing with
them.

e There was no doubt this was a significant decision to be made tonight,
having lasting implications on or City and the world once they had
departed.

e There was without a doubt significant demand for more housing, leisure
space and business space.

e Councillor Metcalfe suggested no left turn onto Skellingthorpe Road from
the development; he was pleased to hear this suggestion would not go
ahead.

e During the opening remarks of the Planning Committee, it was stated that
engagement with statutory consultees and the public had been an
important part of this application. However, what was the point of the

46



consultation process if mass objections from members of the public and
statutory authorities such as the County Council were ignored.

e The transport implications were the main objection from residents;
however, the link road would not be constructed until Phase 2 of the
scheme was completed, many years ahead with unsuitable mitigation to
that point.

e Planning officers had confirmed during the meeting that the link road and
associated bridges could be built, they all wanted them to say they ‘will be
built’ In his view this could not be guaranteed 100%.

e In respect of flood risk, it was noted that linear channels would be widened
within the development

e Question

e Would these channels be riparian channels maintained by the City Council
or by the land owning residents?

e One speaker raised uncertainty over Network Rail approving the bridge.
Could officers confirm the situation in this respect?

e Another speaker referred to the Environment Act, which he would speak to
later.

e He thanked Miss Kipley for her interesting verbal and written comments.

e He could not find a car parking space on a visit to Hartsholme Park
recently, would there be any improvements to green spaces and leisure
facilities in that area?

e He wished to focus on the objection to Phase la by the Highway Authority
and a comment by Mr Manning stating it was debatable whether the
funding of the Tritton Road link was material. The recommendation before
them was based on the confidence of the Tritton Road bridge being
constructed before the 301t dwelling, so fundamental to the planning
authority’s confidence that any highway impact was short lived. Therefore,
funding of the link must be material?

e The report accepted there would be some impact on local roads, the key
consideration was to determine suitable mitigation measures to alleviate
the congestion.

e The local residents knew the area best, and he hoped all members had
read all their concerns.

e Proposed improvements to Doddington Road whilst welcome were
insignificant to problems on Skellingthorpe Road where no improvements
were proposed. Was this a suitable mitigation measure encouraging
motorists to take a longer route bearing in mind implications on climate
change?

e The Highway Authority supported construction of the spine road before
any of the homes were occupied, in his view a matter wanted by many
local residents.

e The Highway Authority maintained our road network, he agreed with their
analysis of the situation over a third-party consultant with no long term
obligation to the people of Lincoln, or residents of Birchwood and
Hartsholme.

e The consultants outlined their deliverability assessment at page 43 of the
report based completely on finances, ignoring the political reality of the
government’s White Paper and that local government reorganisation may
result in the City Council no longer in existence in 2 years’ time, let alone
30 years’ time.

The Chair instructed Councillor Dyer to refrain from making political comments
within his speech.

a7



Councillor Dyer continued:

e Rather than find an expert who agreed with the applicant, both the
applicants and the planning authority should take the concerns raised by
the Highway Authority very seriously to ensure appropriate mitigation was
carried out first rather than wait for Phase 1b of the scheme.

e Should the application be approved this evening, potentially they could be
left in a few years’ time with 300 properties, no link road and further
congestion on Skellingthorpe Road, and the developers would still be
within their remit for planning consent.

e He was unable to vote in favour of the proposed development if the vote
was to disregard the objections made by the Highway Authority in relation
to infrastructure issues.

e If the planning application was to ensure the appropriate infrastructure as
set out by the County Council was constructed as requested, it was highly
likely he would have taken a different view.

e He was open to any alternative proposal or amendment put forward by
members tonight.

e The Local Plan was currently being updated. The Environment Act casted
significant demands on our decision making, however, the proposed
development was not required to meet the new ambitious environmental
criteria set out in the proposed amended Local Plan as it was a live
application.

e For such a large-scale development, the applicant had fallen well short of
the standards they would expect developers to adhere to in the
forthcoming months.

e He could not vote in support of this application in good conscience as it
disregarded the serious objections made by the Highway Authority and he
hoped colleagues had the same view.

e Despite all the taxpayer's money, time, effort, condescending comments
from all the various experts, the application did not have the support of key
stakeholder, local residents, local councillors in the development area, or
support of local county councillors, or their MP.

e Based on all the information before him he would not be supporting the
application.

Councillor Lucinda Preston commented as follows:

e She thanked officers for the superb organisation of the meeting. She
particularly thanked officers calm and patient responses to questions. It
was a showcase for officers which the public did not always get to see, she
was personally grateful for this.

e She referred to a point made this evening that the car was not going
anywhere.

e They had talked about the various ways they mitigated the impact of cars
such as electric charging points etc.

e Since Covid-19 the way they lived their lives was changing.

e There had been a lot of discussion on the impact from this development on
traffic both shorter and longer term.

e More and more businesses were changing to remote working since Covid-
19, many people worked partly from home now as they saw from their own
Council.

e Online shopping had also increased.

48



Question
Given all these factors, what were the views of officers on the impacts on
traffic over the next twenty years with fewer car journeys?

Councillor Christopher Reid commented as follows:

There was no doubt further housing was needed in Lincoln and beyond.
However, they must consider this scheme on its merits.

It had to be the right housing in the correct location at the right time.
Comments made on page 29 of the report referred to HGV movements
onto the site. It was stated there would be a negligible environmental
impact given that HGVs would already be on route carrying HGV traffic.
However, that HGV traffic was not already going into the development site
roads, so he questioned this reasoning.

It also stated the level of 250 units a year being constructed was not
anticipated to generate an environmental impact from HGV movements.
He assumed this had been miswritten. To claim that the 4,000 HGV
movements predicted had no impact was hard to understand if officers
wished to explain.

It was clear to him from what he had heard this evening that the way the
Council had gone about this application had resulted in a breakdown in
public trust, particularly in the affected areas of Boultham, Birchwood and
Hartsholme. This was clear from the countless number of objections
received.

The proposed conditions offered by the Highway Authority within their
objection would go some way to try to resolve that.

At the moment no one was happy to take the Council’s word on future
infrastructure.

A speaker for the applicant stated the traffic issues on Skellingthorpe Road
could not be solved without the bridge. Lindum stated they needed the
bridge to move forward to solve the traffic issues. He totally agreed and
the bridge should be constructed first.

The applicants had stated this evening these were not profit delivered
choices, however when asked why the bridge would not be built first, it
was due to cost.

Similar to comments made by Councillor Smalley regarding affordable
houses, if it was not about profit why was there none in the first part of the
scheme.

He agreed that a no left turn onto Skellingthorpe Road from the
development would cause problems.

He referred to the deliverability report with several comments made that
the applicants would not walk away after the first phase because they had
not made any money. At what point in this scheme would this cease to be
the case? Was there any likelihood they would ever make money out of
the scheme given the first phase was less financially draining than the
bridge, link road and affordable housing to follow.

Officers commented regarding the potential 81 vehicles coming from the
site not being mitigated by the measures on Doddington Road, and that
there was no modelling given by the County Council in this respect. Was
there any modelling by the applicants about the number of cars using
Skellingthorpe Road going forward, or was this opinion? The applicant’s
research should be based on actual evidence.

Question

49



Comments were made that traffic issues would be short-term to be
mitigated by the bridges in the future, however 6 years’ time was not short-
term. If the development did not proceed after Phase 1 this would mean
forever. Where would officers draw the line on short-term?

He could not support this planning application as there was no mitigation
for the problems it would cause for the city.

The Chair advised that he would ask Mr Manning to respond to further comments
raised. After this, unless there was any member wishing to speak who had not
already done so he would then move to the vote.

Kieron Manning, Assistant Director of Planning, offered clarification to further
comments/questions raised as follows:

The drainage channels would be sustainable urban system drainage
channels adopted by Lincolnshire County Council as lead Flood Authority.
The construction of the bridges had agreement in principle from Network
Rail. The detail would follow in terms of the conditions attached to the
planning consent.

Improvements to green space adjacent to the site included additional play
space in Hartsholme Country Park as part of early delivery of the scheme.
As a point of clarification, the delivery of the bridge link from Tritton Road
and the funding required as part of that was a material planning
consideration, however he had referred earlier to the source of the funding
which was not in itself a material consideration.

The applicants had not challenged viability for Western Growth Corridor,
and had ensured it was a policy compliant scheme in totality

In relation to post Covid-19 and the rising of the home working movement,
all of the assessments and modelling in relation to traffic movements were
carried out pre-covid, and as such based on a worst case scenario. They
did not have more recent data on the impact on Covid-19 other than
anecdotal data from them as residents to the effect that there had been a
reduction in traffic.

The HGV movements referred to by Councillor Reid were part of the
consideration under the Environmental Impact Regulations, to assess the
significance of the scale and level of impact. The information quoted in the
report was accurate and not a mistake at 7 HGV movements over the
course of a day as it equated to 4,000 over the course of the development.
It was considered this number was not significant in terms of
environmental impact.

In response to at what point short-term was considered no longer short-
term, this was not defined in planning terms. Over the course of an urban
extension of 22-23 years anticipated delivery, six years was short-term in
relative terms. Members must decide whether they agreed with this
assessment.

In terms of deliverability work undertaken by Aspinall Verdi, their advice
centred on the concerns around the first 300 homes, he could not give a
specific number of dwellings or financial sum at which point the
development would realise a profit for the developer. However, the first
300 homes was a trigger point for the planning authority for the scheme to
move forward to see the delivery of the wider structure.

Specific modelling by Lincolnshire County Council to argue against the
proposed development had not been provided. However, significant
modelling work had been produced by the applicants in support of the

50



development, as agreed by Lincolnshire County Council as Highway
Authority.

The Chair requested they moved to the vote given there were no additional
members wishing to speak.

Councillor Thomas Dyer suggested that a recorded vote be taken, which was
supported by Councillor Ric Metcalfe, and agreed by members of the Committee.

The recommendations as detailed in the report were duly moved, seconded, and
put to a vote, with the results of the vote recorded as follows:

For

Councillor Bilton
Councillor C Burke
Councillor S Burke
Councillor B Bushell
Councillor L Bushell
Councillor Hewson
Councillor J Kirk
Councillor R Kirk
Councillor Loffhagen
Councillor Longbottom

Against Abstention
Councillor Briggs
Councillor Clarkson
Councillor Dyer
Councillor Fido
Councillor Kerry
Councillor Mara
Councillor Reid
Councillor Smalley
Councillor Spratt
Councillor Storer

Councillor Mair
Councillor Metcalfe
Councillor Preston
Councillor Vaughan
Councillor Woolley
Councillor Watt

Councillor Strengiel

RESOLVED that:
1. The petition from local residents be received.
2. Planning permission be granted subiject to the following conditions:

Full Application

e Carried out within 3 years
e Carried out in accordance with the plans
e Tritton Road Bridge built prior to occupation of 3015t dwelling

Outline Application

Reserved Matters (RM) standard conditions

Carried out in accordance with Design Guide

Each RM to include an Ecological Appraisal

Each RM to include an Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation
Phasing Plan to be submitted prior to commencement of development
Each RM to have a Construction Management Plan

Detailed drainage phasing plan

Contaminated Land conditions

Stadium Traffic Management plan

51



e Parking plan

e Highway Construction Management Plan

e Estate Road Phasing and Completion Plan

e National Highways Construction Traffic Management Plan
e Site wide Travel Plan

e Scheme to secure NHS places

e Scheme to secure enhanced bus connectivity

e Scheme to deliver a primary school on site

e Details of the link road

e Design for a piece of play equipment at Hartsholme Park
e Scheme for off-site Gypsy and Traveller provision

e Open Space management and maintenance strategy

e Leisure Strategy

e Design details for the Beevor Street bridge

e Updated Air Quality Assessment

e Details for a Mobility Hub

e Scheme for affordable housing phasing and delivery

e Outline Drainage Strategy

e Veteran tree buffer zones

Background Papers

BSP Transport Advice Note April 2021
Aspinall Verdi Deliverability Report September 2021

Glossary of Acronyms

EA — Environment Agency

EIA — Environmental Impact Assessment

ES — Environmental Statement

IDB — Internal Drainage Board

LCC — Lincolnshire County Council

LPA — Local Planning Authority

NPPF — National Planning Policy Framework
SUE - Sustainable Urban Extension

WGC — Western Growth Corridor

52



Item No. 1b
Planning Committee 26 January 2022

Present: Councillor Naomi Tweddle (in the Chair),
Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor
Alan Briggs, Councillor Liz Bushell, Councillor
Gary Hewson, Councillor Rebecca Longbottom,
Councillor Bill Mara, Councillor Edmund Strengiel and
Councillor Calum Watt

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Chris Burke and Councillor Mark Storer

62. Confirmation of Minutes - 1 December 2021

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2021 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

63. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Naomi Tweddle declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in relation to
Minute 66(b) — Lincoln Central Market, Sincil Street, Lincoln and Minute 66(c) —
Lincoln Central Market, Sincil Street, Lincoln (LBC), as her husband worked for
Major Developments at the City of Lincoln Council. Councillor Tweddle advised
that she would leave the meeting for the consideration of these items.

Councillor Gary Hewson declared a Personal Interest with regard to Minute 66(a)
— Land at Beever Street, Lincoln, as he served as a member of the Upper Witham
Drainage Board. Councillor Hewson advised that he had duly considered whether
this interest was a pecuniary interest under the Member Code of Conduct. When
taking into consideration the reasonable member of the public test, as outlined in
the Code of Conduct, and the assessment of how much this application would
affect the Drainage Board, he did not consider that his interest was a pecuniary
interest. He would therefore be participating in the meeting as a member of the
Committee.

Councillor Rebecca Longbottom declared a Personal Interest with regard to
Minute 66(a) — Land at Beever Street, Lincoln, as she served as a member of the
Upper Witham Drainage Board. Councillor Longbottom advised that she had duly
considered whether this interest was a pecuniary interest under the Member
Code of Conduct. When taking into consideration the reasonable member of the
public test, as outlined in the Code of Conduct, and the assessment of how much
this application would affect the Drainage Board, she did not consider that her
interest was a pecuniary interest. She would therefore be participating in the
meeting as a member of the Committee.

64. Update Sheet

An update sheet was circulated in advance of the meeting, which included:

e Proposed conditions for Lincoln Central Market, Sincil Street, Lincoln
2021/0849/FUL and 2021/0850/LBC

RESOLVED that the update sheet be received by the Planning Committee.

53



65.

66.
67.

Work to Trees in City Council Ownership

Dave Walker, Arboricultural Officer:

a. advised the Committee of the reasons for proposed works to trees in the
City Council’'s ownership and sought consent to progress the works
identified, as detailed at Appendix A of his report.

b. highlighted that the list did not represent all the work undertaken to Council
owned trees, it represented all the instances where a tree was either
identified for removal, or where a tree enjoyed some element of protection
under planning legislation, and thus formal consent was required.

c. explained that ward councillors had been notified of the proposed works.

RESOLVED that the works set out in the schedules appended to the report be
approved.

Applications for Development
Land at Beevor Street, Lincoln.

The Assistant Director of Planning:

(a) advised that this was a hybrid application for a mixed use development on
land to the north of Beevor Street. The full element of the application
proposed five industrial buildings, comprising a total of 21 units, for the
flexible use within Use Classes B2, B8 and E(g). The outline element of
the application proposed offices within Use Class E(g)(i), with details of
scale to be considered.

(b) highlighted that the full application included Building A, which was a large
unit with ancillary offices located close to the entrance to the site The
remaining four buildings; B, C, D and E, would be located along the south
west boundary, each subdivided into five units. The buildings would be for
the purposes of general industrial use (B2) and storage and distribution
(B8), with ancillary office space (E(g)). The units would be served by a
total of 43 car parking spaces, cycle parking, landscaping and two areas
for landscaped SuDs features.

(c) confirmed that the outline element of the application proposed two office
buildings. An indicative plan had identified the proposed footprint and
position of these, although it was highlighted that the matter of scale was
to be considered as part of the application. The indicative plan also
proposed associated car parking, cycle parking and areas of landscaping,
including a further SuDS feature.

(d) explained that the application site was an irregular shaped parcel of
previously developed land. The site was relatively flat and comprised
areas of concrete and stone hardstanding associated with the former use
as a storage and distribution yard. Areas of soil and scrub were present
towards the north and west of the site.

(e) highlighted that the site was located within Flood Zones 2 and 3.

54



(f) also highlighted that revised plans and information had been submitted
during the process of the application to address comments and concerns
from officers, the Environment Agency, the City Council’s Pollution Control
Officer and Lincolnshire County Council. These were detailed within the
report.

(9) provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development;
e Policy LP2: The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy;

Policy LP5: Delivering Prosperity and Jobs;

Policy LP13: Accessibility and Transport;

Policy LP14: Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk;

Policy LP16: Development on Land affected by Contamination;
Policy LP25: The Historic Environment;

Policy LP26: Design and Amenity; and

National Planning Policy Framework.

(h) confirmed that consultations were carried out in accordance with the
Statement of Community Involvement, adopted January 2018.

(i) outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise.
() concluded that:

e the site was located as a Strategic Employment Site within the
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan, and the principle of the proposed
uses were acceptable.

e the layout, scale, height and design of the industrial units, the
subject of the full element of the application, were considered to be
appropriate.

e while the layout, access, external appearance, and landscaping in
relation to the outline element of the proposal were all reserved for
later consideration, officers had no objection in principle to the
indicative details provided.

e the scale of the offices had been considered, to which there was no
objection.

e it was considered that the developments would make effective use
and efficient use of land and would reflect the architectural style of
the local surroundings.

e the proposal would not have an undue impact on neighbouring uses
and properties.

e matters relating to highways, flood risk, surface water drainage, foul
water drainage, dust, air quality, contamination, archaeology, and
trees had been appropriately considered by officers and the
relevant statutory consultees, and could be dealt with as required by
condition.

The Committee was provided with an opportunity to ask questions, where the
following points were noted:

e It was confirmed that the proposals would not impact on the proposed
bridge for the Western Growth Corridor spine road, as the landing point for
the bridge would be further east;

55



Members of the Committee recognised that the proposed changes were
much needed and could result in an increase in jobs within the City.

The life of the buildings was queried, and it was advised that it was difficult
to put a life span on such buildings owing to the materials used,
particularly as they had brick bases. However, it was emphasised that the
building proposals were as sustainable as they could be.

The design of the SuDS would form part of a landscaping condition.

It was queried whether the number of proposed e-parking spaces were
adequate for the future. In response, it was advised that new regulations
were anticipated in 2023 which would introduce a ratio for e-parking and
electronic vehicle charging points.

It was highlighted that EMR had raised concerns over potential noise, and
it was advised that this would be addressed as part of reserved matters.
Similarly, any concerns with regards to security would be addressed at the
reserved matters stage.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions with delegated authority granted to the Assistant Director of Planning
to secure the financial contributions as required by Lincolnshire County Council
through a S106 Agreement:

Conditions

Full planning permission

Time limit of the permission

Development in accordance with approved plans

Site characterisation, contamination remediation and implementation
Construction Management Plan

Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation

In accordance with FRA

No drainage systems installed without consent

Proposed site and floor levels

Details of boundary treatments, including wall and gates at site entrance
Samples of materials

Landscaping scheme

Surfacing details

Implementation of Travel Plan

Specification for EV charging points

Restriction on changes to other uses within the Use Class E

Outline consent

Time limit for submission of reserved matters and implementation of
permission

Submission of reserved matters relating to layout, external appearance,
access, and landscaping

Development in accordance with approved plans

Site characterisation, contamination remediation and implementation
Construction Management Plan

Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation

In accordance with FRA

No drainage systems without consent

56



68.

Noise impact assessment
Proposed site and floor levels
Implementation of Travel Plan
Scheme for EV charging points

e Restriction on changes to other uses within the Use Class E

Lincoln Central Market, Sincil Street, Lincoln

(Councillor Naomi Tweddle left the room for the rest of the meeting at this stage
of proceedings, having declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in the remaining
items to be considered. She took no part in the discussion or vote on the matters
to be determined.)

(Councillor Bob Bushell took the Chair for the remainder of the meeting.)

The Planning Team Leader:

(a) outlined an application submitted for:

the erection of a new substation to the rear / side of the Central
Market building;

additional kitchen extraction equipment, including a new external
cowl flue to the roof.

the previously approved external bid store was also subject to a
revision.

(b) highlighted that an accompanying application for listed building consent
had also been submitted, as detailed at Minute 66(c).

(c) advised that planning permission and listed building consent had been
approved by the Committee in June 2021 for the wholescale refurbishment
and extension of the existing market building, including the insertion of a
mezzanine and also the opening up of the blind arches, to enable the
market to provide a retail and food offering more in line with current
commercial needs and welcomed investment into the listed building.

(d) confirmed that the property was grade Il listed and was located within the
Cathedral City Centre and Conservation Area No.1.

(e) advised that the site was situated within the Central Mixed-Use Area and
was also part of the primary shopping street, as identified in the Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

(f) provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

Policy LP25: The Historic Environment;

Policy LP26: Design and Amenity;

Policy LP27: Main Town Centre Uses - Frontages and
Advertisements; and

National Planning Policy Framework.

(9) highlighted that the application was submitted by the City of Lincoln
Council, as owners of the building.

57



(h) confirmed that consultations were carried out in accordance with the
Statement of Community Involvement, adopted January 2018.

(i) outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise.
() concluded that:

e the proposed substation was required for the successful operation
of the refurbished market building, which would be freestanding and
located to the rear of the site where public views were limited.

e the proposed additional air intake system was required to enable
the successful functioning of the building. Views of the external cowl
and louvre inserts to the existing window apertures would be limited
and had been carefully considered with regard to their position,
colour and finish.

e the proposed revision to the bin store as for vertically installed larch
hit and miss boarding in place of the previously approved grey
aluminium horizontal louvres, would be located to the rear of the
site where public views were limited.

e the proposed works were not therefore considered to detract from
the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building and
were therefore in accordance with both local and national planning

policy.

In response to a question, it was confirmed that it was proposed that the bin store
would now be made from wood, opposed to aluminium, which had been deemed
appropriate for a listed building.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set
out below.

Conditions
1) Prior to works commencing on site to install the substation, details of the
colour finish for the substation shall be submitted to and approved by the
City of Lincoln Council, as Local Planning Authority. The substation shall
be installed in accordance with the approved colour details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and the setting
of the listed building.

2) The bin store and roof cowl shall be finished in RAL 7024 at installation
and shall be retained as such at all times.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the setting of the listed
building.

69. Lincoln Central Market, Sincil Street, Lincoln (LBC)

The Planning Team Leader:

(a) outlined an application submitted for Listed Building Consent (LBC) at
Lincoln Central Market, Sincil Street, Lincoln requesting:

58



e the erection of a new substation to the rear / side of the Central
Market building;

e additional kitchen extraction equipment, including a new external
cowl flue to the roof.

e the previously approved external bid store was also subject to a
revision.

(b) advised that planning permission and listed building consent had been
approved by the Committee in June 2021 for the wholescale refurbishment
and extension of the existing market building, including the insertion of a
mezzanine and also the opening up of the blind arches, to enable the
market to provide a retail and food offering more in line with current
commercial needs and welcomed investment into the listed building.

(c) confirmed that the property was grade Il listed and was located within the
Cathedral City Centre and Conservation Area No.1.

(d) advised that the site was situated within the Central Mixed-Use Area and
was also part of the primary shopping street, as identified in the Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan.

(e) provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy LP25 The Historic Environment; and
e National Planning Policy Framework.

() highlighted that the application was submitted by the City of Lincoln
Council, as owners of the building.

(g) confirmed that consultations were carried out in accordance with the
Statement of Community Involvement, adopted January 2018.

(h) outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise.
(i) concluded that:

e the proposed substation was required for the successful operation
of the refurbished market building, which would be freestanding and
located to the rear of the site where public views were limited.

e the proposed additional air intake system was required to enable
the successful functioning of the building. Views of the external cowl
and louvre inserts to the existing window apertures would be limited
and had been carefully considered with regard to their position,
colour and finish.

e The proposed revision to the bin store as for vertically installed larch
hit and miss boarding in place of the previously approved grey
aluminium horizontal louvres, would be located to the rear of the
site where public views were limited.

e the proposed works were not therefore considered to detract from
the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building and
were therefore in accordance with both local and national planning

policy.

RESOLVED that the planning permission for Listed Building Consent be granted
subject to the conditions as set outéagelow.



Conditions

1)

2)

3)

Prior to work commencing on site to install the internal duct work to the
interior of the Central Market, details of the proposed duct works shall be
submitted to and approved by the City of Lincoln Council as Local
Planning Authority (LPA). The details shall include the location of the duct
work, method of attachment, visuals of the proposed duct work, materials,
colour finish and dimensions. The ducting shall be installed in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the special architectural and historic interest
of the listed building.

Prior to the installation of the louvres to the existing windows, details of the
grey colour for the louvres shall be submitted to and approved by the City
of Lincoln Council as LPA. The louvres shall be installed in accordance
with the approved colour details.

Reason: In the interests of the special architectural character and historic
interest of the listed building.

The bin store and roof cowl shall be finished in RAL 7024 at installation
and shall be retained as such at all times.

Reason: In the interests of the special architectural character and historic
interest of the listed building.

60



Item No. 1c

Planning Committee 23 February 2022

Present: Councillor Bob Bushell (in the Chair),

Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor Alan Briggs, Councillor
Chris Burke, Councillor Liz Bushell, Councillor

Gary Hewson, Councillor Rebecca Longbottom,
Councillor Mark Storer, Councillor Edmund Strengiel,
Councillor Pat Vaughan and Councillor Calum Watt

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Naomi Tweddle and Councillor Bill Mara

70.

71.

72.

Declarations of Interest

Councillor Alan Briggs declared a Personal and Pecuniary Interest with regard to
the agenda item titled 'Land Adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre, Riseholme
Road, Lincoln'. Reason: He knew one of the objectors as a friend.

He left the room during the consideration of this item and took no part in the
deliberations or vote on the matter to be determined.

Councillor Edmund Strengiel declared a Personal and Pecuniary Interest with
regard to the agenda item titled 'Land Adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre,
Riseholme Road, Lincoln'. Reason: He knew one of the objectors as a friend.

He left the room during the consideration of this item and took no part in the
deliberations or vote on the matter to be determined.

Councillor Mark Storer declared a Personal and Pecuniary Interest with regard to
the agenda item titled 'Land Adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre, Riseholme
Road, Lincoln'. Reason: He knew one of the objectors as a friend.

He left the room during the consideration of this item and took no part in the
deliberations or vote on the matter to be determined.

Update Sheet

An update sheet was tabled at the meeting, which included a further response
received in support of Agenda Item Number 5(a) -137 High Street, Lincoln.

RESOLVED that the update sheet be received by Planning Committee.

Work to Trees in City Council Ownership

Dave Walker, Arboricultural Officer:

a. advised the Committee of the reasons for proposed works to trees in the
City Council's ownership and sought consent to progress the works
identified, as detailed at Appendix A of his report

b.  highlighted that the list did not represent all the work undertaken to Council
trees, it represented all the instances where a tree was either identified for
removal, or where a tree enjoyed some element of protection under
planning legislation, and thus formal consent was required

61



73.

C.

explained that ward councillors had been notified of the proposed works.

RESOLVED that the tree works set out in the schedules appended to the report
be approved.

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No. 167

The Arboricultural Officer:

a.

advised members of the reasons why a temporary tree preservation order
made by the Assistant Director for Planning under delegated powers
should be confirmed at the following site:

e Tree Preservation Order 167: 1no Quercus Robur (Oak) tree in the
back garden of 37 Eastbrook Drive, Lincoln, LN6 7ES

provided details of the individual tree to be covered by the order and the
contribution it made to the area

reported that the making of any Tree Preservation Order was likely to
result in further demands on staff time to deal with any applications
submitted for consent to carry out tree work and to provide advice and
assistance to owners and others regarding protected trees, however, this
was contained within existing staffing resources

reported that the initial 6 months of protection for this tree would come to
an end for the Tree Preservation Order on 2 June 2022

confirmed that the reason for making a Tree Preservation Order on this
site was at the request of a member of the public to ensure the long-term
protection of the tree in the future

advised that the Arboricultural Officer had identified the tree to be suitable
for protection under a Tree Preservation Order; it had a high amenity
value, and its removal would have an effect on the aesthetic appearance
of the area

advised that following an extended 39-day period of consultation to cover
the Christmas period, no objections had been received to the order

advised that confirmation of the tree preservation order here would ensure
that the tree could not be removed or worked on without the express
permission of the council which would be considered detrimental to visual
amenity and as such the protection of the tree would contribute to one of
the Councils priorities of enhancing our remarkable place.

Councillor Vaughan suggested that the tree in question was very close to an
adjacent house on Bowden Drive?

Dave Walker, Arboricultural Officer advised that the tree had undergone some
canopy reduction work and was away from the apex of the property at 2 Bowden

Drive.

62



74.
75.

RESOLVED that Tree Preservation Order No 167 be confirmed without
modification and that delegated authority be granted to the Assistant Director of
Planning to carry out the requisite procedures for confirmation.

Applications for Development

137 High Street, Lincoln

The Planning Team Leader:

a.

advised that retrospective planning permission was sought for change of
use of premises at 137 High Street, Lincoln from retail (Use Class E) to hot
food takeaway (Sui Generis) and installation of an extraction flue to the
rear

highlighted that the use had not yet commenced, however, the applicant
had installed the extraction flue and air conditioning units to the rear, which
formed the retrospective element of the application

described the location of the application property at 137 High Street, part
of a former Co-Operative store built in 1892, having a traditional shop
front and part of a larger building of three units at ground floor on the west
side of High Street

highlighted that the rear of the property was accessed via Tanner’s Court
and the yard to the rear of Nos 137-141 High Street

reported that the building was located within Conservation Area No 6
‘West Parade and Brayford’

provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy LP25: The Historic Environment

e Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

e Policy LP33: Lincoln's City Centre Primary Shopping Area and
Central Mixed-Use Area

e National Planning Policy Framework

advised Planning Committee of the main issues to be considered as part
of the application to assess the proposal with regards to:

Planning Policy

Consultation Responses

Principle of Use

Visual Amenity and Character and Appearance of the Conservation
Area

e Impact on Neighbouring Uses

e Highway Safety

outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise, which included
a petition received from local residents

referred to the Update Sheet tabled at the meeting which included an
additional response received in support of the proposed development

63



j. concluded that:

e The principle of the use was acceptable in this location and would
not result in the area losing its mixed use character, nor would it
detract from the vitality or viability of the primary shopping area.

e The use and the associated fume extraction would not cause harm
to residential amenity or the local environment.

e The flue would also not have an unacceptable visual impact and the
character and appearance of the conservation area would be
preserved.

e The proposal would therefore be in accordance with the
requirements of Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Policies LP25,
LP26 and LP33 and guidance within the National Planning Policy
Framework.

The Committee considered the content of the report in further detail.
The following comments emerged from discussions held:

e Considering the location of this site south of Portland Street was in the
Central Mixed Use Area, it included multiple takeaways and barber shops,
therefore it was not predominantly mixed use.

e There was no need for another takeaway in the area, although in this case
the business was moving from across the road and therefore acceptable.

e It must be sad for residents having to live in this area with so many food
outlets.

e Following a site visit, it was noticed that the flue was still a shiny silver
colour although the applicant had agreed to paint it matt black to reduce
visual impact. This should form part of the conditions of planning
permission if the scheme was granted.

e Concerns were raised regarding rats and vermin at the rear of the
premises. On visiting the site, a lack of refuse bins was observed. Disposal
bins would be crucial to the operation of the business and should be
conditioned accordingly.

e |t was rather presumptuous to see that the applicant had already erected
signage at the front and side of the building, without permission for change
of use of the property.

e It was very disappointing that the work had been started without
permission.

e The amount of retail outlets in this part of the High Street was a disgrace.

e In reality, these types of shops must be needed as if the public didn’t use
them, they would be closed. It would be a welcome change to see more
quality independent retail outlets although this was not a legitimate reason
to refuse this application, subject to relevant planning conditions.

e Retrospective planning applications were an insult to this Committee and
local residents. The applicant should be fined.

e We were now too far down the road having so many takeaways in the area
to refuse permission for this one.

Councillor Longbottom referred to a study she had seen which referred to areas
with high amounts of takeaways being linked to poor health. It was important for
us to look at our objectives as a local council in respect of the concentration of
food takeaways in our Central Mixed Use areas. Improving the health of the
residents of our city was an important consideration here.

64



Councillor Vaughan emphasised that in the late 1990°’s he and Councillor
Strengiel voted against all these takeaways at Committee. It should have ended
years ago.

Members asked whether the extraction flue was fitted to proper specifications?

The Planning Team Leader responded to members concerns, questions and
comments as follows:

e The extraction flue was constructed to specifications laid down by our
Environmental Health colleagues.

e A condition could be imposed on grant of planning permission for the flue
to be painted black if members were so minded, perhaps within a
timescale of 3 months.

e There was a dedicated area proposed for bin storage units, the bins to be
provided by BIFFA. Environmental Health colleagues were satisfied with
its location to the rear of the property and would enforce its proper use.

e He understood members concerns regarding the concentration of hot food
takeaways in this area in terms of health of the residents of the city. It was
difficult to say that this business in itself affected the Mixed Use Area, as it
was relocating from across the road. He would take the comments made in
this respect back to officers to bear in mind in response to further similar
requests for planning permission.

A motion was proposed, seconded, voted upon, and

RESOLVED that a condition be placed on grant of planning permission for the
flue to be painted black within 3 months’ time.

RESOLVED that:

1. The petition submitted by residents, as appended to the officer’s report be
received.

2. Planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set out below.
Conditions

e Development carried out within 3 years

e Development in accordance with the submitted plans

e Extract system installed in accordance with details and not to be
changed without written consent of the LPA

e Extraction flue to be painted black within 3 months’ time

e Retention of refuse storage area

76. The Old Dairy, Church Lane, Lincoln

The Planning Team Leader:
a. advised that planning permission was sought for the erection of a two-

storey side extension following demolition of an existing detached garage
at The Old Dairy, Stonefield Close, off Church Lane, Lincoln

65



b. described the location of the existing application property at the northern
end of Stonefield Close, being a converted 19" century former dairy
building, situated within a large plot accessed via a private drive through
the grounds of Lincoln Minster Preparatory School, with Ockbrook Court,
low-rise flats to the north of the site accessed off Williamson Street and
Middleton’s Field to the west

c. highlighted that the dwelling had been altered over the years, most
recently in 2010 with the erection of a two-storey extension, a two-storey
flat roofed rear extension and single-storey extensions

d. reported that the site was located within Newport and Nettleham Road
Conservation Area No 9

e. highlighted that during the application process a meeting was held on site
with the Case Officer and Conservation Officer and negotiations had
secured amendments during the course of the application resulting in
revised plans received

f. referred to the site history for the application site as detailed within the
officer’s report

g. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy LP25: The Historic Environment
e Policy LP26: Design and Amenity
e National Planning Policy Framework

h. advised Planning Committee of the main issues to be considered as part
of the application to assess the proposal with regards to:

Planning Policy

Consultation Responses

Principle of Use

Visual Amenity and Character and Appearance of the Conservation
Area

Impact on Neighbouring Uses
e Highway Safety

i. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise
. concluded that:

e The proposed development was of an appropriate design that would
not materially harm the character and appearance of the building or
conservation area, in accordance with the duty contained within
Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990, policies LP25 'The Historic Environment' and LP26
'‘Design and Amenity' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and
guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

e The proposal would not be detrimental to the residential amenities
of the surrounding neighbours and was therefore in accordance with
Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and the National
Planning Policy Framework.

66



Planning Committee considered the content of the report in further detail.
The following comments emerged from discussions held:

e Reference was made to trees to the rear garden of Ockbrook Court
(detailed at Page 71 of the report), which were overhanging the wall to the
application property. It was suggested these trees be pruned, to avoid
damage during construction work and after. Was it possible for this work to
be conditioned?

e Concerns were raised regarding access for construction traffic through the
school grounds in terms of health and safety of the children.

e The Civic Trust had offered it's support to the scheme apart from concerns
regarding access through Middleton’s Field for construction traffic, and this
issue had been addressed within the officer's report and conditioned
accordingly.

e Surprise was expressed that Lincolnshire County Council as Highways
Authority and lead Flood Authority were happy not to restrict planning
permission, despite objections outlined in a resident’s objection letter
regarding flooding issues at Middleton’s Field.

The Chair raised some concerns over the height of the proposed development
and its impact on Ockbrook Court. He was also concerned about the distance
from the dividing wall to the proposed extension, which contained windows and a
door according to the drawing illustrated.

Councillor Watt shared concerns regarding the height of the proposed extension
and asked whether the roof line could be lowered.

The Chair advised that the remit of Planning Committee was to determine the
application before us as it stood this evening.

The Planning Team Leader responded to members concerns, questions and
comments as follows:

e The windows and door shown on the plans for the north elevation to the
proposed extension were within the application building.

e In terms of access for contractors, the applicant had a good relationship
with the school, and both parties had come to an arrangement for hours of
construction work which would not impact on school activity. Hours of
construction were also conditioned.

e In relation to the trees mentioned that were overhanging the wall from
Ockbrook gardens, the applicant was responsible for these trees being
trimmed down and it was in their best interest to do so.

e The flooding referred to in the consultation responses from a resident at
Middleton’s Field referred to another planning application which had been
withdrawn and was unconnected to this application site.

e Regulations for distances between properties window to window were
recommended at least 21 metres, and for window to blank wall/dormer
window a distance of 14 metres. The relationship between the proposed
two-storey extension and the rear north boundary with Ockbrook Court
was 700mm, with the separation between Ockbrook Court and the
boundary being 18 metres, which was considered more than reasonable.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set
out below. 67



17.

Conditions

Development carried out within 3 years

Development carried out in accordance with the submitted plans

Samples of Materials

Archaeology

Construction traffic access

Removal of permitted development for new openings within extension
Hours of construction 8 am to 6pm Monday to Friday 08:00 to 13:00 on
Saturdays

Land Adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre, Riseholme Road, Lincoln

(Councillors Strengiel, Storer and Briggs left the room for the remainder of the
meeting having declared a personal and pecuniary interest in the matter to be
determined. They took no part in the discussion or vote on the planning
application)

The Planning Team Leader:

a.

described the application for development on land in front of Yarborough
Leisure Centre, which proposed the erection of four 2/3 storey buildings
fronting Riseholme Road to form townhouses with five 3/4 storey buildings
positioned behind

advised that a previous application was refused by Planning Committee on
26 February 2020 due to height and massing of the proposed buildings

advised that this application was granted planning permission by
Committee on 1 December 2021, subject to conditions as detailed within
the officer’s report included in tonight’s agenda papers

reported that the development would consist of 293 bedrooms of
accommodation for students with ancillary on site reception, laundry
facilities and warden accommodation

added that a new vehicular access would be formed to Riseholme Road
and 17 parking spaces provided within the site for accessible unloading
and staff parking only

highlighted that the land in question was allocated as a site for residential
development in the adopted Local Plan, currently owned by the City of
Lincoln Council with an agreement to sell to the applicants

described the location of the development site currently grassland on the
west side of Riseholme Road, with Lincoln Castle Academy and
Yarborough Leisure Centre situated to the north and west, residential
dwellings fronting Riseholme Road and Yarborough Crescent to the south,
the old caretaker’'s bungalow in private ownership to the north, and a
strong line of trees which formed the boundary with Riseholme Road to the
east

. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

68



Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy LP2: The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy LP9: Health and Wellbeing

Policy LP10: Meeting Accommodation Needs

Policy LP12: Infrastructure to Support Growth

Policy LP13: Accessibility and Transport

Policy LP14: Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk
Policy LP16: Development on Land affected by Contamination
Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

Policy LP29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character

Policy LP32: Lincoln's Universities and Colleges

National Planning Policy Framework

i. advised Planning Committee of the main issues considered as part of the
application to assess the proposal with regards to:

Principle of Use

Visual Amenity

Impact on Residential amenity
Traffic and Pedestrian Safety
Drainage/SUDs

Trees and Landscaping
Archaeology

Contaminated Land

J. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

k. concluded that:

The previous refusal reason relating to height and massing of the
buildings had been overcome by the revised application.

The development would relate well to the site and surroundings,
particularly in relation to siting, height, scale, massing, and design.
The proposal allowed Bishop Grosseteste University to continue to
develop and ensured that there was little impact on their neighbours
and the wider City.

Technical matters relating to highways, contamination, archaeology,
and drainage were to the satisfaction of the relevant consultees and
could be further controlled as necessary by conditions.

The proposals would therefore be in accordance with the
requirements of CLLP Policies and the NPPF.

I. emphasised again that this planning application was already approved by
Planning Committee on 1 December 2021, subject to conditions which
included the provision of increased public transport services (bus service),
at the responsibility of the developer, from Mondays-Saturdays, continuing
for 3 years post final completion of the development, prior to occupation of
the student accommodation

m. highlighted that this condition was proposed by Lincolnshire County
Council as Highways Authority at the time to increase an existing bus
service operating on a Friday/Saturday evening

69



n. advised that the above condition had been found to be unworkable as the
previous bus service on Fri /Sat evenings no longer existed, the bus
operator would have to buy new buses, the cost for which was
disproportionate to the development proposals and not justifiable or
financially viable for the bus company in the current economic climate

0. requested authorisation for removal of the above condition from the
previously granted planning permission in order that the development
could proceed moving forward.

The Committee considered the content of the report in further detail.

Councillor Hewson recognised the problems highlighted with the increased public
transport condition imposed on the original grant of planning permission for this
site and why it could not be met. He was happy for the development to go ahead
without this additional condition.

Councillor Bean referred to existing problems with sustained bus services in the
current economic climate and the fact that the condition was open to fail as the
bus service was required to operate for three years

Councillor Watt advised that the condition had been considered as important at
the time planning permission was granted and should be part of the development.
He asked whether the planning application could be refused on the basis that the
condition could not be met.

The Chair advised of the remit of Planning Committee this evening to approve or
refuse the planning application before us this evening without the additional
transport condition.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted as previously granted on 1
December 2021, however with the condition imposed regarding the provision of
increased public transport services (bus service) at the responsibility of the
developer removed. Also subject to the signing of an S106 agreement securing a
contribution to additional NHS services in the vicinity and subject to the conditions
as set out below.

Conditions

Development to commence within three years

Hedge and tree protection to be in place at all times during construction
Materials

Highway conditions

Archaeology

Remediation shall be implemented in accordance with submitted
remediation strategy

Submission of construction management plan

Retention of parking spaces at all times

Development to proceed in accordance with submitted Travel Plan
Landscaping to be in implemented in accordance with the submitted
landscaping plan

¢ Enhanced landscaping condition to pursue biodiversity

70



[tem No. 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE 23 MARCH 2022
SUBJECT: WORK TO TREES IN CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP
DIRECTORATE: COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

REPORT AUTHOR:  STEVE BIRD — ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (COMMUNITIES &

STREET SCENE)

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.

4.1

Purpose of Report

To advise Members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in City Council ownership,
and to seek consent to progress the works identified.

This list does not represent all the work undertaken to Council trees. It is all the instances
where a tree is either identified for removal, or where a tree enjoys some element of
protection under planning legislation, and thus formal consent is required.

Background

In accordance with policy, Committee’s views are sought in respect of proposed works to
trees in City Council ownership, see Appendix A.

The responsibility for the management of any given tree is determined by the ownership
responsibilities of the land on which it stands. Trees within this schedule are therefore on
land owned by the Council, with management responsibilities distributed according to the
purpose of the land. However, it may also include trees that stand on land for which the
council has management responsibilities under a formal agreement but is not the owner.

Tree Assessment

All cases are brought to this committee only after careful consideration and assessment
by the Council’'s Arboricultural Officer (together with independent advice where
considered appropriate).

All relevant Ward Councillors are notified of the proposed works for their respective
wards prior to the submission of this report.

Although the Council strives to replace any tree that has to be removed, in some
instances it is not possible or desirable to replant a tree in either the exact location or of
the same species. In these cases, a replacement of an appropriate species is scheduled
to be planted in an alternative appropriate location. This is usually in the general locality
where this is practical, but where this is not practical, an alternative location elsewhere in
the city may be selected. Tree planting is normally scheduled for the winter months
following the removal.

Consultation and Communication

All ward Councillors are informed of proposed works on this schedule, which are within

71




4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

their respective ward boundaries.

The relevant portfolio holders are advised in advance in all instances where, in the
judgement of officers, the matters arising within the report are likely to be sensitive or
contentious.

Strategic Priorities

Let's enhance our remarkable place

The Council acknowledges the importance of trees and tree planting to the environment.
Replacement trees are routinely scheduled wherever a tree has to be removed, in-line
with City Council policy.

Organisational Impacts

Finance (including whole life costs where applicable)

i) Finance

The costs of any tree works arising from this report will be borne by the existing
budgets. There are no other financial implications, capital or revenue, unless stated
otherwise in the works schedule.

i) Staffing N/A

iii) Property/Land/ Accommodation Implications  N/A

iv) Procurement

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the City Council’s grounds
maintenance contractor. The Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance contract
ends August 2026. The staff are all suitably trained, qualified, and experienced.

Legal Implications including Procurement Rules

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the Council’'s grounds maintenance

contractor. The contractor was appointed after an extensive competitive tendering
exercise. The contract for this work was let in April 2006.

The Council is compliant with all Tree Preservation Order and Conservation area
legislative requirements.

Equality, Diversity and Human Rights

There are no negative implications.

Risk Implications

The work identified on the attached schedule represents the Arboricultural Officer’s

advice to the Council relevant to the specific situation identified. This is a balance of
assessment pertaining to the health of the tree, its environment, and any legal or health

72



and safety concerns. In all instances the protection of the public is taken as paramount.
Deviation from the recommendations for any particular situation may carry ramifications.
These can be outlined by the Arboricultural Officer pertinent to any specific case.

7.2 Where appropriate, the recommended actions within the schedule have been subject to a
formal risk assessment. Failure to act on the recommendations of the Arboricultural
Officer could leave the City Council open to allegations that it has not acted responsibly
in the discharge of its responsibilities.

8. Recommendation

8.1 That the works set out in the attached schedules be approved.

Is this a key decision?

Do the exempt information
categories apply?

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny
Procedure Rules (call-in and

urgency) apply?

How many appendices does
the report contain?

List of Background Papers:

Lead Officer:

No

No

No

None
Mr S. Bird,

Assistant Director (Communities & Street Scene)
Telephone 873421

73



NOTIFICATION OF INTENDED WORK TO TREES AND HEDGES

RELEVANT TO THEIR CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP STATUS.

SCHEDULE No 3/ SCHEDULE DATE: 23'Y MARCH 2022

This tree has
significant decay fungi
attached to the major

Item | Status Specific Location Tree Species and | Recommendation
No e.g. description/ reasons
CAC for work / Ward.
1 27 Snowberry Gardens. | Birchwood Ward Approve works —
6 x Leyland cypress replace with suitable
Eell native species such as
These trees form a Spindle or Bird Cherry,
hedge line which to be located on
encroaches within the | grassland strip
boundaries of several | between Aberporth
adjacent properties; Drive and Woodfield
due to the size of the Avenue to encourage
individual canopies biodiversity.
remedial pruning is
likely to result in the
creation of an unviable
hedge line.
2 Jasmin Green — wooded | Birchwood Ward Replace with 2 x small
bund adjacent to The 2 x Austrian Pine leaved lime trees, to
Lancaster School. Retrospective notice be located on
The trunks of these Jasmin Green,
trees fractured during | between
storm Dudley causing | Aldergrove Crescent
partial collapse of both | and Lyneham Close.
canopies.
3 CAC Mary Sookias House. Castle Ward Approve works —
1 x Cherry replace with a suitable
Fell Cherry species, to be
This tree has an located as close as
unstable rootplate possible to the location
which places the tree | of the original tree.
at risk of failure during
wind loading events.
4 CAC Lillicrap Court — Castle Ward Approve works —
courtyard facing water 1 x Plum replace with a suitable
tower. Eell Cherry species, to be

located as close as
possible to the location
of the original tree.

74




scaffold branches; this
places the canopy at a
high risk of failure
during wind loading
events.

N/A Newport Cemetery — Minster Ward Approve works —
backing onto Manor 4 x Leyland cypress Replace with native
Close. Fell hedging such as
These trees overhang | Beech.
a considerable number
of memorials; due to
the degree of
overhang pruning is no
longer be a suitable
method of
management.
N/A 10 Blankney Crescent - | Minster Ward Replace with 2 x small
Void housing property. 1 x Whitebeam Maple cultivars,
1 x Cherry To be located on the
Retrospective notice green space located
Both trees had poor opposite 28 Brattleby
form and considerable | Crescent.
decay within their
trunks which placed
them at risk of failure.
N/A 19 Woodhall Drive - Minster Ward Replace with 1 x

housing property.

1 x Rhus typhina
Retrospective notice
This tree failed at its
rootplate during storm
Dudley

Spindle, to be located
on amenity grassland
outside number 19
Woodhall Drive.

75




This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 5a

Application 2021/0944/FUL

Number:

Site Address: 10 - 11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Target Date: 25th March 2022

Agent Name: Wilson Architects Ltd

Applicant Name: Mr Adam Wilson

Proposal: Partial demolition and erection of 2% storey rear extension, first

floor rear extension and glazed link extension to facilitate
change of use to 16no. two bedroom and 4no. one bedroom
flats. Associated works to alter access from Lindum Terrace,
creation of vehicular parking and refurbishment works to existing
properties including replacement windows, doors and new
rooflights. (Revised description and plans).

Background - Site Location and Description

The application property is 10-11 Lindum Terrace; two detached, three storey villas which
are connected by a flat roof, brick extension. The buildings were most recently occupied as
a medical facility, providing a centre for child adolescence services. The buildings have
been vacant for over ten years and, while in a state of disrepair and having suffered fire
damage, are structurally sound. An application for planning permission was granted in
2018 for the re-development of the properties as part of a wider scheme with neighbouring
sites to form a new medical village (2016/1140/FUL). This permission was never
implemented and has now lapsed.

The properties sit to the north of Lindum Terrace, approximately 1m higher than the road.
A 2m high brick wall defines the front boundary including separate vehicular and
pedestrian access points. Behind the front boundary are a number of mature trees, with
further trees within and adjacent to the site boundaries to the east and north west. The site
continues to slope gently up to the north where the rear boundary is defined by an
approximately 4m high retaining wall. This wall abuts Sewell Road, which sits
approximately 2m higher than the land level of the application site. To the east of the site
is a large area of land which was formerly occupied by 12 Lindum Terrace. This property
was demolished as it was considered to be an unsafe structure following a fire. To the
west is 9 Lindum Terrace, which is occupied as flats, and to the north west is 30-32 Sewell
Road.

The site is located within the Lindum and Arboretum Conservation Area.

The application proposes partial demolition works and the erection of a 2% storey rear
extension, first floor rear extension and a glazed link extension to replace the existing brick
link structure. The extensions and associated refurbishment work, including replacement
windows, doors and new rooflights, will facilitate the change of use of the properties to
16no0. two bedroom and 4no. one bedroom flats. Associated works are also proposed to
alter the access from Lindum Terrace and create areas for parking.

The proposals have been revised during the process of the application following extensive
discussions between the agent, officers and the Principal Conservation Officer. The
revised proposals see the removal of a two storey extension to the side and also the
scaling down of the rear extensions, one of which was originally proposed as a three
storey addition. These revisions have resulted in the overall number of units proposed
reducing from 33 to 20; going from 6no. two bedroom and 27no. one bedroom flats to

77



16no0. two bedroom and 4no. one bedroom flats. Revisions to the design of the extensions
have also been made to address officer's concerns regarding their appearance and also
the impact on the conservation area and residential amenity. These will be detailed further
within the report.

All neighbours and statutory consultees have been re-consulted on the revised proposals.

Site History
Reference: Description Status Decision
Date:
2016/1140/FUL | Creation of new medical village, to Granted 30th
include a flexible mix of primary and Conditionally | January
secondary health care services (Use 2018

Classes D1 (Non-residential
Institutions) and C2 (Residential
Institutions) of the Town and Country
Planning Use Classes Order 1987, as
amended). Refurbishment, conversion
and extension of Nos. 10, 11 and 12
Lindum Terrace, including some
demolition; erection of a two storey
building with additional accommodation
linking the existing buildings and under
croft parking beneath. Alterations to
existing access to Sewell Road and
Lindum Terrace; provision of parking
and bicycle, motorcycle and
ambulance bays; and associated soft
and hard landscaping. (REVISED
PLANS).

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 11th January 2022.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy LP2 The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy
e Policy LP9 Health and Wellbeing

e Policy LP11 Affordable Housing

e Policy LP12 Infrastructure to Support Growth

e Policy LP13 Accessibility and Transport

e Policy LP14 Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk

78



e Policy LP25 The Historic Environment
e Policy LP26 Design and Amenity
e Policy LP37 Sub-Division and Multi-Occupation of Dwellings within Lincoln
e National Planning Policy Framework
Issues

e Principle of use

Developer contributions

Visually amenity and character and appearance of the conservation area
Residential amenity

Access, parking and highway matters

Trees

Archaeology

Surface water and foul drainage

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2018.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Lincs Bat Group Comments Received
NHS England Comments Received
Highways & Planning Comments Received

Education Planning Manager, | Comments Received
Lincolnshire County Council

Anglian Water Comments Received

Upper Witham, Witham First | Comments Received
District & Witham Third
District

Lincolnshire Police Comments Received

79




Historic England Comments Received

Councillor Clare Smalley Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

Mr Frederick Hackett St Annes House
27 Sewell Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN2 5RY

Robert Gregory Flat 2

Sewell Court
Sewell Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN2 5QU

Michael Leary And Nicholas 15 Lindum Terrace
Clinton Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN2 5RT

lan And Kim Wishart 9 Eastcliff Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN2 5RU

Dr Philippa Casares 29 Magdalen Road

TN37 6EP

Christopher King 41 Broadway
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN2 1SG

Mrs Frances Halse 17 Lindum Terrace
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN2 5RT

Miss Paula West 15 Wragby Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN2 5SH

80

St. Leonards-On-Sea




Guy Bart-Smith Flat 6

14 Lindum Terrace
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN2 5RT

Jennifer Williams 29 Sewell Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN2 5RY

Consideration

Representations have been received from Clir. Smalley and residents on Lindum Terrace,
Eastcliff Road, Sewell Court, Sewell Road, Wragby Road and Broadway. While Clir.
Smalley and a number of residents welcome and support the principle of the
re-development, comments and objections have been made in relation to various issues,
which will each be addressed within the relevant sections of the report.

Further consultation responses were received from 15, 16 and 17 Lindum Terrace and
Cllr. Smalley following the re-consultation on the revised proposals. While most of the
responses welcome the reduction in the scale of the development, all consider that the
revisions do not address their original concerns.

Principle of Use

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) Policy LP2 advises that the Lincoln Urban Area will
be the principal focus for development in Central Lincolnshire, including housing. CLLP
Policy LP1 states that there should be a presumption in favour of sustainable development
and planning applications that accord with the policies in the local plan will be approved
without delay. This presumption in favour of sustainable development reflects the key aim
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The principle of residential
development in this location would therefore be supported.

CLLP Policy LP37 relates to the conversion or change of use of existing dwellings and
buildings in other uses to self-contained flats or shared accommodation. This advises that
such proposals will be supported where:

¢ the existing dwelling is capable of conversion without causing harm to the amenities
of future occupants, neighbours and the wider area;

e in the case of an existing dwelling, it can be demonstrated that there is an
established lack of demand for the single family use of the property concerned;

¢ the development will not lead to or increase an existing over-concentration of such
uses in the area; and

e adequate provision is made for external communal areas, bin storage and collection
and on-site parking and cycle storage unless it can be demonstrated that the site is
sustainably located on a regular bus route or within walking distance of the City
Centre.

The requirement in respect of over-concentration only relates to Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMOs), as the authority has a dataset of existing HMOs that can be

81




interrogated to determine the existing concentration in an area. Accordingly, this does not
apply in this case as the application is for the change of use to flats. The requirement to
demonstrate an established lack of demand for the single family use of the property is also
not relevant given the previous commercial use.

While some of the objections have questioned whether the use of the properties as flats
and the number of bedrooms proposed are appropriate here, officers have no objection in
principle to this, an approach which would be supported by LP37. Providing a number and
range of homes would also support the delivery of one of the key objectives of the NPPF,
within paragraph 8.

Matters relating to amenity, communal areas, bin storage and parking as required by LP37
will be covered later within the report.

Developer Contributions

In accordance with CLLP Policies LP9, LP11 and LP12 and the Central Lincolnshire
Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) the proposed
development would be expected to contribute towards delivering new and improving
existing infrastructure.

With regard to affordable housing the 20 dwelling scheme would be expected to provide,
either on site or through a financial contribution, the equivalent of five affordable units.
However, the applicant has taken the opportunity to apply for Vacant Building Credit
(VBC). The NPPF and national policy provides an incentive for brownfield development on
sites containing vacant buildings. Where a vacant building is brought back into any lawful
use or is demolished to be replaced by a new building, the developer should be offered a
financial credit equivalent to the existing gross floorspace, to be off-set against the
affordable housing contribution which would otherwise be sought by the authority. The
purpose of this is to encourage developers to consider the re-development of existing
vacant buildings more favourably.

The VBC only applies where the building has not been abandoned, and to determine this
authorities should take into account circumstances such as the condition of the property,
the period of non-use, whether there has been an intervening use and any evidence of the
owner’s intention.

The agent has accordingly submitted a VBC Statement as part of the application, which
puts forward a case for the building. Despite being vacant for almost ten years and
suffering from fire damage and vandalism, the building is still in a usable condition, and is
therefore considered by the agent to be vacant rather than abandoned. There have also
been previous efforts to seek an alternative use for the building, with the approval of the
2016 application for the medical village. On this basis officers are satisfied that the building
has not been abandoned and qualifies for VBC.

The agent’s VBC Statement includes the calculation for the amount of VBC that should be
applied to the development. Officers are satisfied that the calculation has been applied
correctly and, on this basis, the affordable housing contribution for the development is
reduced from five units to one unit. This will be secured through a Section 106 Agreement
(5106) as a commuted sum for the amount of £101,890 (figure from the July 2021 update
of the SPD).

82



The S106 will also secure a contribution of £12,650 requested by NHS Lincolnshire
towards the expansion in capacity of existing facilities within the IMP Primary Care
Network (PCN), at the Abbey Medical Practice, Minster Medical Practice and Lindum
Medical Practice. This will address the additional demands the development would put on
the existing GP services for the area. It is advised that the funding may, where
appropriate, be used to support expansion in capacity at an alternative general practice
site as required to meet the local population health need.

In addition, the S106 will secure contributions of £5,418 for play space and £13,992.36 for
local green infrastructure.

The Lincolnshire County Council Education Planning Manager has not made a financial
request in relation to education, as it is advised that there is sufficient capacity in the
locality for the children generated by the scheme.

These requests would be in accordance with CLLP Policies and the SPD. The applicant
has no objection to meeting these and officers would recommend, if Members are in
support of the application, that this matter be delegated to the Planning Manager to
negotiate and secure.

Visual Amenity and Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area

CLLP Policy LP26 advises that development should respect existing character and relate
well to the site and surroundings, particularly in relation to siting, height, scale, massing
and form. Development should also reflect or improve on the original architectural style of
the local surroundings. Paragraph 130 of the NPPF requires that development should
function well and add to the overall quality of the area.

Located within a conservation area CLLP Policy LP25 requires that development should
preserve or enhance its character, appearance and setting. Proposals should retain and
reinforce existing street patterns and local distinctiveness with reference to height,
massing, scale, form and materials of the existing built environment. This approach is
reinforced by paragraph 190 of the NPPF.

The application proposes a 2¥: storey rear extension, which would be to the rear of no.11,
adjacent to the east boundary of the site. An existing outbuilding is to be removed to
accommodate this, to which there is no objection as this is in a poor state of repair and is
of little architectural merit. The application originally proposed a three storey addition here,
which would have been a substantial mass continuing the same ridge line of the existing
building and presenting a gable to the rear. It was considered that this would have been a
bulky and unsympathetic addition to the property. The revised plans see this scaled down
in height to 2% with the overall mass further reduced as the extension now appears as two
connecting pitched roof structures, which also step down in height towards the rear.
Officers consider this to be far more appropriate and would appear as a subservient
addition to the original building. The original proposal would have been constructed in brick
with rendered elements, although the use of render has now been omitted, which is
welcomed by officers.

The design of the elevations has also been subject to discussion and revision during the
application process. The window and door design has been simplified, and the proportions
and positions revised. It is considered that these work well, clearly identifying the
extension as a modern addition but also sitting comfortably when viewed as a continuation

83



of the existing building. The windows will be timber and the proposed rooflights, both within
this extension and the existing building, will be a conservation style. Officers are satisfied
that the design of this extension and the fenestration is acceptable.

The first floor extension to the rear of no. 10 was originally proposed as a two storey
addition which extended to the side and also included an external staircase. Officers
raised concern regarding the scale of this and that it would impact on the appearance of
the building when viewed from the front. The revised extension is a modest addition which
relates to the first floor only presenting a gable to the rear, reflecting an adjacent off-shoot.
The windows are of a traditional design, which copy those below on the ground floor.
Officers have no objection the scale or design of this addition.

The existing brick built link extension has a flat roof and is not a sympathetic addition. The
application proposes to replace this with a larger structure incorporating a lift, which will
serve each floor within the building. While this therefore results in a much larger link
structure officers do not consider that this would compromise the appearance of the
properties as it is set back behind the frontage and the roof slopes away towards the rear.
The structure will be aluminium framed with glazing to the front and standing seam metal
cladding to the rear. Some of the objectors and Cllr. Smalley consider this to be out of
character with the building, having an industrial/city centre appearance, and instead should
be constructed in brick. The proposed design is considered by officers to be preferable to
a traditional approach, as it will have a more lightweight appearance and will clearly be
read as a modern addition that complements the original architectural style.

Objectors have stated that the scale of the proposals represent overdevelopment of the
site and are out keeping, although officers consider that the site can comfortably
accommodate the revised scheme. Objectors also consider that the proposals lack merit
and finesse and are not in-keeping with the buildings or street. The revisions to the
scheme, both in terms of reducing the scale and improving the appearance, have been
detailed. Officers are of the opinion that the additions are appropriate and sympathetic,
and will facilitate the investment and re-use of the property. This is welcomed as are the
proposals to replace the windows and doors within the main dwelling with like-for-like
timber replacements. Joinery details for these will be conditioned on any grant of consent.
Conditions will also require samples of materials and more information in relation to
windows, doors, fascias and barge boards and other architectural detailing of the
extensions to ensure that the finish of these structures is of a high quality.

Officers also have no objection to the widening of the access. Details of the finish of the
wall/replacement brick pier will be required by condition.

The form and design of the extensions are therefore considered to be appropriate, which
would respect the existing building and character of the area. The alterations and
refurbishment works to the existing building would be an enhancement, improving the
original architectural style of the surroundings and adding to the overall quality of the area,
as required by CLLP Policy LP26 and the NPPF.

The development would also enhance the character and appearance of the conservation
area, as required by CLLP Policy LP25 and paragraph 190 of the NPPF.

84



Residential Amenity

Officers are satisfied that the proposed use as flats is appropriate for the building and
wider context, which is predominantly residential with a number of properties also
subdivided into flats. Concerns relating to noise and disturbance associated with the use
have been raised by neighbours, particularly due to the increase in occupancy. It should
be noted that there has been an overall reduction in the number of units proposed as part
of the application process, and officers do not consider that the level of development would
create undue issues of noise or disturbance. The City Council’s Pollution Control (PC)
Officer has also raised no objections in this respect.

With regard to the proposed 2% storey extension, the rear, north west corner of this would
be located adjacent to the boundary with 30-32 Sewell Road. While this is a close
relationship to the boundary the extension would be located over 17m from no. 30-32.
Officers do not consider that the 2% storey structure would appear unduly overbearing,
and the potential impact is mitigated to a large degree by the position of a number of
mature trees adjacent to the boundary, within the neighbour’'s garden. The trees would
also reduce the impact of the loss of sunlight, which in any case would be limited to late
morning only.

With regard to overlooking, again, officers consider that the trees would be of benefit but
nonetheless revisions have been requested to the design to ensure that there is no undue
impact during the winter months. A first floor window within the side, west elevation, which
would have been closest to the boundary, has been removed. The other window to this
same bedroom is within the rear gable, and this has been designed to be chamfered so
the outlook from here would be to the north east, away from the garden of no. 30-32.
There are two other windows within the gable end of another section of the rear extension,
however, these serve the communal staircase so there are no concerns of overlooking
from here. Any other windows within the 2¥ extension are a sufficient distance from the
boundary and no. 30-32 to ensure that the privacy of the neighbouring occupants is not
compromised.

The proposed first floor rear extension would be located 3.5m from the boundary with
30-32 Sewell Road, and over 24m from this neighbouring property. Given that this is a
relatively minor addition, and it is set back behind a section of the building with a closer
relationship, officers do not consider that it would appear unduly overbearing or result in an
unacceptable degree of loss of light. A bedroom and kitchen window are proposed at first
floor, although this would not introduce a new level of overlooking in this location. There
would be no impact on this neighbouring property from the link extension, which includes a
small balcony within the rear, due to its position. Officers are therefore satisfied that the
residential amenities of the occupants of 30-32 Sewell Road would not be unduly harmed
by the development through overlooking, loss of the light or the creation of overbearing
structures.

There would be no impact from the extensions on the occupants of 9 Lindurm Terrace,
with the closest relationship being over 7m between the minor first floor extension and the
west boundary of the site. It is not considered that this proposal would appear overbearing
or result in loss of light. No new windows are proposed in the side elevation of this first
floor extension or the facing side elevation of the existing property, so there would be no
new issues of overlooking.

85



The occupant of 9 Eastcliff Road has raised concerns regarding overlooking, a point
reiterated by Clir. Smalley. The application property is located over 29m from the boundary
with 9 Eastcliff Road, which sits beyond the rear garden of the neighbouring 9 Lindum
Terrace. Officers accordingly do not consider that this property would be overlooked or
unduly impacted by the development.

Car parking is proposed to the front of the property, adjacent to the west boundary with 9
Lindum Terrace, which is defined by an approximately 1.8m high fence. Further parking is
proposed to the rear of the site, which would sit adjacent to the approximately 1.6m high
wall and fence, which defines the boundary with 30-32 Sewell Road. Officers are satisfied
that these boundary treatments would mitigate any unduly harmful issues that may be
associated with these parking areas.

A number of the objectors and Cllr. Smalley have raised concern regarding noise and
disturbance during construction works. Officers have noted this concern and also the
comment of the City Council’s PC Officer, which states that there is potential for noise from
construction to neighbouring uses, particularly during noise sensitive hours. While this is
not a material planning consideration officers would propose that the PC Officers
suggested condition to restrict the hours of construction be applied to any grant of consent.

There are no other neighbouring properties that would be unduly affected by the
development. Officers are therefore satisfied that neither the use of the buildings nor the
proposed extensions would cause harm to the amenities which neighbouring occupants
may reasonably expect to enjoy, in accordance with CLLP Policies LP26 and LP37.

With regard to the amenities of future occupants, officers consider that the proposed units
can be comfortably accommodated within the extended and converted buildings. The floor
area of the flats is acceptable when considered against the Nationally Described Space
Standard guidance. Each bedroom and kitchen/living area would be served by windows
and/or rooflights. Officers therefore consider this to be an appropriate conversion, which
makes good use of the existing structure, and would provide an acceptable level of
amenity for future occupants, in accordance with CLLP Policies LP26 and LP37.

Access, Parking and Highway Matters

The site will utilise the existing access from Lindum Terrace, the width of which is
proposed to be increased to 6m so that it is suitable for two way traffic in and out of the
site. This will provide access to 20 car parking spaces, one per unit, located both to the
front and rear of the site.

Objections from neighbours raise concern regarding parking, considering that the number
of spaces is insufficient and will lead to further on-street parking. The increase in the
volume of traffic also presents highway safety concerns with regard to visibility when
exiting the site, which is located close to a sharp bend. Cllr. Smalley also raises concerns
that there are too many flats, and the parking is inadequate, creating additional traffic and
on-street parking issues in the area.

Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) as Local Highway Authority has considered the
application and has raised no objections. They consider the site is located in a central
urban area where services and facilities are within a reasonable distance to be accessed
via sustainable travel options such as walking, cycling and public transport. Future
residents of the development will not be reliant on the private car and therefore parking is

86



not essential for this proposal, however, some level of parking is provided within the limits
of site. The 20 spaces were considered to be acceptable for the original proposal, for 6no.
two bedroom and 27no. one bedroom flats. Following the receipt of the revised plans,
which changes the number and type of flats to 16no. two bedroom and 4no. one bedroom
flats, the LCC has confirmed that their comments remain unchanged.

The LCC has also advised that the widening of the existing access onto Lindum Terrace is
appropriate for the minor increase in traffic movements associated with this development.
No objections are raised in terms of highway safety, and they note that the change of use
will not adversely affect the public highway. Accordingly, the LCC do not wish to restrict
the grant of planning permission.

Officers are therefore satisfied that highway matters have been appropriately considered
by the LCC in their professional capacity. The site is in a location where travel can be
minimised and the use of sustainable transport modes maximised, in accordance with
CLLP Policy LP13.

Trees

A row of five mature Lime trees located adjacent to the front boundary wall are to be
retained. A smaller Sycamore behind these, towards the east boundary, is to be removed.
A further tree at the south west corner of the site is also proposed to be removed to allow
for the access to be widened. All other trees on site are to be retained. Some of the
objectors have raised concern regarding the loss of trees, considering that they are a
unique and integral part of this area and should be maintained.

The City Council’'s Arboricultural Officer has visited the site and, at his request, a tree
constraints plan, tree protection plan and Arboricultural Method Statement have been
submitted during the application process. He has raised no objection to the removal of the
two trees, which would have minimal impact on the amenity provided by the remaining
Lime trees. The removal of the trees has also previously been approved as part of the
2016 application. Some minor works are proposed to the retained trees, including the
removal of over-extended branches and lvy, which is causing issues for the trees. These
maintenance measures are therefore welcomed.

The submitted method statement details how the proposed tarmac parking areas will be
integrated without compromising the root protection areas of trees. Details of these root
protection areas also provided in plan form, both in relation to on site trees and those
adjacent on neighbouring land. On the basis of this information the Arboricultural Officer
has confirmed that there is no objection to the application subject to a condition requiring
the works to be undertaken in accordance with the submitted method statement and tree
protection plan.

Archaeology

The application includes an Archaeological Desk Based Assessment (DBA), produced in
support of the 2016 application for the medical village, which was a significantly larger
scheme than now proposed. At the time of the previous application the City Archaeologist
considered the DBA and was satisfied that sufficient work had been undertaken to
determine the archaeological potential of the site. He advised that an evaluation
excavation undertaken at the time did not reveal any archaeological features. It was

87



therefore considered highly unlikely that development of the site would encounter
archaeological remains and as such no further work was required.

This current proposal has been discussed with the City Archaeologist and he has
confirmed that, on the basis of the previous findings, no further works would be required
with regard to archaeology. Historic England has raised no objections to the application in
this respect.

Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposal would meet the requirements of CLLP
Policy LP25 and section 16 of the NPPF.

Surface Water and Foul Drainage

Anglian Water has advised that the preferred method of surface water disposal would be
to a sustainable drainage system (SuDS). They consider that the current level of
information submitted is not sufficient to demonstrate this, but have raised no objections to
the application subject to a condition to require the submission of a surface water
management strategy.

In their response the LCC as Lead Local Flood Authority has stated that they do not
consider surface water drainage will be affected by these proposals, as they are a change
of use of existing buildings. Accordingly, they have no objection to the application in this
respect.

The Upper Witham Drainage Board has no comments on the application, as the
development does not affect the interests of the board.

With regard to foul drainage Anglian Water has advised that there will be sufficient
capacity for the development. No objections are therefore raised to the application subject
to a condition requiring the submission of a scheme for on-site foul water drainage works.

Officers are therefore satisfied that proposed development would meet the requirements of
CLLP Policy LP14.

Other Matters

Sustainable Transport

The proposed development would include off street parking and the City Council’'s PC
Officer has recommended that the applicant be required to incorporate appropriate electric
vehicle recharge points into the development, in line with the recommendations of CLLP
Policy LP13 and paragraph 112 of the NPPF. Clir. Smalley also noted that the parking
spaces should offer electric vehicle recharge points. A condition requiring the submission
of a scheme will be attached to any grant of permission.

An additional point raised by Cllr. Smalley is that cycle storage should be provided, which
is available for residents to the west of the site adjacent to the proposed bin store.

Bats

A bat survey and bat method statement undertaken in 2016 has submitted as part of the
application. A response from the Lincs Bat Group has advised that the report is outdated.

88



An informative will be applied to any grant of consent to highlight to the developer that all
bat species found in the U.K. are protected under the Conservation of Species and
Habitats Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended). They should ensure that no bats are present prior to and during works and
undertake any surveys or remedial works as required by the Regulations and Act in
consultation with Natural England.

Design and Crime

A response from Lincolnshire Police has been received, raising no objections to the
application. The letter, including their crime prevention recommendations, has been
forwarded to the agent for their information.

Conclusion

The conversion of the property to flats is acceptable in this location. The renovation and
external works to the property are welcomed, which would enhance its historic character.
The design and scale of the extensions are considered to be acceptable and would
complement the original architectural style of the property and surroundings. The
proposals would therefore also enhance the character and appearance of the conservation
area. Neither the use nor the external works would cause undue harm to the amenities of
neighbouring properties, and the development would provide an appropriate level of
amenity for future occupants. The site is in an accessible location, also providing cycle and
car parking.

A S106 agreement will secure financial contributions towards delivering new and
improving existing infrastructure. Matters relating to highways, trees, archaeology and
surface and foul water drainage have been appropriately considered by officers and the
relevant statutory consultees, and can be dealt with as required by condition. The
proposals would therefore be in accordance with the requirements of CLLP Policies LP1,
LP2, LP9, LP11, LP12, LP13, LP14, LP25, LP26 and LP37 as well as guidance within the
NPPF.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

Yes.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

89



Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally subject to the following conditions with
delegated authority granted to the Planning Manger to secure the financial contributions
through a S106 agreement:

e Time limit of the permission

Development in accordance with approved plans

Samples of materials

Details of windows, doors and other architectural detailing for the extensions
Joinery details for replacement windows and doors in the existing building
Finish of wall/replacement brick pier to widened access

Surface water drainage management strategy

Foul water drainage scheme

Works in accordance with Arboricultural Method Statement and tree protection plan
Electric vehicle charging scheme

Hours of construction

Reporting of any unexpected contamination

90



10-11 Lindum Terrace plans and photos

Site location plan

LINDUM TERRACE

91

<>



Proposed site layout

92



Proposed ground floor plan

93

e

ENTRANCE




Proposed first floor plan

94



Proposed second floor plan

95



i T,
[mimimi

Proposed front, south elevation

Proposed rear, north elevation

96

R70N - cavae




= Nes "* -~ | = [——————————Red plain concrete roof tiles to suit profile and
appearance of existing roof

Face fixed Timber painted fascias to match
original extension detailing

Proposed side, east elevation

Timber painted verge and fascia boards

Proposed side, west elevation

97



h glazed
e behind

DO ONNO ONNC O WO O

i YOO ONNOO O MO0 WS WO O WO OO 7 MO0
ZEN

12 13

18m high dose boarded fence to be retaine

e
7 —
\ ' ,
f ,
\ |
/ I AN
1/ 2 3 4 5 ] T |8 9 | no 11 'I . Vo
| T2 | T3 IJ ‘Tdﬂ | -\"‘,TS ~ 6 Vef'ichllar access o
II (O T = be ef\larged f
| | | i |
|
{
‘\§ - _;'..'I s
] Ty N - -
, ", £ ) -~
& "2 \‘}t;:\ ___4."'"’7 ", . 2 . —

1.8m high paladin fence tb be retained |

Extract from tree constraints plan, illustrating position of T1 and T7 to be removed

98



|

—

Front elevation and access to be widened

99



Rear elevation

R

N REATEIRRRR TGN,
LR

100



on

Infill extens

Outbuilding to be demolished with 30-32 Sewell Road in background to right

101



Side, north west boundary with 30-32 Sewell Road beyond

102




north boundary with Sewell Road

’

Rear

indum Terrace

itholL

Side, west boundary w

103



This page is intentionally blank.



10-11 Lindum Terrace neighbour consultation responses to original proposals

Customer Details
Name: Miss Paula West
Address: 15 Wragby road Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:This is an area of historic significance with buildings of individual architectural merit. The
plans that have been submitted are basic, lack any merit or finesse and cannot have been
considerered as the building only burnt down 6 weeks prior to the application being submitted
meaning the plans have been hastily drawn up. The trees are a unique and integral part of this
area and should be maintained. | strongly object to the submitted plans.

Customer Details
Name: Guy Bart-Smith
Address: Flat 6 14 Lindum Terrace Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Having lived on lindum terrace for 6 years | withessed one of the most beautiful
properties in Lincoln reduced to rubble - this was a truly sad day. Almost over night, proposals are
in place to renovate the area - this concerns me greatly. The proposed plans show zero
imagination and are not in keeping with the street. We need to preserve what we have and
maintain the history of our architectural past. There is a time and place for greed and that is not at
the cost of our Historical identity. These building should be purchased on the condition of
renovating back to their original designs. What we should not be doing is turning these into what
can only be described as student accommodation.

105



17 Lindum Terrace
Lincoln.

LMN2 SRT.
26.11.2021

Re. Planning Application 10/11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln
Dear Ms. Smyth,

Thank you for your letter outlining the proposed changes to the above buildings. We have now
viewed the planning application an line and would like to make the following objections;

Appearance: The new curtain wall, linking the two buildings is out of character with the existing
buildings and has a more industrial/ city centre vibe than the location can happily accommaodate. We
live opposite these buildings and feel that this structure would detract from our view and the

historic character of the area.

Moise and disturbance: Presently, the east end of Lindum Terrace (from the junction with Sewell
Road to the junction with Eastcliff Road) consists of four houses and two sets of flats (| believe that
Somerby House has 9 flats and number 14 Lindum Terrace has 6 flats) Therefore to build 33 new
flats would more than double the local population. We note that the majority of these flats are very
small one bedroom apartments which will attract students and very young adults. This is a very quiet
area with many residents of a more mature age. We do not wish to import the noise and problems
that the West End of Lincoln already experience. We are very worried that if this development
should be past it would set a president for the adjoining plot of land (number 12) where the original
property has recently been demalished. Such developments are likely to destroy the beautiful,
peaceful and historic corner of Lincoln in which we are presently fortunate to live.

Highway safety and congestion: Another concern regarding the curtain wall is that the large amount
of glass will reflect sunlight and has the potential to dazzle those of us who live opposite as well as
anyone driving past.

We are very concerned about the extra traffic and on strest parking such a development will create.
The proposed development is for 33 flats; however, there are only 20 allocated parking spaces. This
will almost certainly mean that there will be additional parking required and this will further congest
the neighbouring streets. Lindum Terrace is already over used for parking (practically every day cars
are parked over our white line which makes getting in and out of aur drive physically difficult and
also dangerous as we cannot see what is coming until we are in the middle of the road).

Also the proposed vehicle entrance is close to a sharp bend, it is already a problem (mainly because
of the parking on the south side of the road) but the extra traffic that this development would
undoubtedly cause, in that particular area, would considerable exasperated the situation.

Frances Halse

106



Customer Details
Name: Mr Frederick Hackett
Address: St. Anne's House 27 Sewell Road Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:| welcome the proposal. The proposed use of the existing buildings and the architecture
are sympathetic to the residential nature of the locality. | have the following comments to make:

1. The proposal will bring 33 more cars into the area. That is a lot for the local area to absorb.

2. A retaining wall will be required along the boundary behind car parking spaces 15 - 20 to
accommodate the difference in ground level between the proposed site and the garage
immediately to the West owned by me.

3. Several of the mature trees on the proposed site are being killed by ivy growing up the trunks.
The ivy should be removed to restore the trees to their full potential.

We are writing to voice our concerns about the proposed development. Our worries are mainly
personal as we feel we will be totally overlooked from the west elevation rooms and fear the noise
from the construction works will be invasive over a long period of time . Although the area contains
several flats all are small developments within and retaining the character and period features of
the buildings as well as providing parking for all residents . This proposed development is out of
keeping with the lovely area we live in and does not provide enough parking for the amount of
dwellings leaving no alternative but for the occupants to try to use street parking which is already
choc-a-block . We are also concerned about the access to the site on a road that is totally ill
equipped to cope with this extra volume of traffic and is at bursting point already .

Please consider our views when reviewing the above planning application

Regards

lan and Kim Wishart

9 Eastcliff Road

Lincoln

LN2 5RU

107



Customer Details
Name: Jennifer Williams
Address: 29 Sewell Road Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

Comment: The development of this site is long overdue and welcomed. My concern is with the
intensification and overdevelopment of the site. | understand that a high density development will
provide a better return on investment for the developer and help meet housing demand if there is a
shortage of one bedroom flats in Lincoln. The designation of this part of Lincoln as a Conservation
Area, however, means that the historic character of the area should be preserved. By removing all
green open space and providing inadequate parking for the number of flats, the development is
out of scale. There are flats in the vicinity but these are within historic buildings and do not affect
the character of the neighbourhood. If this high density development is approved would that set a
precedent for the demolished no 12 Lindum Terrace site for further low quality high density
housing which would further erode the historic character which the Conservation Area designation
should protect.

Mature trees should be preserved and ivy should not be permitted to choke them.

108



Application

Terra Lincoln

Re: Plannin, 10/11 Lindur e,

Dear Ms. Smyth,

Many thanks for

Having now viewed the Location I would like to make the follow

The area of

Road

Sewell

Lindum Terrace

wounld ke disturbed

who

more mature age

posed flate being one

young adults which would not be conducive

out the extra

concerns a

the development will create as although there wi

spaces have been allocated .

about the adjoining

here are a concerns

Just been demolished . Are there plans under

site 7 It would Be a

at

flats on

109

your recent letter concerning the proposed ehang

place with many

to

IN2 5qU.

6th

lece

the above

comments

Yours

residents



Lueain,

T

L NZ S ]

5

} . )

[’ ey L iLeN -
5 T st ke T
N

ko

Rt

--"L'*"‘.n"vlﬂ

bec 202

] i
CRwndiim

et the

for o

Leagh U wiald
' 1 I ‘.
aied; ]]'\(N-'._j wl Ll"L?uut s

a Yy :J..\ ’\‘r'[ L I"I:

L
i i TP~
ol [T (RPN ! )
Y=} M . 2 b, 5T L
: - St M S Y

\—“J_A 1;"\.1., = 3 - L

P2, : o ’
| S ""'r"""“;a.j" W L‘*U— TS (8 wivulo

| f'lj-nc,u._ "-'}-..xix v ;.,-'le.___i,TL.} X
i G \ -;1\4 [‘V« Wapedy ;,'
%ufh;-ﬂ-'t luglas A Ky
Wal, b s Y
o L !

4
Ve

',ﬁ:ll';-‘.;;.f‘ b

-

Jalic ]l‘tf‘.lﬁs‘.{_u,.\é'
L'

w_‘;:w_dr ..II-N-'J.UHJ x.k.n.-"ﬂf\u\[.m...\__r-
1|'i-J{ <A

(.

é!l- 5 b3 b

L= .
(Rt ) r:_\__,‘.(_'\i.,-;_;i?.\, L P ,t_'\l.,u o l-*-'—L"'I‘”\-' ; WT I!I d : "
Jl'm_é-i o f;-.>”._ vt B, ) -1-‘|. paal C-*?i.tu Hr'.-‘._&.; ) il l'-‘{,f.ﬁ'b v Y2l p
I_.g,_',._:'l L A T ad ? ‘;L_-", T;Lv' 5 ) 'u"-l;"l_‘i ek, e -.:J o v
diyiy ol wl "JL) L-Wi'\fr'-h!"f [iite
T‘ b Adea o S e £ AT et ol ¢ lay g
R R e Rt i*ﬁ ncgystede W VEZwoyad ¢ £ a
‘\,--.f:riu"- {...*.z-u. W U ki : | el § 5 i L 'L\'ﬂ"t G at Li<
W P b, AV,
Lindim  TRvace Wi & SWatr Scewg of fRnk g o
Gnd ) H 5 “P\L"T” AIJL‘“‘] o Ve '5-“uL' AL T, walbihe,  mov

\e J o
‘ﬁw:u\\" s g PR Sawglha.  Wevio € gpetiehe Ao :
._“%be.'wx: o n TH. L\,l ConNG o et s e Saitin [

e T | I

| ) [
e | F ’
=g c \':‘J L\T ¥ S Ve

quEul:u'\

AN

L A [P+

110

< -"-\Jl'n.“_‘
J \

VR




Dear Marie
Further to our phone call with regard to this planning application reference 2021/0944/FUL., we are now writing to
set out our objections to the plans as they currently stand.

Overall, we are pleased to see that the site is being developed with a view to maintaining the original Victorian
design and we appreciate that this kind of development is better than leaving the site boarded up and at risk of
vandalism and arson and other activities detrimental to the local conservation area.

However, as the purchasers of 16 Lindum Terrace opposite the development site, we have the following concerns
and objections.

1.

SCALE ( density and over-crowding of the site and area),NOISE and DISTURBANCE, AIR POLLUTION : we are
concerned that the developers are over-developing the site with mare flats than the local area can
accommodate without a detrimental effect on this peaceful conservation area. This level of over-crowding
will cause an increase in noise, pollution, rubbish and traffic.

APPEARANCE, DESIGN, LAYOUT and CONSERVATION OF BUILDINGS: New Design not in-keeping with the
original: We think that the additional new building on the side of the original buildings is an unnecessary
addition and cannot be seen as an enabling development as there will be more than enough flats in the
main properties to cover the cost of development and make a large profit. This added building changes the
front view of these period properties in a way that does not enhance their design in a conservation area.
EFFECTS ON TREES, APPEARANCE, DESIGN: Tree conservation and increasing the access gateway. We are
concerned about the proposal to cut down a tree by the access to the property in order to widen the
entrance. Both the removal of the tree and the widening of the access will alter the overall look of these
properties in a way that will not enhance or be in keeping with the conservation area and the road as a
whole.

APPEARANCE, DESIGN and CONSERVATION OF BUILDINGS: We are pleased to see that the design has stated
the use of timber frame windows in keeping with the original design and we would stress the importance of
adhering to this and not replacing with UPVC in order to preserve the beauty of this conservation area. If
the development is approved, we are concerned to know how this will be monitored once development
begins.

APPEARANCE, DESIGN and CONSERVATION OF BUILDINGS: Satellite dishes —as there are to be a number of
flats in the buildings, we are concerned if the development goes ahead that the front of the property is not
litered with satellite dishes, which would be hugely detrimental to the appearance of these properties in
this conservation area.

We thank you for considering these concerns and objections and look forward to heanng your response.

Yours sincerely

Dr Philippa and Mr Jonathan Casares
Currently of:

29 Magdalen Road

St Leonards on Sea

111



-Qc ﬂ’“""““i ﬁP\O\I cation o I W Undum Tercaze, Lincela,
|

@%ﬂf Mg im\/«\ =

T\:‘“""““\j e veviewd % M P‘GL‘_‘.\?.\S.“'\_%. .a.\olecvd'IQ.ntj_;
\?A&_\&\A\. Lke te malle m._;_‘eo\kMLuj_n\?)CLhcz\g_,

_ Appeamnca TSR B
| .

| The ‘;rof)o;‘ar.l &—ede\aio»\bu:’- som a:o\?,u_»q ™ M

dree Mned chacacke~ 63 Ahe ovea  widn Avees Joeolan-

_ol The \.9‘\\&9’5! % Yot \9'-'.\\9[\-“\:): U"e.:;k‘t/) (SN -
valu SJ‘;LJ V\.‘\;G/ el _‘8 chovactes vk T
res \J.D»-'\\:\d h‘(\\j\_g»ﬂ\’r‘\f\&_ﬁ’dv :

| Ea— R VN Yreage NN
:w_ Ceroas Too \\-\A/\V) £\ XA ‘mio Az cx\\oc:tﬂ.d\ Qo
o & cMarackes vsia ot Levelopmets w T
buces. $uSn as  Sewersy Movse a gldh ek W
Lindowm Terrmce (o glaks, —

iNc'f; S | o\\j‘“\)r\oC\\«qQ
o [ The ?repcsr;_é _oﬁin&&s’yv\ws\‘ﬁw_cau “*.“5‘“1\"\ Mertorxe

112



J
o
G
-
"
N
0
+
-
-t

Additional neighbour responses following re-consultation on revised proposals

Customer Details
Name: Dr Philippa Casares
Address: 29 Magdalen Road St. Leonards-on-Sea St Leonards on sea

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:We are very pleased overall with the revised plans that have taken note of some of our

major objections. | think this is probably a reasonable development now for the area. It may be
worth noting though that the actual numbers of residents isn't actually greatly reduced? 6 2
bedroom and 27 one bedroom is 39 individuals and 16 two bedroom (32) and 4 one bedroom is 36
individuals! So the issues pertaining to SCALE (density and over-crowding) will still apply. We

think it should be possible to reduce this a little further.

Yours sincerely

Dr Philippa and Mr Jonathan Casares

We will be moving to Lindum terrace opposite the development in March

113



Customer Details
Name: Mrs Frances Halse
Address: 17 Lindum Terrace Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:While | welcome the reduction in the number of flats being proposed | am concerned
that this is still an over development of the site as it is still more than doubling the number of
properties in the very small area of Lindum Terrace (between the road junctions with Sewell Road
and Eastcliffe Road) and this includes the flats in two of the former Victorian Villas which contain 6
and 9 flats respectively.

Noise and disturbance:

In order to squeeze 20 flats into the area available the properties are still very small and will
therefore, still only interest young single people or young couples, this almost certainly means that
there will be increase in noise and disturbance.

Highway safety and congestion:

While there is now one allocated parking space for each proposed flat this does not allow for
households with two cars or for visitors with cars so it seems inevitable that Lindum Terrace and
the surrounding streets will become more congested.

The vehicle access to the development is still in the same place, very close to the shape bend
round to Sewell Road. In my opinion this will create a dangerous junction (as detailed in my earlier
submission).

Appearance:

My earlier comments regarding the curtain wall still stand - The new curtain wall, linking the two
buildings is out of character with the existing buildings and has a more industrial/ city centre vibe
than the location can happily accommodate. We live opposite these buildings and feel that this
structure would detract from our view and the historic character of the area.

114



= |S L‘\V\c‘Uw\ Té,(ﬁi‘cg
[ s Linc ol

| g MAR22 | N 8T

2 Ml 2022

‘R-‘L" 20’)4/ o944 /eu 10-W Lindim Timee ANZ SRS

Cowmenlz S H‘*MN'\) 'Aw\\caho-\

I tque;.r '\‘*’ P, ']'Jvlovs c_;,..\k;wis

I ‘M...’_‘.* 3 "f‘"&’r ;‘\Q \‘\ti’g\' ¢ (Ac\ky;j ao \O"\ rw wif \\
LR\N QJA . 5&() o N é M\j ceadiou Comue s

Te K wdigeng TR donsdy wtve boy

('\pg(.'u-‘\wc;/. | I
Q,Wp\? bz~ «w\'c}mt) N &Yhu_) g\ \N.\\, . S

K o Ledleow~ é\'\.\S Qfﬂd\&.\(‘\, \71'0 y«.'n] Wy S
\QS‘;&N ey o o \o & /B {l«?‘g wleh A
{Q_a) c;\,d'\\. & U +2,/_ > ,}-(’ éh‘,\&’t\ AR 0" Oy —

v cbsle 4 ed

)nw,\;\.wv.k. RN Vz()./o‘szw*z 2

- c)u.iz\qiw.._i =

3 h g'\\.; ‘ 1’\\/«" \uc.)»\s\d'a\_}
°

il St t\.vc\r\'mm.}
-L a&é(\‘\a~ : \'\g( "\két— 't-'ﬁ\ \X\J‘Cu.\l? (‘2\,.\9\/.-\1
as o= e e (,,Nﬁu)\c\./(_\

el wales A wonkeafe

;U.VQ (O ‘M \Q(fv\"‘? ;

§ oA Ao wape
QQ'Y\,;_Q_) A L e lovace
r;( | M GV Z e "23“-\ w’(\*\_‘\ A Cﬁk&'e!»/(»\*\-'\. Nﬁ"\-

Teee L'\dw_su ok of  sudh wmbov At oy e

haawve WAt . C“W&\C* V- “\“' Svg{hi‘\\a\ “,\",,\L}

lowal  Avafiic nd tixe x‘fg,'\-r\h.;‘\ A

> A

115



. i B ] f ettt
FML.LT ; Jﬂ\{ 'Jr:'.“.-'lﬁt_{:f-'ix a\ouw! Ty 1] _)]t.r(a.n.

f: Mo Bde aad 5 ot b

M.‘rr'-.hf,t jb-.-_x L ;;'.I’:i'\- i
) wd
Gy, B sl e W w |
iV ) 4.1 Lo [m'l._‘:. Cea m_h{ E:\-u\-\\ il ﬁ-.f‘;f .’UL,V{,;.
N} A4 PN W Dimtina eJ«\T wlsvable  acd  dewkg
ﬁ:.n.u,--\l“l ‘I:;'" 0 1'..{".-\4- a.-':\“. I'T,H';\LLFL LN -._A‘t‘.'u. fe ey L "'\;:j . jhll 'I'-f"\"_"_\':;{- v .
% i [\ -
ConleTdha « B -l|“>--"l1|.£"l b ml.!l:“.’l A e o | -
e ke
" X » ll i i i
;'J'I‘I_{'h'-l'.“"l' ¥ as i 2 II--'ll' ol | = :’Br_' -t-ir'-'._f T, 2 {(‘ by r"l ; ("l.{
JpE
/ 5
e Jr L-.ETW‘-#
e s, Goouille * e
i i ‘fll.“r" 3 » "l“'w. [ S [ RO 1 - -'-’j :
_:‘__'_. "-"“':_JI-"\‘ l.._,qru?!_uj.
i ho
Lo ST i x .
IL & a .-""M-r‘:.-'* Fa T £5%, WAl ST |
s L} in

Responses from statutory and other consultees to original and revised proposals

116



Good morning,

I am contacting you with regard to the application 2021/0944/FUL for 10/11 Lindum Terrace.

Whilst | welcome these lovely buildings being retuned to use there are a few points | would like to make.

The demolition and reconstruction on the link corridor, while probably necessary, | feel should be in keeping with
the rest of the building. | would propose that the same brick be used and redesigned to reflect the architecture of
the buildings.

The number of flats is very large and thus creating a huge additional traffic on the area. This does need to be
considered. Not only will there potentially be 33 new homes, but that will be a possible 33 vehicles. While some flats
may be occupied by a couple and they may have a car each. With this, additional traffic and parking will inevitably
be an issue especially when the residents have visitors etc. | note 20 parking spaces which seems totally inadequate!
The number of spaces needs to be increased or the number of flats reduced to allow for more spacious flats. These
parking spaces should also offer electric charging points and cycle storage also.

I would like to see the trees kept and maintained.

If this was to get planning permission | think it would be important to consider working times for construction due to
the residents near by as well as times for access. This is going to be a huge job and the noise and disruption for

residents must be considered and limited to reasonable times.

| have noted that there are a couple of residents who object and | would like you to carefully consider their
concerns.

One resident is concerned about being overlooked therefore please consider any steps which could be taken to limit
this.

Many thanks,

Clare

Clir Clare Smalley

City of Lincoln Councillor — Abbey Ward

117



Re: Reconsultation on Planning Application
< ew
e Smalley, Clare (City of Lincoln Council) © Reply © Reply Al 7 Forwerd

To Technical Team (City of Linceln Council) Tue 08/03/2022 16:48

Dear Development Team,

| am contacting you with regard to the amended application for 2021/0944/FUL for 10/11 Lindum Terrace.

Whilst | welcome the slight amendments | really do not feel that changes will make any impact on the residents or my own
concerns.

The number of flats is still very large and thus creating a huge additional traffic on the area. There will still be 20 flats, and with 16
being two bedroomed flats, this has the potential of two adults as a minimum, which would be 40 cars, plus visitors. This would
create an enormous amount of additional traffic and parking will inevitably be an issue especially when | note that only 20
parking spaces are being created stilll This seems totally inadequate! The number of spaces needs to be increased or the number
of flats reduced but not made into bedroomed which would also attract a minimum of two adults. These parking spaces should
also offer electric charging points as standard and cycle storage also.

If this was to get planning permission, | think it would be important to consider working times for construction due to the
residents nearby as well as times for access available for deliveries etc. This is going to be a huge job and the noise and disruption

for residents must be considered and strictly limited to reasonable times.

| have noted that there are many residents who object, and | would suggest that these valid concerns are carefully considered.

One resident highlighted their concern about being overlooked however | cannot see that this has been addressed, therefore
please consider any steps which could be taken to limit this.

The demolition and reconstruction on the link corridor, while probably necessary, | feel should be in keeping with the rest of the building. |
would propose that the same brick be used and redesigned to reflect the architecture of the buildings

Many thanks,

Clare

Clir Clare Smalley

118



NHS

Lincolnshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

Application Number: 2021/0944/FUL
Location: Development at 10-11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln comprising of 33 flats (27
one bed, 6 two bed)

Impact of new The above development is proposing 33 dwellings, which, based on the average of
development on | 2.3 person per dwelling for City of Lincoln Council, would result in an increase in
GP practice patient population of 76.

The calculations below show the likely impact of this new population in terms of
number of additional consultation time required by clinicians. This is based on the
Department of Health calculation in HBN11-01: Facilities for Primary and Community
Care Services.

Consulting room GP

Proposed population 76

Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts 0.076 x 5260 = 399
Assume 100% patient use of | 399

room
Assume surgery open 50 399/50=8

weeks per year

Appointment duration 15 mins

Patient appointment time per | 8 x 15/60 = 2 hrs per week
week

Treatment room Practice Nurse

Proposed population 76
Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients

Anticipated annual contacts 0.076 x 5260 = 399
Assume 20% patient use of 399 x20% =792

room
Assume surgery open 50 79.8/50 = 1.597

weeks per year

Appointment duration 20 mins

Patient appointment time per | 1.597 x 20/60 = 0.5 hrs per week
week

Therefare, an increase in pepulation of 76 in the City of Lincoln Council area will
place extra pressure on existing provisions, for example, extra appointments requires
additional consulting hours (as demonstrated in the calculations above). This in turn
impacts on premises, with extra consultingftreatment room requirements.

1 Source: Lincolnshire Research Obsenvalony 2011 Census Data

119




GP practice(s)
most likely to be
affected by the
housing
development

Due to the fact that patients can choose to register at any practice that covers the
area of the development, and there are no waiting lists for patients, all practices that
provide care for the region that the development falls within are obliged to take on
patients, regardless of capacity.

Due to the location of the development the § practices that would be impacted are
Abbey Medical Practice, Minster Medical Practice, Lindum Medical Practice,
Brayford Medical Practice and University Health Centre.

Issues to be
addressed to
ensure the
development is
acceptable

Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) wishes for the Section 106
contribution from the development at 10-11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln comprising of
33 flats (27 one bed, 6 two bed) to contribute to patients registered within IMP PCN.

Collaborative work is currently underway on the estate’s strategy for the Lincoln
area, as part of the Primary Care Network.

This development would put additional demands on the existing GP services for the
area and additional infrastructure would be required to meet the increased demands.

Mationally the NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, seeks to improve
the quality of patient care and health outcomes. The plan builds on previous national
strategies, including the General Practice Forward View (2016), and includes
measures to:

o Improve out-of-hospital care, supporting primary medical and community
health services;

+ Ensure all children get the best start in life by continuing to improve matermity
safety including halving the number of stillbirths, maternal and neonatal
deaths and serious brain injury by 2025;

+ Support clder people through more personalised care and stronger
community and primary care services;

o  Make digital health services a mainstream part of the NHS, so that patients in
England will be able to access a digital GP offer.

The strategic direction both nationally through the development of Primary Care
Metworks (PCN) and locally through the Sustainability Transformation Plan, is to
provide primary care at scale, facilitating 100% patient population coverage by
primary care and services being delivered in the community in an integrated way.
Included within the PCNs is the requirement to provide on-line access to services
and appointments, as well as the introduction of additional roles to enhance the
delivery of primary care, including Clinical Pharmacists, Physiotherapists, Social
Prescribers, Emergency Care and Mental Health Practitioners.

The Lincoln GP Practices are within the Lincolnshire CCG IMP and Marina PCN
(Primary Care Networks) where the housing is being developed. There is a huge

variation in the type, age and suitability of current premises within the PCN
Metworks.

120




The PCNs are working to employ addiional staff to increase capacity within primary
care and as more care is moved to the community from secondary care closer to
individuals’ home.

Fairly and
reasonably
related in scale
and kind to the
development.

Average | Required £ perm2 Total cost Eper

list size | m2 persoen

per GP
GP team 1,800 170 2,300 £391,000 217
GP furnishings | 1,800 £20,000 12

229

Contingency requirements @ 20% 46
Total per resident 275
Total per dwelling (resident x 2.3) 632.50

The table above shows the contribution formula which is based on the needs of a
Primary Care Health Team and associated administration support. By applying
average national list sizes to these groups and identifying the required area and
furnishings, a total cost of £275 per patient is determined. This figure is multiplied by
2.3 (the average number of persons per dwelling for City of Lincoln Council) to provide
a funding per dwelling of £632 50.

Financial
Contribution
requested

The contribution requested for the development of £20,672.50 (632.50 x 33
dwellings)

Please note that the expectation is that the appropnate indexation rate and any late
payment penalties would also be paid on top of the value specified above.

Trigger point

There is currently limited capacity at some practices to accommodate additional
growth in patient numbers anising from this development, therefore it is requested that
the trigger point for the release for funds for health care be set at payment of all monies
upon completion of 50 percent of the dwellings for each phase of the development.
This will ensure the practices are not placed under undue pressure.

To ensure that there is sufficient time carry out the works and allow the 5106 funds to
be spent in the most appropriate way, a repayment period of 10 years from receipt of
the final payment transfer (for the entire development) to the relevant NHS body will
be required.

Kate Robinson

Locality Improvement and Delivery Manager
MHS Lincelnshire Clinical Commissioning Group
3 December 2021

121




NHS

Lincolnshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

Application Number: 2021/0944/FUL
Location: Development at 10-11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln comprising of 33 flats (27
one bed, 6 two bed) — REVISED 20 flats (4 one bed, 16 two bed)

Impact of new The above development is proposing 20 dwellings, which, based on the average of
development on | 2.3 person per dwelling for City of Lincoln Council, would result in an increase in
GP practice patient population of 46.

The calculations below show the likely impact of this new population in terms of
number of additional consultation time required by clinicians. This is based on the
Department of Health calculation in HEN11-01: Facilities for Pnimary and Community
Care Services.

Consulting room GP

FProposed population 46

Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts 0.046 x 5260 =242
Assume 100% patient use of | 242

room
Assume surgery open 50 242/50=438

weeks per year

Appointment duration 15 mins

Patient appointment time per | 4.8 x 15/60 = 1.2 hrs per week
week

Treatment room Practice Nurse

Proposed population 46

Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts 0.046 x 5260 = 242
Assume 20% patient use of 242 x 20% =484

room
Assume surgery open 50 48 .4/50 = 0.968

weeks per year

Appointment duration 20 mins

Patient appointment time per | 0.968 x 20/60 = 0.3 hrs per week
week

Therefore, an increase in population of 46 in the City of Lincoln Council area will
place extra pressure on existing provisions, for example, extra appointments require
additional consulting hours (as demonstrated in the calculations above). This in turn
impacts on premises, with extra consultingftreatment room requirements.

1 Source: Lincolnehire Research Obsenvalony 2011 Census Data

122




GP practice(s)
most likely to be
affected by the
housing
development

Due to the fact that patients can choose to register at any practice that covers the
area of the development, and there are no waiting lists for patients, all practices that
provide care for the region that the development falls within are obliged fo take on
patients, regardless of capacity.

Due to the location of the development the & practices that would be impacted are
Abbey Medical Practice, Minster Medical Practice, Lindum Medical Practice,
Brayford Medical Practice and University Health Centre.

Issues to be
addressed to
ensure the
development is
acceptable

This development would put additional demands on the existing GP services for the
area and additional infrastructure would be required to meet the increased demands.

Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) wishes for the Section 106
contribution from the development of 20 dwellings on 10-11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln
to contribute to the expansion in capacity through remodelling/changes to layout or
extension to existing facilities within the IMP Primary Care Network (PCN) at Abbey
Medical Practice, Minster Medical Practice and Lindum Medical Practice.
Alternatively the funding may, where appropriate, be used to support expansion in
capacity at an alternative general practice site as required to meet the local
population health need.

The strategic direction both nationally through the development of PCN and locally
through the Sustainability Transformation Plan is to provide primary care at scale,
facilitating 100% patient population primary care and services delivered in the
community in an integrated way. Included within the PCNs this is the introduction of
additional roles to enhance the delivery of primary care, including a Clinical
Pharmacist, Physiotherapist and Social Prescriber.

MNationally the NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, seeks to improve
the quality of patient care and health cutcomes. The plan builds on previous national
strategies, including the General Practice Forward View (2016), and includes
measures to:

s Improve out-of-hospital care, supporting primary medical and community
health services;

+ Ensure all children get the best start in life by continuing to improve matemity
safety including halving the number of stillbirths, maternal and neonatal
deaths and serious brain injury by 2025;

s Support clder people through more personalised care and stronger
community and primary care services;

+ Make digital health services a mainstream part of the NHS, so that patients in
England will be able to access a digital GP offer.

Abbey Medical Practice, Minster Medical Practice and Lindum Medical Practice are
within the LCCG IMP PCN where the housing is being developed. There is a huge
variation in the type, age and suitability of current premises within the PCN
Networks.

123




The PCMNs are working to employ additional staff to increase capacity within primary
care and as more care is moved to the community from secondary care closer to
individuals' home.

Fairly and
reasonably
related in scale
and kind to the
development.

Average | Required £ perm2 Total cost fper

list size | m2 person

per GP
GP team 1,800 170 2,300 £391,000 217
GP furnishings | 1,800 £20,000 12

229

Contingency requirements @ 20% 46
Total per resident 275
Total per dwelling (resident x 2.3) 632.50

The table above shows the contribution formula which is based on the needs of a
Primary Care Health Team and associated administration support. By applying
average national list sizes to these groups and identifying the required area and
furnishings, a total cost of £275 per patient is determined. This figure is multiplied by
2.3 (the average number of persons per dwelling for City of Lincoln Council) to provide
a funding per dwelling of £632.50.

Financial
Contribution
requested

The contribution requested for the development of £12,650.00 (632.50 x 20
dwellings)

Please note that the expectation is that the appropnate indexation rate and any late
payment penalties would also be paid on top of the value specified above.

Trigger point

There is currently limited capacity at some practices to accommodate additional
grewth in patient numbers arising from this development, therefore it is requested that
the trigger point for the release for funds for health care be set at payment of all monies
upon completion of 50 percent of the dwellings for each phase of the development.
This will ensure the practices are not placed under undue pressure.

To ensure that there is sufficient time carry out the works and allow the s106 funds to
be spent in the most appropriate way, a repayment period of 10 years from receipt of
the final payment transfer (for the entire development) to the relevant NHS body will
be required.

Kate Robinson

Locality Improvement and Delivery Manager
NHS Lincelnshire Clinical Commissioning Group
3 December 2021

Kate Robinseon

Locality Improvement and Delivery Manager
NHS Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group
24 February 2022

124




From: Property Strategy

Sent: 17 December 2021 12:06

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: RE: Consultation on Planning Application
Categories: Kelly Bray

WARNING: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links, open attachments or

reply unless you are confident that the content is safe and do not share inappropriately.
Hi Marie

Many thanks for the below consultation. The County Council has no comments on this consultation in relation to
education as there is sufficient capacity in the locality for the children generated by this scheme.

Kind regards

Simon

Simon Challis

Strategic Development Officer
Lincolnshire County Council

County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL

RE: Reconsultation on Planning Application

Repl & Reply All F d
Property Strategy < Reply %) Reply —» Forwar
To Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council) Fri 25/02/20,

WARNING: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links, open attachments or reply unless you are confident that the
content is safe and do not share inappropriately.

Many thanks for the below consultation. The County Council has no comments on this consultation in relation to education as there is sufficient
capacity in the locality for the children generated by this scheme.

Sam Barlow

Asset Advisor

Lincolnshire County Council

County Offices, Newland, Limcoln, LN1 1YL

125



Warren Peppard

Head of Development Management
Lincalnshire County Council

County Offices

MNewland

Lincoln LN1 1YL

Tel: 01522 782070
HighwaysSUDsSupporti@incolnshire. gov.uk

To:  Lincoln City Council Application Ref: 2021/0944/FUL

Proposal: Partial demolition and extension to faciliate change of use to 27no. one bhedroom
and éno. two bedroom flats including associated vehicular parking and access

Location: 10 - 11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN2 SRS

With reference to the above application received 18 November 2021

Motice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.

The site is located in a central urban area where services and facilities are within a reasonable
distance to be accessed via sustainable travel options such as walking, cycling and public transport.
Future residents of the development will not be reliant on the private car and therefore parking is
not essential for this proposal, however, some level of parking is provided within the limits of site
to accommodate parking for up to 20 vehicles. The change of use from will not adversely affect the
public highway. The existing access onto Lindum Terrace is to be improved and widened and is
appropriate for the minor increase in traffic movements associated with this development. The
surface water drainage will not be affected by these proposals as they are change of use of existing
and/or consented buildings.

Highway Informative 03

The permitted development requires the formation of a new/amendead wvehicular access. These
works will require approval from the Highway Authority in accordance with Section 184 of the
Highways Act. The works should be constructed in accordance with the Authority's specification
that is current at the time of construction. Relocation of existing apparatus, underground services
or street furniture will be the responsibility of the applicant, prior to application. For application
guidance, approval and specification details, please wisit
https:/fwww.lincolnshire.gov.uk/licences-permits/apply-dropped-kerb or contact
vehiclecrossings@lincolnshire.gov.uk

126



Highway Informative 08

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522 782070
to discuss any proposed statutory utility connactions and any other works which will be required
within the public highway in association with the development permitted under this Consent. This
will enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and timings of these works.
For further guidance please visit our wehsite via the following links:

Traffic Management - hitps://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/traffic-management
Licences and Permits - https:/fwww.lincolnshire.gov.uk/licences-permits

NO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council {as Highway
Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed development is
acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning application.

Case Officern: Date: 2 December 2021
Sayrajr Heslawm

for Warren Peppard
Head of Development Management

RE: 2021/0944/FUL: 10-11 Lindum Terrace

. . Repl &y Reply All — Forward
Sarah Heslam <Sarah.Heslam@lincolnshire.gov.uk= ) Reply © Reply
To Smyth, Marie (City of Lincoln Council) Wed 09/03/2022 14:36

(i) You replied to this message on 09/03/2022 15:34.

Idiox CICO + Get more add-ins

'ARNING: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links, open attachments or reply unless you are

confident that the content is safe and do not share inappropriately.
Hi Marie,

Apologies for this one slipping through the net. However, | can confirm our comments remain unchanged.
Regards, Sarah

Sarah Heslam

Senior Development Management Officer

Lincelnshire County Council
County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL

127



love evexy dvop o
anglianwater o

C

Planning Applications — Suggested Informative Statements and
Conditions Report

If you would like to discuss any of the peints in this document please
coniact us on 07929 TAG955 or email
planningliaisoni@anglianwater. co.uk.

AW Site 1826821135916

Refarence:

Local Lincoln District (B)

Planning

Authority:

Site: 10 - 11 Lindum Terrace Lincoln

Lincolnshire LM2 SRS
Proposal: Partial demolition and exension to facilitate
change of use o 27no. one bedroom and

Bmo. two bedroom flats including associated
wvahicular parking and access

Planning 2021/0944/F L
application:

Prepared by: Pre-Development Team
Date: 1 December 2021

ASSETS

Section 1 - Assets Affected

Owr records show that there are no assets owned by Anglian Water or those subject to an adoplion agreement
within the dewalopment site boundary.

WASTEWATER SERVICES

Section 2 - Wastewater Treatment

The foul drainage from this developmeant is in the catchment of Canwick Water Recycling Centre that will have
available capacity for these flows

Planning Report

128



Section 3 - Used Water Network

This response has been based on the following submitied documents: Application Form Development will lead to an
unaccaptable risk of flooding downstream. Anglian Water will need o plan effectively for the proposad developmeant,
if parmission is granfed. Wa will need to work with the applicant to ensure any infrastructure improvemeants are
daliverad in line with the development. a full assessment cannot be made due o lack of information, the applicant
has not identified a discharge rate or connection point} [ We therefore request a condition requiring phasing plan
andlor on-site drainage strategy (1) INFORMATIVE - Motification of intention to connect to the public sewser under
5106 of the Water Industry Act Approval and consent will be required by Anglian Water, under the Water Industry
Act 1981, Contact Development Services Team 0345 G606 6087. (2) INFORMATIVE - Motification of intention to
connect to the public sewer under 5106 of the Water Industry Act Approval and consant will be required by Anglian
Water, under the Water Industry Act 1981, Contact Developmeant Services Team 0345 608 6087. (3) NFORMATIVE
- Protection of existing assels - A public sewer is shown on record plans within the land identified for the proposed
development. it appears that development proposals will affect exsting public sewers. | is recommended that the
applicant contacts Anglian Water Development Sarvices Team for further advice on this matter. Building over
existing public sewers will not be permitied (without agreement) from Anglian Water. (4) INFORMATINE - Building
near to a public sewer - Mo building will be permitied within the statutory easement width of 3 matres from thea
pipeline without agreement from Anglian Water. Please contact Development Services Team on 0345 606 G087, (5)
INFORMATNE: The developer should note that the site drainage details submitied hawe not bean approved for the
purposas of adoption. F the developer wishes o have the sewers included in a sewer adoption agreamant with
Anglian Water (under Sactions 104 of the Water industry Act 1991), they should contact our Development Saervices
Team on 0345 606 6087 at the earliest opportunity. Sewers intended for adoplion should be designed and
constructed in accordance with Sewers for Adoption guide for developers, as supplemeniad by Anglian Water's
requiremants.

Section 4 - Surface Water Disposal

The prefarred method of surface water disposal would be to a sustainable drainage system [SuDS) with connection
fo sewer seen as the last option. Building Regulations [part H) on Drainage and Waste Disposal for England
includes a surface waler drainage hierarchy, with infiltration on site as the preferred disposal oplion, followed by
discharge to watercourse and then connection o a sewer.

The surface waler strategyflood risk assessment submitted with the planning application relevant to Anglian Water
is unaccepiable. Mo evidence has been provided to show that the surface water hierarchy has been followed as
stipulated in Building Regulations Part H. This encompasses the frial pit logs from the infiltration tests and the
inwastigations in to discharging to a watercourse. If these methods are deemed to be unfeasible for the sile, we
require confirmation of the intended manhale connection point and discharge rate proposed before a connection to
the public surface water sewer s permitted. We would therefore recommend that the applicant neseds o consult with
Anglian Water and the Environment Agency. We request that the agreed strateqy is reflected in the planning

approval

Section 5 - Suggested Planning Conditions

Anglian Water would therefore recommend the following planning condition if the Local Planning Authority is mindful
fo grant planning approval.

Used Water Sewerage Network (Section 3)

W have no objection subject to the following condition: Condition Prior to the construction above damp proof
course, a scheme for on-site foul water drainage works, including connection point and discharge rate, shall be
submitted o and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Prior to the occupation of any phase, the foul

water drainage works relating to that phase must have been carried out in complele accordance with the approved
schemea. Reason To pravent environmeantal and amenity problems arising from flooding

Surface Water Disposal (Section 4)

CONDITION Mo drainage works shall commence until a surface water management sirategy has bean submitted fo
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authaority. Mo hard-standing areas to be constructed until the works
have bean carried out in accordance with the surface water sirategy 50 approved unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. REASON To pravent emvironmental and amenity problems arising from flooding.

Planning Report

129



FOR THE ATTENTION OF THE APPLICANT - if Section 3 or Section 4 condition has
been recommended above, please see below information:

Mext steps

Deskiop analysis has suggesied that the proposed development will lead fo an unacceptable risk of flooding
downstream. We therefiore highly recommend that you engage with Anglian Water at your earliest convenience to
davelop in consultation with us a feasible drainage strategy.

F you have not done so already, we recommend that you submit a Pre-planning enquiry with our Pre-Developmant
team. This can be completed online at our website hitp:ihwww anglianwater. co.ukl'developers/pre-develo pment. aspe

Once submitted, we will work with you in developing a feasible mitigation solution.

F a foul or surface water condition is applied by the Local Planning Authority to the Dedision MNotice, we will require a
copy of the following information prior fo recommending discharging the condition:

Foul water:

+ Feasible drainage strategy agreed with Anglian Water detailing the discharge solution including:
+ Developmeant size

+ Proposed discharge rate (Should you require a pumped connection, please note that our minimum pumped
discharge rate is 3.8l/s)

+ Connecting manhale discharge location (No connections can be made into a public rising main)

+ Motification of intention fo connect to the public sewer under 5106 of the Water Industry Act (More information
can be found on our website)

+ Feasible mitigation stralegy in agreement with Anglian Water (if required)

Surface water:

+ Feasible drainage strategy agreed with Anglian Water detailing the discharge solution, including:
« Development hectare size

+ Proposed discharge rate (Qur minimum discharge rate is 5l's. The applicant can verify the site's exdsting 1 in 1
year greanfield run off rate on the following HR Wallingford website -hilp-fwew uksuds comidrainage-

calcylafion-tools/greanfisld-runoff-rate-estimation . For Brownfield sites baing demolishad, the site should be
trealed as Greanfield. Where this is not practical Anglian Water would assess the roof area of the former

development site and subject to capacity, permit the 1 in 1 year calculated rate)
+ Connecting manhale discharge location

« Sufficient evidence o prove that all surface water disposal routes have bean explored as detailed in the surface
waler hisrarchy, stipulated in Building Regulations Part H (Our Surface Watar Policy can be found on our
websita)

From: Abigail Gilbert <********@witham3idb.gov.uk>

Sent: 21 December 2021 13:51

To: Technical Team {City of Lincoln Council) <Technical. Team@ lincoln.gov.uk>
Subject: 2021/0944/FUL

ARNING: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links,

open attachments or reply unless you are confident that the content is safe and do not

hare inappropriately.
Witham 3rd Extended Area - the board has no comments on this application, the development

does not affect the interests of the board.
|

130



A Historic England
istoric Englan

Ms Marie Smyth Direct Dial: 0121 625 6888
City of Lincoln Council

City Hall Our ref: W: P01446949
Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN1 1DF 8 December 2021

Dear Ms Smyth

T&CP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990

10-11 LINDUM TERRACE, LINCOLN, LINCOLNSHIRE, LN2 5RS
Application No. 2021/0944/FUL

Thank you for your letter of 18 November 2021 regarding the above application for
planning permission. On the basis of the information available to date, we do not wish
to offer any comments. We suggest that you seek the views of your specialist
conservation and archaeological advisers, as relevant.

It is not necessary for us to be consulted on this application again, unless there are
material changes to the proposals. However, if you would like detailed advice from us,
please contact us to explain your request.

Yours sincerely

Tim Allen

Tim Allen

Team Leader (Development Advice)
E-mail: tim.allen@HistoricEngland.org.uk

131



Customer Details
Name: Mrs Annette Faulkner p/p Lincolnshire Bat Group
Address: 65 London Road Spalding

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Thank you for sending us this report for our cbservations. Please note that the report
dates from 2015/16 and is valid for one year only before requiring an updated survey, as noted in
the report. As such it is way out of date and therefore invalid. Further surveys will therefore need
to be carried out.

132



Directorate of Communities & Environment
Simon Walters MBA, ACG, MCMI
City Hall, Beaumont Fee

Lincoln, LN1 10F
227 November 2021

Your Ref: 2021/ 0944/FUL

Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Consultation on Planning Permission

10 - 11 Lindum Terrace, Linceln, Lincolnshire, LN2 5RS

Partial demolition and extension to facilitate change of use to 27no. one
bedroom and 6no. two-bedroom flats including associated vehicular parking
and access

Lincolnshire Police do not have any objections to this application

External Doors and Windows

Building Regulations (October 152015) provides that for the first time all new homes will be
included within Approved Document Q: Security — Dwellings (ADQ).

Approved document Q applies to all new dwellings including those resulting from change of
use, such as commercial premises, warehouse and bams undergoing conversions into
dwellings. It also applies within Conservation Areas.

This will include doors at the entrance to dwellings, including all doors to flats or apartments,
communal doors to multi-occupancy developments and garage doors where there is a direct
access fo the premises. Where bespoke timber doors are proposed, there is a technical
specification in Appendix B of the document that must be met.

Windows: in respect of ground floor, basement and other easily accessible locations.

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 242016 (doors of
an enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference number for PAS 23/24 and is
published by Warmrington Certification Laboratories).

All ground floor windows and doors and those that are easily accessible from the ground
must conform to improved security standard PAS24:2016. Window retainers should be
provided on all windows that are accessible.

POLICE HEADQUARTERS

PO Box 999, Lincoln LN5 7PH % 01522 55 8292 _
(sat Nav: LN2 2LT) @ 07570099424 [@ 101 :.Lfn;mﬁ]
wwwe_lincs. police.uk EJ john.manuel@iincs pnn_police uk THANTIT

133



Under no circumstances should a trade person release button or similar uncontrolled access
method be used.

Individual Flat or Unit Doors.

Flat entrance door-sets should meet the same physical requirements as the ‘main front door’
e, PAS24:2016. The locking hardware should be operable from both sides of an unlocked
door without the use of the key (utilising a roller latch or latch operable from both sides of the
door-set by a handle). If the door-set is certified to either PAS24:2016 or 5T5 201 Issue
4:2012 then it must be classified as DKT.

Access Control

Where a communal entrance serves more than 5 units and less than ten it is recommended
that it should have a visitor door entry system and access control system to ensure
management of the buildings secunty and safety of the residents to the following standards:
PAS24:2016 — STS 201; LPS 2081 Security Rating B+.

Communal Areas & Mail Delivery

Where communal mail delivery facilities are proposed and are to be encouraged with other
secunty and safety measures to reduce the need for access to the premises communal letter
boxes should comply to the following crtena.

s Located at the main entrance within an intemal area or lobby (vestibule) covered by
CCTVY or located within an “airlock style’ entrance hall.

Be of a robust construction (Federation Technical Specification 009 (TS009)

Have anti-fishing properties where advised and appropnate.

Installed to the manufacturer's specifications.

Through wall mail delivery can be a suitable and secure method.

Under no circumstances would | recommend the use of a ‘Trade-man’s Button” or
other form of security override.

Lighting

Lighting should be designed to cover the external doors and be controlled by phofoelectric
cell (dusk to dawn) with a manual overnide. The use of low consumption lamps with an
efficacy of greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt is required; it is recommended that they be
positioned to prevent possible attack.

Scooter [ Cycle Storage

Scooter / Cycle stores within blocks of flats must have no windows and be fitted with a
secure door set that meets the same physical specification as ‘front door’ and specifically
Section 2, paragraphs 21.1 t0 216 and 21.8 to 21.13.

This will ensure that such stores are only accessible to residents. The locking system must
be operable from the inner face by use of a thumb tum to ensure that residents are not
accidentally locked in by another person. A bicycle store must also be provided with stands
with secure anchor points or secure cycle stands.

134



External bins store and home composting containers (supplied to meet 'Code for
Sustainable Homes' "Was 3') should be sited in such a way that they cannot be used as a
climbing aid to commit crime.

Utilities

To reduce the opportunities for theft by ‘bogus officials’ the utility meters should, where
possible, be located fo the outside of the dwelling at a point where they can be overlooked.
This will negate the need for an official to enter the building to read a meter, which will in tum
reduce the opportunity for distraction burglary. Where possible utility meters in multi
occupancy developments should be located on the ground floor between access controlled
doors (air lock system) so that access can be restncted to the meters

Note 33.1: Where a utility provider refuses to provide external meters, and there is an
obvious (historic) nsk of distraction burglary within the location, the developer should
consider an altemnative supplier.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification.

Please refer to Homes 2079 which can be located on www._securedbydesign_com Homes
2019.

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.
Neither the Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice
given. However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be
committed.

Yours sincerely,
John Manuel ma Ba (Hons) FGCE PGCPR Dip Bus.

Force Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO)

135



Directorate of Communities & Environment
Simon Walters MBA, ACG, MCMI
City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, LN1 1DF
25th February 2022

Your Ref: 2021/0944/FUL

Town and Country Planning Act 1930
Re-consultation on Planning Permission

10 - 11 Lindum Terrace, Linceln, Lincelnshire, LN2 SRS

Partial demolition and erection of 2: storey rear extension, first floor rear
extension and glazed link extension to facilitate change of use to 16no. two
bedroom and 4no. one-bedroom flats. Associated works to alter access from
Lindum Terrace, creation of vehicular parking and refurbishment works to
existing properties including replacement windows, doors and new rooflights.
(Revised description and plans).

Lincolnshire Police do not have any objections to this application

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification.

Please refer to Homes 2019 which can be located on www_securedbydesign.com Homes
2019.

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.
Neither the Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice
given. However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be
committed.

Y ours sincerely,
John Manuel ma Ba (Hons) PGCE PGCPR Dip Bus.

Force Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO)

136



Iltem No. 5b

Application Number: | 2021/0817/HYB

Site Address: Former William Sinclair Holdings Site, Firth Road, Lincoln
Target Date: 25th March 2022

Agent Name: DPP

Applicant Name: The Ashcourt Group

Proposal: Hybrid application for the erection of 22no. buildings for use as

HMO (Class C4/Sui Generis) (totalling 67no. units) and 1no.
office building with 8no. residential apartments on the first and
second floors (Class E(g)/C3) with associated parking and
landscaping works (Phase 1 - Full Planning Permission); and
erection of approximately 3no. apartment blocks (Class C3)
and 9no. HMOs (Class C4/Sui Generis) with associated
parking and landscape works (Phase 2 - Outline planning
permission including details of access only)

Background - Site Location and Description

This application seeks planning permission in Hybrid form with full details submitted for the
eastern part of the site (Phase 1) for the erection of 22 buildings comprising 67 residential
units including 40 C4 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and 19 Sui Generis HMOs.
An additional building at the entrance to the site will contain office accommodation at
ground floor with 8 apartments over two floors above. The site creates 310 bedspaces,
within Phase 1. 16 of the units would be accessible and their layouts also comply with
Building Regulations M4(3).

Phase 2 is in outline form with only the details of the access being considered as part of
the current application, all other matters are for consideration on subsequent reserved
matters applications. However, an indicative layout has been submitted showing 276
bedspaces within Phase 2.

The site is located to the southwest of the City Centre and currently vacant although
previously hosted a series of industrial buildings which have now been demolished. The
site is located within a Regeneration Opportunity Area as identified in the Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) and located within Flood Zone 3. Vehicular access to the
site is via Firth Road to the north.

To the north-west of the site is Tritton Retail Park with an industrial estate to the
north-east. The site is abutted by the River Witham on the eastern boundary with
residential properties located beyond. The southern boundary is defined by the Boultham
Pump Drain with Coulson Road located beyond the southern side of the bank. Coulson
Road is lined with residential properties on the southern side facing the application site. A
gym and a row of terraced properties line the western boundary on Waterloo Street, with
their rear yards backing onto the site.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 14th February 2022.

137



Policies Referred to

Policy LP1

Policy LP2

Policy LP9

Policy LP10
Policy LP12
Policy LP13
Policy LP14
Policy LP16
Policy LP18
Policy LP25
Policy LP26
Policy LP29
Policy LP32
Policy LP35

A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy
Health and Wellbeing

Meeting Accommodation Needs

Infrastructure to Support Growth

Accessibility and Transport

Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk
Development on Land affected by Contamination
Climate Change and Low Carbon Living

The Historic Environment

Design and Amenity

Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character
Lincoln's Universities and Colleges

Lincoln's Regeneration and Opportunity Areas

National Planning Policy Framework

Issues

The key issues for consideration are:

Principle of Use

Objection from University/Student Demand
Developer Contributions

Visual Amenity

Energy

Impact on Residential amenity

Traffic and Pedestrian Safety

Flood Risk and Drainage

Landscaping and Biodiversity Net Gain

Archaeology

Contaminated Land

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community

Involvement, adopted January 2018.

The applicant has also undertaken their own pre-application engagement via a
consultation letter to 186 local residents and businesses which provided information on the
proposed development. A link was given to these residents to make comments or raise

any queries.

Comments have been received as part of the consultation process. They can be viewed in
full online or at the end of this report. Concerns from neighbouring properties include, but
are not limited to, scale of the buildings, risk of flooding, impact on historic environment

and hours of work.

138



Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee

Comment

NHS England

Comments Received

Environment Agency

Comments Received

Highways & Planning

Comments Received

Upper Witham, Witham First
District & Witham Third
District

Comments Received

Lincoln Civic Trust

Comments Received

Lincolnshire Police

Comments Received

Anglian Water

Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name

Address

University Of Lincoln

45 Church Street
Birmingham
B3 2RT

Mr East

Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN6 7AQ

Mr Stephen Pepper

Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN6 7AQ

Mr John Woodward

24 Brookside
Scopwick
Lincoln

LN4 3PA

139

C/o Ravinder Uppal

77 Waterloo Street

73 Waterloo Street




Consideration

National and Local Planning Policy

Principle of Use

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) Policy LP2 advises that the Lincoln Urban Area will
be the principal focus for development in Central Lincolnshire, including housing. Policy
LP1 and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) also advise that housing
applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development.

The site is allocated as a re-development opportunity within the CLLP, with a range of
uses being acceptable in principle. Policy LP35, in relation to this site, states that
"Planning permission will be granted for the appropriate redevelopment of sites in the
regeneration area for housing, including accommodation for students, either solely or as
part of a mixed use development in association with: Business use (B1); Education and
community use (D1); Small shops/ cafés/ restaurants on the ground floor along the
waterfront; and Leisure."

The development of the site for student accommodation is therefore in principle in
accordance with the policy allocation for the area.

Student Demand

The University of Lincoln has objected to the application. The objection states that there is
a surplus of student accommodation in the City, currently of 2670 beds which would rise to
3542 in 2023 if the Firth Road and other pending schemes are granted. Whilst those
figures have been provided, specific details have not been included as to which of the
pending schemes they refer nor where the existing 2670 surplus are located within the
City. The university objection states that the existing supply of student accommodation is
sufficient to support the predicted forecast rise of student numbers over the next decade.
The Planning Authority does not hold information regarding student numbers therefore
cannot substantiate or analyse these details given by the university.

The applicant has responded to the University's objection. Both the university objections
and the response from the applicant are detailed in full on the agenda. The applicant has
stated that: “As there is no policy requirement to demonstrate student need, the comments
made by the University relate more to a commercial decision of Ashcourt as to whether to
deliver a development which the University believes may be left empty due to lack of
student demand. Ashcourt are confident that their scheme is viable and deliverable. The
proposal is based upon a very successful scheme that the Ashcourt Group built and
operate in Hull close to the University of Hull. The accommodation is presented in a series
of townhouses, giving intimate individual student communities largely used by 2nd, 3rd
and 4th year students who have formed social groups through coming together during the
first year at university. Many of the Ashcourt properties are reserved by the same student
groups throughout their university life. As such the product very much competes with
converted residential properties scattered across the city. As such it will assist in easing
tensions within residential communities where the different lifestyles can and do cause
conflict. It is entirely possible that the product could be used by some first-year students
but in the experience that Ashcourt have in Hull, this is limited. The product offers
enhanced student accommodation and will increase and enrich the student experience,

140



ultimately to the benefit of the university. It will help create long lasting social groups and
friendships extending students relationships with each other, the University, and the city.”

The response from the applicant also advises that the proposed development would likely
see a reduction in demand for HMOs within areas such as the West End of the City where
residential properties have been lost to student HMOs. They assert that this proposed
development would free up traditional housing stock, allowing families to move back into
houses and re balance those communities.

Officers would note that the type of accommodation being proposed under the current
scheme is different to that of some of the others in the City such as the St Marks
development north of this site. The layout of the units proposed are more akin to that of a
shared town house rather than a Hall of Residence. This may mean that the demand for
the accommodation is likely to be from those who would ordinarily rent an HMO within a
residential area rather than competing with existing purpose built accommodation. In any
case, officers consider that concerns relating to issues regarding competition in the
student accommodation market is not a material planning consideration.

The layout of the proposed accommodation would also mean that it would be more easily
converted into a conventional residential use (subject to a further planning application),
should the accommodation not be required for student use in the future.

Notwithstanding the above, as the applicant has rightly stated, there is no demand policy
within the local plan. Therefore, as with any proposal for a new use within the City, there is
no obligation on the applicant to demonstrate a demand for such a use. The applicant is
confident that this scheme is deliverable and viable despite the figures from the university.

Officers are therefore satisfied that the principle of the proposed use in this location is
acceptable. Supporting the principle of this university related development would also be in
accordance with CLLP Policy LP32.

The university also raised issues with flooding and design and these issues are discussed
later within the report.

Developer Contributions

Due to the nature of the proposed use as student accommodation the development is not
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) liable nor is there a requirement for S106
contributions relating to education, playing fields or play space. A proposed condition and
clause in the proposed S106 agreements will ensure that the development can only be
used for the purposes of student accommodation. Should the developer want to use the
development for a conventional residential use in the future then a planning application
would be required to vary the condition and S106 which would then trigger contributions
for education and playing fields/play space.

A request from NHS England has been received advising that the development would put
additional demands on the existing GP services for the area, and additional infrastructure
would be required to meet the increased demands. A commuted sum has therefore been
requested to contribute to the development of additional clinical space. This request would
be in accordance with CLLP Policies LP9 and LP12. The applicant has agreed to sign a
S106 agreement securing the contribution which will be finalised should the Planning
Committee be in support of the application.

141



Visual Amenity

Phase 1 of the development would provide 22 buildings of student accommodation with an
office building at the entrance to the site with student apartments above. The buildings
would all be three storeys high but a range of house types within the site creates variety
whilst maintaining a sense of collective identity throughout the scheme.

The house types range from parapet, mansard and gabled roofs but all maintain similar
characteristics such as the use of red brick, large vertically proportioned windows and
brick detailing between each floor to add interest to the elevations.

The layout maximises the views of the site of the River Witham and the Boultham Pump
Drain with the proposed buildings lined along both the southern and eastern boundary,
with a further 9 buildings positioned within the site. Access into the site would be from Firth
Road.

The design has been subject to discussions both at the pre-application stage and during
the course of the application. Revisions have been made to add interest and variety to
some of the elevations through redesigning the entrances to the blocks to create more
emphasis to those elements. Samples of materials to be used in the development would
be required by conditions although officers raise no objections with the palette of materials
suggested. Officers consider the contemporary design as submitted is appropriate for the
site.

The prevailing character along Couslon Road to the south is two storey properties, whilst
there is more variation to the east with some three/four storey residential properties. To the
north there are three storey former industrial buildings and the retail park which is of an
equivalent scale of 2/3 storey buildings. The university objection includes comments
regarding the impact from the development on key buildings such as Crown Windmill,
Lincoln Cathedral and Lincoln Castle. However, the site itself has been host to large scale
industrial buildings for decades previously, before they were recently demolished. The
proposed buildings being considered under this application are all 3 storeys in height
which is considered to be appropriate to the site and its surrounding context. Furthermore,
breaking the buildings up into a number of individual townhouses also ensures that
massing is not an issue and adds interest from longer views. Larger scale buildings are
indicated on Phase 2 of the development although these will be considered during a later
reserved matters application.

The layout of the buildings means that three areas of green space can be provided on the
site as well as landscaped areas being introduced on the north, east and southern
perimeters of the site.

Overall, the development is of a scale that would not appear overly dominant in this part of
the City. Whilst some localised views of the Cathedral will be affected from Coulson Road,
long views of the historic hillside are not unduly interrupted by this development. It is
considered that the proposals for phase 1 are appropriate in terms of making a positive
contribution to local character and distinctiveness and responding to the established
character of the area in accordance with Policy LP26 of the Local Plan and paragraph 130
of the NPPF.

142



Energy Efficiency

An Energy and Low Carbon Technology Statement has been submitted with the
application. The statement details the low energy design principles that have been
established in order to minimise energy demand of the proposed buildings, they include:

e The use of no fossil fuels on site

e Air source heat pumps to generate space heating and domestic hot water
requirements

e Photovoltaics to generate renewable energy on the site

e Having thermal properties and levels of insultation in excess of the new building
regulations requirement (Part L)

e Lighting controls to limit the use of artificial light

e The use of high efficiency fans to reduce the amount of electrical energy required

The proposals therefore demonstrate how the development can reduce demand, resource
efficiency, use renewable energy sources and off-set carbon in accordance with Policy
LP18 of the CLLP.

Impact on Local Residents

The design and scale of the buildings has been carefully considered to minimise any
physical impact on adjacent residents in terms of overlooking, loss of light or the creation
of an overbearing development. The closest distances from the Phase 1 development to
existing properties are approximately 40 metres to the residential properties to the east
and 37 metres to the south on Coulson Road. These separation distances will ensure that
the scale of development can be satisfactorily accommodated within the local area without
undue harm to residential amenity in line with Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local
Plan. Whilst some concerns have been received from the neighbours at Waterloo Street,
the part of the development adjacent to them is within Phase 2 of the scheme and would
therefore form part of a future reserved matters application should the current application
be granted.

There will be an increase in students in and around the site as a consequence of the
development but this in itself would not constitute harm to the amenity of local residents.
Officers do not consider that there is an overconcentration of students within this area
given the mix of residential to the immediate south and east and retail/industrial to the
north. The range of uses as well as the site being close to Tritton Road, a major route into
the City Centre would mean that any increase in activity generated by this site is unlikely to
be unduly noticeable. A condition restricting the construction hours will be applied to any
grant of permission to help limit any potential impact of construction.

Traffic and Pedestrian Safety

The applicant aims to provide 46% resident parking on site which equates to 143 spaces
within phase 1 including accessible parking. 84 secure cycle stores would also be provided
within phase 1.

The development will have a controlled access gate from Firth Road and the access roads

within the site are suitable for fire engine access, refuge vehicles and maintenance
vehicles. A scheme for electric vehicle charging points at the site would be required via a

143



condition, should planning permission be granted.

The main access for pedestrians, and only access for vehicles, is via the main entrance off
Firth Road. There would also be an access controlled pedestrian gate on the east
boundary of the site which links to the river cycle/foot path on the western side of the River
Witham. The site is located within a walkable distance from the university and city centre
with good access to public transport, and cycle and pedestrian routes.

The application has been the subject of consultation with the Highway Authority at the
County Council and their comments are appended to this report. The Highway Authority
have raised no objection to the development subject to conditions requiring the submission
of a construction management plan and that the details of the Travel Plan are
implemented.

The advice from the Highway Authority also contains a request for this site to fund the
upgrade of pedestrian facilities at the signalised crossing on Tritton Road, near Valentine
Retail Park. Officers consider that very few residents of the site are likely use this crossing,
the majority of the pedestrian movements will be north towards the city centre and the
university. It does not therefore meet the tests set out in legislation in relation to off-site
contributions from development; the request is not reasonable or proportionate and we
recommend that this request does not form part of the S106 for the application.

Subject to the recommended conditions, officers consider the development would promote
the use of sustainable modes of transport for users of the site and would not have a
severe impact on the transport network in accordance with paragraph 111 of the NPPF
and LP13 of the CLLP.

Flood Risk and Drainage

The site lies within Flood Zone 3 therefore a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage
Strategy has been submitted with the application. The developer has also undertaken a
sequential testing exercise which has concluded that there are no reasonably available
alternative sites available for the development.

The FRA concludes that:

e Finished Floor Levels (FFL) should be set at a minimum of 5.700mAQOD, with flood
resilient construction to a height 300mm above the predicted flood depth, and
demountable defences to 600mm above finished floor level.

e The new buildings should be on the Environment Agency's emergency flood line
which would advise occupants of potential flood events. A flood procedure plan will
be drafted by the management to ensure that all occupants are aware of the
evacuation plan / safe egress and refuge routes should flooding occur.

e The proposed scheme will not change the operational function of the existing River
Witham.

e The amount of impermeable area associated with the proposed development is no
greater than the existing site therefore will not generate greater flows to that of the
existing site which will not increase flood risk.

The Flood Risk assessment has been considered by the Environment Agency who have

raised no objections to the proposals subject to conditions to ensure the FFLs are set no
lower than 5.7mAOD and the proposed resilience measures are incorporated.

144



The drainage strategy for the site establishes that ground conditions at the site are not
considered to be permeable; making infiltration drainage unfeasible at the development.
The nearest watercourse to the site is considered to be the favourable location for the
discharge of surface water run-off. However, it is proposed to drain hardstanding areas of
the site via permeable paving and highway gullys, with additional attenuation provided
within the pipework and permeable paving sub-base. The levels and falls across the site
will be designed to direct surface water away from buildings towards soft landscaping
areas. It is therefore proposed that surface water discharge will be restricted using a flow
control to 65I/s in accordance with the agreed assessment of existing flows with the
Internal Drainage Board (IDB). Foul drainage from the proposed development is to be
discharged to the existing Anglian Water foul water sewers surrounding the site.

The site abuts the Boultham Pump Drain on the southern boundary. Negotiations have
taken place during the application stage with the developer and the IDB to ensure an
appropriate buffer for upkeep of the drain is maintained between the proposed buildings
and the bank of the drain on the south boundary. The IDB has raised no objections the
development

The drainage strategy has been considered by the County Council as Highway Authority
and Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) who have raised no objections to the proposed
arrangements. The development would therefore satisfy the requirements within
paragraph 167 of the NPPF and LP14 of the CLLP.

Landscaping and Biodiversity Net Gain

The applicant has provided landscaping scheme and an assessment of how the site can
achieve Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG). Three pockets of opens space are created within the
site to create focal points and recreational space within the site for its occupiers. Trees
would be planted throughout the site and wildflower meadows introduced along the
southern boundary with the Boultham Pump Drain and part of the eastern and northern
boundary. Native hedging/shrubs would also be introduced on the north and southern
boundary and in various areas throughout the site to break up the parking areas.

A BNG Assessment has been submitted with the application using the which details the
net gain elements including 680m of new hedgerow around the site and a net gain of
9.92% of habitat units on site. The assessment also details a number of faunal features for
local wildlife, including integral bat and bird boxes, insect boxes and log piles and further
details of these features and details of maintenance are proposed to be submitted via
condition.

Overall, the proposals represent a net gain in trees and biodiversity in line with Policy
LP21 of the CLLP.

Archaeology
Whilst the likelihood of finding significant Archaeology in this part of the City is unlikely, it is

proposed that standard conditions will be able to deal with any such matters during the
course of construction.

145



Contaminated Land

A ground investigation report has been submitted with the application although further
information will be required to address any potential contamination within the site. This
matter could be appropriately dealt with by the imposition of the standard contaminated
land conditions on any grant of permission in accordance with Policy LP16.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.
Conclusion

The development would relate well to the site and surroundings, particularly in relation to
siting, height, scale, massing, and design.

Technical matters relating to highways, contamination and archaeology are to the
satisfaction of the relevant consultees and can be further controlled as necessary by
conditions. The proposals would therefore be in accordance with the requirements of
CLLP Policies and the NPPF.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes — With extension of time.

Recommendation

Delegate the application to grant upon signing of the S106 subject to the conditions set out
below.

Conditions

Development to commence within three years
Development to be in accordance with the submitted drawings
Materials to be submitted

Contaminated land

Archaeology

Highways construction management plan
Noise mitigation measures to be implemented
Biodiversity management plan to be submitted
Landscaping details to be submitted

10 EV charging points to be submitted
11.Boundary treatments to be submitted
12.Travel Plan to be implemented

©CoNok,wNE

146



13.Flood Risk mitigation measures to be implemented

14.Levels on site to be in accordance with drawings

15.Construction hours to be between 7:30am — 6pm Mon to Fri and 7.30am — 1pm
Saturdays

16.Restricted to students only

17.Details of reserved matters to be submitted

147



This page is intentionally blank.



2021/0817/HYB — Firth Road

<

VIV [ |

7&

NN/

R

= [ N
W7 > S
7 7
M~ f = g
N\ S
= J l'-t \\\\

ZE ST

3

Site Location Plan

149



Landscaped area fo screen
existing neighbouring
building

Angéan Water
single storey sub
. stafion
Access Controled
Vehicular &
Pedestian Gates
3

Eoch iock of cpartments ncosperates cycke/bin foroge ord
Sheroa communa crecs of Groumd Rocr Level inckudkng  Gym.
Cax Poning - Crca 308 50ce: provkded accros e o

Fhae 1« 143soace:

Froia 2+ 199 soncer ey
S P 5ot i

iy —— B

572 37 1o o <imiaio 531175 Sacuety cing | 521 19

Lona & Futon ascenat shiatancnd 81175581 010 ke $30 peieras

naec, wi Mick Fs o Gate Pogtans

Phase 240 b6 contimed.

T snseercocion s
B ocese

B seoe

For Poposed Ste Laves plecie reter 1o 50N Drawings

Erae 1 House Type: C. Luns 0nd NEO 1 howe Adet
Boicanie: o gL foo Grevceking Couion Rood, Sua.

o Sha Lok 3 Existing Acces
= retained -INew
i ccess Gates for
_— DB Maintginance

Serie b 17500

Site Layout Plan

150



3D View 1

Materials Schedule
(D ek o comored samle
(@ R euktet Do i visen ot
(3) st s o cppsevnt ol
() mik i i o s s
(B) ta e i et

e (© Double Glozed Window to
=3 o 0 cooved samele
(D) Double Glazed Do o pproved sample:
(©) Bock UPVC Rimwoter Goods
— (®) veRooioht o smice coproved
b e
[
Side Elevation

Front Elevation Rear Elevation

House Type A and B

151



§
i
i

DI EEEES

Ground Floor Indicative 3D View

‘Materials Schedule
. ek 1o apgrovea same
e _ e — e | D
o e 05 (@ o3 ot Doce i
(® Comoorte setetoaon
(@ sick Hoosrs .ot
184 Foor] — e _ 18t Floor [ () Doutie Giazed Window
Jaco £ Tasd (®) poutie Giazmd Doar o
@) siack UPVC Raimwater ¢
VekaRooghor sk
70 Ground oo oG fox . wr oGondFix [— 8“‘”"’*“"”“”""
g d bt Bccany

Front Elevation Side Bevation 01 Rear Elevation

House Type C

152



oscue goss.-

cexcue gon

Ist Floor

Ground Fioor

Covcsa gl

Front Bevation

b AT
%

Side Elevation

3D View |

o ocranreg
==

Rear Elevation

Materials Schedule
(D) ek o comoved samcle
(@) o nssered coce
(3) Composie Sal o ppoved sample
(D ik Moo & Cotetin o approved sarele
(3) tood eftectcomen 0 cpsmoved somele
(&) Doutie Gazed Wi to cosroved semele
(@) Dot Glned Door o pseovedsamele
BockUPVC Rt Gooc

[ ‘Area Schedule GIA
[ Number [ Name | tevel | Arwea
r [6bed  [0Ground |72
lhouse __[Fioor
!2 6 bed [0 Ground |7an
jhouse __ [Fioor
0 Ground Floor: 2 T
0 [Gbed  [1stFloor [73n
i fome
!2 6 bed Imm 7
lhouse
st Floor:2 147 m7
f| [6 bed [20d Floor [63 "
lhouse
iz 6 bed |2mrbu |ssma
lhouse
2nd Ficor 2 B
415

House Type E

153



Front Elevation Rear Elevation

Maerils Schedule
(@ sick o coprvedtsamele

(@) G el Doce vt eion Pl

(@) CompetScte o coproved somple

Q) sick oo & Cotveing o opproved sample
(5) Lood et domen o approved sanpie

(9) Dot Glad W o coproved sanple
(©) Dot Glazed Dot approved sample

(© BockUPYC Rt Goocs

e

Area Schedule GIA
Nomber | Name | el | Aea | F

[ Trbedhowse [0GoundFicor [r2me  [7731
2 [Tbedhouse [0 Ground Floor _[72me___[77a1
= TaAm 1547

[ TFbedhouss _[istFioer T T
E [7bedhouse _[1stFioor T
TelFoor 2 w1577
[ T bed house _[2nd Floor (T 521
E [7bed house [2nd Fioor [am 673t
2ndFioor 2 1347
asme aan

oo

3D View |

House Type F

154



escue gt

cescue gt

Cescue gt

oscue gt

Ist Floor

aing
et

House Type G

| coica gon Front Elevation

R
Materials Schedule
(@) ik o coproved smple
() o5 et Do it viin P
(3) Stningsecm Morscxdoot i o cpproved serple
(@) Bick Hoaden & Corbeting o cpproved sarple
(3) teod efec domen o povedsamele
(&) Dovtie Glazed indow 1o cppoved srmple
(@) Doutie Glazed Do 1o approved smple
BockUPVC Ranwols Goods

Side Elevation
Covesa gt

Area Schedule GIA|
Nombor | WName | Tovel | Awea |

[0Ground Floor_[77m? 833

0Ground Floor: 2 BEm 166
i [Gbed house |15t Floor [Em__Jesi
[sbedfouse [istFicor | 1

TstFicor: 2 88w 170
i [§bed house _[2nd Fioor A ]
B [Sbed house _[2nd Ficor 7T [ea
2nd Ficor:2 TBSm 166
w68m 503

3D View 1

155



2nd Floor

g e

Front Elevation

Side Elevation

3D View |

Rear Elevation

Maerils Schedue
(@) sk o comoved sample

(2) AP ot Docr i veon el

(3) sanngsoom Marecrc s o comroved sl
(@) bickHooders & Cabeting o approved s

(3) oo etictcamen o approvedsample

(&) Dot Gazed Wi o coproved sample

(@) oote Gasea Doo 1o approved sl

(B) Biock PV Rnwoter Goocs

[o P ———

Area Schedule GIA|
Nurmber [ Name | tevel Area | FZ
[ Trbedhouse [0Ground Fioor 776 1
2 7 bed house [0 Grounc 72 m? 776 18
: Taame 151
[ Trbedhouse [Bme Troife
2 7 bed house 15t Floor [791 18
1st Floor: 2 147 m? 1582 1
[ T7bedhouse _[2nd Floor T
[ [7bedhouse [2nd Fioor [Taate
2nd Floor: 2 136 m* 1468 1
427 m 4601 1F

House Type H

156



i |

House Type H

I

Front Elevation

3D View 1

157

Maeils Schedule
(D) bk o coproved st

(@) GRP et Doce it vion Porel

(5) St sc Meruordoot i o cpproved ample
(9) bk Headen  Cometing o cprroved sarele

(D) Lo oo domra 0 cpprovad sopla

(9) Dovtle icaad Wodow fo cpprovescemee

(5) Dovtte Geas Doar o cpprvedsmrie

Jock UPVC Reeweler Goods

(©) VeknRookioh! e simer coproved

Area Schedule GIA

[ _Name | Tover | Awa ]

[7bedhouse [0 Ground Floor_[72
[7bed house [0 Ground Floor

s m

776

776
55

[ Trbedhouse TisiFloor T 701

7 bed house |15t Fioor 791

7w 158

[ T[7bedhouse [endFloor __ [eeme _ [734
2 7 bod house _[2nd Fioor 734
]

4a21me 460



Front Elevation

Side Elevation

Ground Fioor

0 G

Rear Eievation

Materials Schedule
(@) sick o coproved sampte

(2) P e Doce vt vin Pl
CompotteSct o coprovasamle

() St Hooden & Cameting o

aperoved samese.

(3) Lo tectdomess o cpproved samgie
(&) Dol Gl Windiow o cpproved sample

(5) Doutle Gl Dot o apprcved s

Bock UNC Renwote Goods

[ Area Schedule GIA

[ Number [_Name | Tevel [ Aea T
[ Tobeinows [oGowmdrier [ &
2 Isbedhouse [0GroundFloor [77mv 83
0 Ground Floor: 2 155 m* 16
[ Tobeinowss [istroor _ Jmowe e
2 Iobedhouse [istFoor  [7om" 85
1st Floor: 2 158 m* 16

[ Tooeamoms Jowror [ %
R T T LA &

House Type |

158



NI

2nd Floor

3D View 1

Materials Schedule

(@ ko comoved sampse

(@) G o Do it viionPanst
Gompest Sole o cpproved ample

(D) ik Hooder £ Cabotig o cppecved sl

(3 Lood efec domens 10 epprovedsamele

(9 Doutlo Glcmod Window o o scemple

(©) Doubie Gezed Do o approved st

(B) Bock UVC Roinwoter G

(© VermRootioh! s cpproved

Side Elevation

Ground Floor

tEevation Rear Elevation

House Types J and K

159



2nd Floor

3D View |

Materas Schedule
@ sk 1o comrovea e

(D) o8P ot Docewith Vion el

(3 Conests e i o srgts

(Q) ek Hooden & Cobeting o coproved somele
(D) Lo st comn 15 copsoratscicle

(©) Doutie Gl Window o coproredtsarple

(©) Sock UPVC Rt Goocs
) venRootontor s comoved

@ sticony

D — side Blevation

[ £ N Rl . —
5700 700
st oo gt P
= - 0 —
[0 Suad oo S — N SGswdbe J—
g o
Front Elevation Rear Elevation

House Types L and M

160



3D View 1

P 2 Four S
B

b g L -
=
P oconthen
b
Ground Fioor
= . L 2] S
i £
= 1
b — 2
s e _ _ _ ricomne
J
“ront Bevation

‘Materials Schedule

(D v o crproved s

(2 R ot Door v Vi Panet

(©) Compasis it o ppuovodsavels

( b Hoodn & Caboting o coproved sarele
(B) Lot ot s s
(2) Dokt Gt Wi o v sl
(©) ot Glaed Docr o approved sareie
(®) Sk UVC Rt Goces

(©) VeumRootigh a sner cppovet

© Juersaicony

House Type N and O

161



Landscaping Details

162



Views from Coulson Road

163



Boultham Pump Drain

164



Views south from in the site

165



Cycle path to the east of the site

166



167



Access into the site

168



View to Coulson Road

*

&

169



Views east from the site

170



Views west from the site

171



This page is intentionally blank.



2021/0817/HYB Firth Road Comments

24 Brookside Scopwick Lincoln LN4 3PA (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Thu 14 Oct 2021

My OBJECTION relates to the possible damage to a building of historic value to the
City of Lincoln standing in close proximity to proposed buildings likely to require
piled foundations.

Adjacent the proposed development site stands Cannon's Glue Factory, a 19thC
factory building of considerable interest to the history of Victorian industrial
development in central Lincoln.

This factory is designed in the traditional "sweat shop" style of the period. It was
built by Bernard Cannon who had emigrated from Dublin went on to become mayor
of Lincoln in 1880. It is reported that he was much loved by his workforce as well as
being well respected in City circles. The business was continued under his son Willy
Cannon into the early part of the 20thC when it was sold to another manufacturer.
The products from this factory are likely to have been employed in the construction
of aeroplanes for the airforce during WW1. My mother's family was related to the
Cannons and I possess a diary written by my mother describing the working factory
in detail while on a visit to William Cannon in 1921.

73 Waterloo Street Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6
7AQ (Objects)
Comment submitted date: Tue 12 Oct 2021

I raised comments to the planning consultant in their community involvement which
have been answered in their Planning Statement and Statement of Community
Involvement although I have not received a direct reply to date from them.

I recall it says that the hours of working during the construction will be "standard"
and will be determined by the City Council. What are standard hours? I hope that
the hours of construction can be limited to daylight hours Monday to Friday without
starts before 8 am and no later than 5 pm finishes because during the demolition of
the site, the demolition team were working some weekends.

The Planning Statement does inform me that the elevations of the apartment blocks
in Phase 2 will be determined in a separate application for phase 2 and will not be
considered with this application. I would like to record that I object to the three
apartment blocks in Phase 2 being so high. They have said that the height of the
apartment blocks in Phase 2 of I believe four, five and seven storeys are required to
screen the large/industrial units to the northern boundary. These units are part of
the shopping centre which at most I estimate are no taller than three storeys and
therefore the apartment blocks do not need to be higher than this.

What assurances can the planning consultant provide that surface water will not be
discharged into the river as part of the flow control when the water of the river is

173



very high? Over recent winters the water level of the river bordering this site has
been very high.

1w etsloo Ktret
LJNC/OL‘N .

T o 2o,

174



Your Ref: 2021/0817/HYB 13" October 2021

Development & Environmental Services
City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, LN1 1DF

Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Former William Sinclair Holdings Site, Firth Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN6
7AH

Hybrid application for the erection of 22no. buildings for us as HMO (Class
C4/Sui Generis) (totalling 67no. units) and 1no. office building with 8no.
residential apartments on the first and second floors (Class E(g)/C3) with
associated parking and landscaping works (Phase 1 - Full Planning
Permission); and erection of approximately 3no. apartment blocks (Class C3)
and 9no. HMOs (Class C4/Sui Generis) with associated parking and landscape
works (Phase 2 - Outline planning permission including details of layout,
scale, appearance and landscaping to be considered)

Thank you for your correspondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed
development. | would request that you consider the following points that if adhered to would
help reduce the opportunity for crime and increase the safety and sustainability of the
development.

It is appreciated that some elements of this application are outline in context and detail and
therefore would be finalised at a later stage of application, therefore my comments may be of
a more generic nature.

Historically Student Accommodation can become wvulnerable to crime and anti-social
behaviour therefore it is important that the best security arrangements and provision are
planned for such premises.

It is disappointing that no reference in the Design and Access Statement has been made to
the overall provision of environmental and structural security that should be provided for the
safety and security of residents.

The safety, security and general wellbeing of students should be of paramount importance
when considering the detail of this application. The following aspects of security should be
rigorously applied to this development.

POLICE HEADQUARTERS

PO Box 999, Lincoln LNS 7PH & 01522 55 8292 —
(Sat Nav: LN2 2LT) & 075700 99424 [@ 101 s
woww.lincs.police.uk E= john.manuel@lincs.pnn.police.uk SN

175



Lincolnshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application in principle but
would recommend that the initial advisory recommendations are implemented.

Perimeter and Boundary Treatment.

A secure access-controlled boundary and fence line remains a principal recommendation and
would enhance the security and safety of students and staff.

Should a secondary intemal fence line be considered this should have the benefit of creating
a secure courtyard within the campus and should as stated have a 1.8 metal welded or
decorative design with commensurate gating with uniform access control system.

In a Home Office report “University student safety in the East Midlands® it was identified that
62% of incidents in University campuses went unreported to any authority with 74% of on-
campus incidents unreported to campus security departments, yet 69% of students in
University accommodation saw burglary as a problem and not unsurprisingly 67% saw people
behaving in a drunk and disordery manner as a problem

hitp=fwww.homeoffice. gov.ukdds Home Office Online report 61/04 University student safety
in the East Midlands Rosemnary Barberet, Bonnie 5. Fisher, Helen Taylor

The safety and security, {perceived or otherwise) of students whilst staying away from home
usually for the first ime, is one of the primary concerns, of many parents and guardians. It
must be stressed that a legal ‘duty of care’ exists in respect of all students, staff, and residents.

The principle of access control refers to the design of building and space to actively keep
unauthorised people out and would encompass these aims.

1) to limit the likelihood that offenders will become aware of that area as a potential target.

2) to make it more difficult for offenders to navigate into, out of and within an area they
have should they select it as a target.

3) to increase the physical difficulty of entering a building or space should offenders
become aware of the area as a target.

4) to increase the difficulty psychologically for offenders to enter and move around an
area without feeling conspicuous (anonymity);

§) to remove any excuse for potential offenders to be within a private or semi-private
space and maximising the 'users’ confidence in challenging non-legitimate users of
space.

Fencing

Perimeter treatment to include appropriate fencing and commensurate gating is included to at
least 1.8 m non-climbable LPS 1175 Security rating 1 (SR1) .1.9 Long & Futlon ‘Modena’ style
fencing BS1175 SR1 or to similar SBD standard.

The detailed provision and design of the fencing and gating indicated will provide an
adequate level of boundary control and help create a good defensible and secure zone
within the student complex. It is important that any gating is commensurate in height with the
boundary fencing system, access is integrated with the overall security control system
envisaged for the complex and should seek the opportunity to eliminate unauthorised follow
through® or gates being left open. All points of access should be covered within the proposed
monitored CCTVY system.

176



Whilst | would argue that the above border and boundary control should be always
maintained the option for opening some or all of the points of access during prescribed times
remains an option.

External doors and windows

The potential for unwanted guests will be considerable at this location and therefore robust
measures should be installed to ensure the security and safety of student residents

| would recommend that an air-lock style entrance vestibule is incorporated into the design
({to help prevent unauthorised follow through access) commensurate with an access control
system, with an electronic door release, and visitor door entry system that provides colour
images, and clear audio communications linked to each individual unit. Under no
circumstances should a trade person release button or similar uncontrolled access method
be used.

An Industry standard approved CCTV system should be installed covering all communal
points of entry and lobby areas. This system must be able to capture and record all persons
using the entry system.

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24.2016 or
Bespoke equivalent (doors of an enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference
number for PAS 23/24 and is published by Warrington Certification Laboratories).

All ground floor windows and doors and those that are easily accessible from the ground
must conform to improved security standard PAS24: 2016. All ground floor windows
should have window restrainers and effective locking systems.

| would recommend that all ground floor and easily accessible windows have at least one
pane of laminated glass.

Access to Places of Height

It is important that access to places of height (prevention of suicide) is secured on all levels
and should include the provision of substantial windows and locking systems together with
fixed and secured ‘window restraining’ devices. Any points of access to the roof area or
other place of height should be secured by way of ‘appropriate’ fire compliant locking
systems.

The provision of external ledges or elements of the building line that could be used as a
platform should be avoided, particularly at places of height, and would effectively contribute
to reducing the means to access such places.

Individual Flat or Unit Doors.

Flat entrance door-sets should meet the same physical requirements as the ‘main front door’
i.e., PAS24:2016. The locking hardware should be operable from both sides of an unlocked
door without the use of the key (utilising a roller latch or latch operable from both sides of the
door-set by a handle). If the door-set is certified to either PAS24:2016 or STS 201 Issue
4:2012 then it must be classified as DKT.

Homes of Multi-Occupancy [ Student Accommodation — Communal Areas & Mail
Delivery

177



Where communal mail delivery facilities are proposed and are to be encouraged with other
security and safety measures to reduce the need for access to the premises communal letter
boxes should comply to the following criteria.

# Located at the main entrance within an internal area or lobby (vestibule) covered by
CCTV or located within an ‘airlock style’ entrance hall.

« Be of a robust construction (Federation Technical Specification 009 (TS009)
# Have anti-fishing properties where advised and appropriate.
+ [nstalled to the manufacturer's specifications.
« Through wall mail delivery can be a suitable and secure method.
Lighting

Lighting should be designed to cover the external doors and be controlled by photoelectric
cell {dusk to dawn) with a manual override. The use of low consumption lamps with an
efficacy of greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt is required; it is recommended that they be
positioned to prevent possible attack.

Cycle Storage Structure (if to be included)

Lincoln City in keeping with many University cities suffers a level of cycle thefts therefore:

« avoid fumiture (for example railings) that might be used as ad-hoc cycle racks.

# include arrangements to promptly remove cycles or component parts that are left in
situ.

= suitable signage should be deployed to inform user of this process.

Secure bicycle parking should be made available within an appropriate roofed building, with
all round surveillance that is within view (no more than 100 metres) of occupied buildings
or CCTV, using ground bolted cycle stands. Construction should be of Galvanised steel bar
{min thickness of 3mm) filled with concrete and a — minimum foundation 300mm with welded
anchor bar. This facility should have adequate vandal resistant, dedicated, energy efficient
lamps illuminated during hours of darkness’. A design-focussed and inviting cycle to
rack/shed would encourage safe and secure bike use where residents feel confident to leave
their cycles. If this is not achieved evidence strongly supports that cycle use will be reduced
and residents will find alternative means to store cycles, i.e., in rooms or corridors.

Internally the locking system must be operable from the inner face by use of a thumb tum to
ensure that residents are not accidentally locked in by another person.

Bulkhead anti vandal lighting should be a feature of this design.

It is noted that the current proposed cycle storage areas do not appear to comply with the
above criteria which is designed to provide protection, security, and safety for users. Clear
lines of sight with good natural surveillance,

Bin Storage

Internal communal bin and bicycle stores within blocks of flats must have no windows and be

fitted with a secure door set that meets the same physical specification as *front door” and
specifically Section 2, paragraphs 21.1to 21.6 and 21.8 to 21.13.

! www_ bikeoff ore/desion_resource

178



This will ensure that such stores are only accessible to residents. The locking system must
be operable from the inner face by use of a thumb turn to ensure that residents are not
accidentally locked in by another person. A bicycle store must also be provided with stands
with secure anchor points or secure cycde stands.

External bins stores and home composting containers (supplied to meet ‘Code for
Sustainable Homes' "Was 3') should be sited in such a way that they cannot be used as a
climbing aid to commit crime.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification.

Please refer o Homes 20189 which can be located on www.securedbydesign.com Homes
2018.

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract.
Neither the Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice
given. However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be
committed.

Yours sincerely,
John Manuel ma ea (Hons) PGCE PGCPR Dip Bus.

Force Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO)

179



s

meolnshlr

COUNTY COUNCII.

'l
\

‘1 e

Warren Peppard

Head of Development Management
Lincolnshire County Council

County Offices

Newland

Lincoln LN1 1YL

Tel: 01522 782070
developmentmanagement@incoinshire.gov.uk

To:  Lincoln City Council Application Ref: ~ 2021/0817/HYB

Proposal: Hybrid application for the erection of 22no. buildings for us as HMO (Class C4/Sui
Generis) (totalling 67no. units) and 1no. office building with 8no. residential
apartments on the first and second floors (Class E(g)/C3) with associated parking
and landscaping works (Phase 1 - Full Planning Permission); and erection of
approximately 3no. apartment blocks (Class C3) and 9no. HMOs (Class C4/Sui
Generis) with associated parking and landscape works (Phase 2 - Outline planning
permission including details of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping to be
considered)

Location: Former William Sinclair Holdings Site, Firth Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN6 7AH

With reference to the above application received 12 October 2021

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Requests that any permission given by the Local Planning Authority shall
include the conditions below

CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)

Highway Informative 02

In accordance with Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980, please be considerate of causing damage
to the existing highway during construction and implement mitigation measures as necessary.
Should extraordinary expenses be incurred by the Highway Authority in maintaining the highway
by reason of damage caused by construction traffic, the Highway Authority may seek to recover
these expenses from the developer.

Highway Informative 04

The streets within the proposed development are approved as private streets which will not be
adopted as a Highway Maintainable at the Public Expense (under the Highways Act 1980).

180



Highway Informative 08

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522 782070
to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will be required
within the public highway in association with the development permitted under this Consent. This
will enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and timings of these works.
For further guidance please visit our website via the following links:

Traffic Management - https://www.lincolnshire. gov.uk/traffic-management

Licences and Permits - https:/fwww.lincolnshire.gov.uk/licences-permits

Highway Condition 00

Mo development shall take place until a Construction Management Plan and Method Statement
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which shall indicate
measures to mitigate against traffic generation and drainage of the site during the construction
stage of the proposed development.

The Construction Management Plan and Method Statement shall include;

. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

. loading and unloading of plant and materials;

. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;

. wheel washing facilities,;

* strategy stating how surface water run off on and from the development will be managed

during construction and protection measures for any sustainable drainage features. This should
include drawing(s) showing how the drainage systems (permanent or temporary) connect to an
outfall {temporary or permanent) during construction.

The Construction Management Plan and Method Statemeant shall be strictly adhered to throughout
the construction period.

Reason: To ensure that the permitted development is adequately drained without creating or
increasing flood risk to land or property adjacent to, or downstream of, the permitted
development during construction and to ensure that suitable traffic routes are agreed.

Highway Condition 27

The permitted development shall not be occupied until those parts of the approved Travel Plan
that are identified therein as being capable of implementation before cccupation shall be
implemented in accordance with the timetable contained therein and shall continue to be
implemented for as long as any part of the development is occupied.

Reason: In order that the permitted development conforms to the requirements of the National
Planning Policy Framewaork, by ensuring that access to the site Is sustainable and that there is a
reduced dependency on the private car for journeys to and from the development.

Further to the above condition, we recommend that the Travel Plan Is updated to consider the
comments below, prior to any occupation of the site:

Target The target is based on TRICS data with a 3.8% baseline provided.
Given the location of the accommaodation, it is highly unlikely
that public transport will be used and that the majority of
students will walk or cycle. Targets should therefore focus on
discouraging the use of the car and increase the walking and
cycling baselines - again, the TP needs to work with the
university in this area.

Measures 7.4.1 doubt residents (students) will be classed as ‘employed’
and therefore able to access Cycle to Work scheme. However,
they may be eligible to utilise university offers.

181



7.5.1 Given the location of the site and current provision of bus
services locally, highly unlikely that operators will re-route or
provide additional bus services.

7.7.1 TP should be encouraging internal car sharing amongst
students if it is deemed necessary to use the car.

5106 Contributions

Prior to occupation of any part of the proposed development, LCC as HLLFA reguest a 5106
contribution of £20,000 towards the upgrading of pedestrian facilities at the signalised crossing on
Tritton Road near Valentine Retail Park.

Case Officer: Date: 22 February 2022
Becky Melhrishe

for Warren Peppard

Head of Development Management

182



O)Jx

45 Church Street, Brmingham B3 2RT

Development Team

City of Lincoln Council +44 (0)121 643 6440

City Hall JIL.co.uk

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln Mobile: 07843913578
LN11DD ravinder.uppal@eu Jil.com
4 November 2021

Dear Sir / Madam,

Letter of Objection In respect of Planning Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB at the Former Willlam Sinclair
Holdings Site, Firth Road, Lincoln, LN6 7AH.

| write to submit this Letter of Objection on behalf of our client, the University of Lincoln in respect of the planning
application proposals that are the subject of Planning Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB. The purpose of this letter
is lo express in planning terms why the proposals as set out in Planning Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB are not
suitable or appropriate at Land South of Firth Road (hereafter referred lo as the site). This letter demonstrates to the
Local Planning Authority how and why this is the case, by sellingout the relevant site contex!: evaluating the planning
application submission: referring to relevant planning policy to demonstrate the grounds for objection: and pertinently,
reviewing the need for student accommodation in the City of Lincoin.

Description of Proposals

We are objecling o the hybrid planning application that seeks Full Planning Permisslon for Phase 1 and Qutline
Planning Permission with detalls of only access for Phase 2. The descriplion of the proposals are as follows:

“Hybrid application for the erection of 22no. buildings for us as HMO (Class C4/Sui Generis) (totalling 67no. units)
and 1no. office building with 8no. residential apartments on the first and second floors (Class E(g)/C3) with
associated parking and landscaping works (Phase 1 - Full Planning Permission); and erection of approximately
3no. apartment blocks (Class C3) and 9no. HMOs (Class C4/Sui Generis) with associated parking and landscape
works (Phase 2 - Outline planning permission including details of access only)”

Site and Surroundings
The application site is approximately 3.64 hectares (8.99 acres) and is situated towards the south of Firth Road in Lincoln,
approximately 280 metres south-west from the city centre. The Site directly borders the River Witham to the East, and

Tritton Retail Park Shopping Centre to the North, the busy A1192 Tritton Road lies directly to the West of the site, and the
South borders a substantial waterway. Adjacent to this waterway is a street of residential dwellings that directly face the

183



Oix

site, on Coulson Road. Access for pedestrians and vehicles is provided off Firth Road to the North of the site, as existing
fencing, gales, and the waterway prevent access from the South at present.

The Site previously comprised of industrial buildings that wereused to produce compost, fertiliser, and garden chemicals
associated with Wiliam Sinclair Horticulture LTD. After a period of vacancy these buildings were demolished, leaving the
Site to now comprise of vacant hardstanding.

The Site is surrounded primarily by commercial, industrial, and retail usesto the North East, North Wesl, and South Wesl.
To the South and South East of the site lies residential areas with housing that comprises of 2-storey dwellings. North of
the site there is student accommodation that has recenlly been granted planning permission and is currently under
construction (these are the St. Marks sluden! accommodaltion proposals permitled under Planning Application Ref. No.
2018M261/FUL). These proposals are substantial and comprise of a lolal of 1372 bed spaces.

The entirety of the site sits in Flood Zone 3a (as defined by the Environment Agency) due to bordering the River Witham
which has a recent history of flooding in Lincoln. Flood Zone 3a areas are those that have a high probability of flooding.

There are a number of important heritage sites in the vicinity of the site as identified on the Historic England Map Search
facility. An extract from the map search has been provided at Enclosure 1.

There are various significant views from the Site, including Lincoln Caslle, Lincoln Cathedral, and the Crown Windmill on

Princess Streel. The below images show how these important heritage assets are clearly visible from the Site:
S —— A —

Fig 1 —Photographs taken by JLL showing views of the following heritage assets that are clearly visible
from the site, from left to right — Lincoln Cathedral, Lincoln Castle and the Crown Windmill

184



O)Lc

Planning Policy Context

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) requires decisions of development proposals to be
taken in accordance with the adopled development plan for the area unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
National Planning Policy Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and other local planning policies e.g. Supplementary
Planning Documents, are all material considerations.

Commenls agains! various policies will be wrilten in italics.

Natlonal Planning Policy Framework (2021) (NPPF)

The national planning policy is set within the new National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021). This edition
replaces the previous MNational Planning Policy Framework published in March 2012, and its revisions in July 2018 and
February 2019.

Accordsnce with the Local Plan policles

Paragraphs 2 and 47 state that planning law requires that applications for planning permission should be determined
in accordance with the Development Plan, unless malerial considerations indicate otherwise. Furthermore, Paragraph
12 notes that where development proposals conflict with an up-to-date Development Plan, planning permission should
not usually be granted.

Although the developmeni proposals may be deemed o be in accordance with Policy LP35, e proposals are nol compiiant
wilh Policies LPI0 LPT4, LRI LP25, 1P26 ang LP29 of the Ceniral L incolnshire Local Plan (35 evigenced in furifrer dedalf later
in this fefter) and as such, are nof compiiant with Paragraphs 2 and 47 of the NEPF. in line with Paragraph 12 of the NPEF,

the developmen proposals showd therefore nol be granfed planning permission.
Prasumption in favour of susisinable developmeart
A presumption in favour of suslainable development lies at the heart of the Framework (Paragraphs 10 and 11).

Although the proposals imvodve the redevelopment of & brownlield site, they are nol suslainable given the significant food
risk consiraints, poor design and the lack of need for further student accommodalion fn the City of Lincoln,

Flood Risk
Table 1 below sels oul the relevant planning policy paragraphs in respect of flood risk derived from the NPPF.

Impartantly, Annex 3 of the NPPF: Flood Risk Vulnerablity Classification states thal apartments purposefully built for
students come under the “more vulnerable” classification.

185



Paragraph
No
159

161

162

Policy wording

‘Inappropriate development in areas at
risk of flooding should be avolided |

directing development away from areas
at highest risk. Where development is
necessary in such areas, the development
should be made safe for its lifetime without
increasing flood risk elsewhere' [Our

emphasis]

‘All plans should apply a sequential, risk-
based approach to the location of
development - taking into account a
sources of flood risk and the current and
future impacts of climate change - so as to
avoid, where possible, flood risk to people
and property.’

‘The aim of the sequential test is to steer
new development to areas with the lowest
risk of flooding from any source.
Development should not be allocated or
permitted If there are reasonably
avallable sites appropriate for the
proposed development In areas with ¢
lower risk of flooding. The strategic flood
risk assessment will provide the basis for
applying this test, The sequential
approach should be used In areas known

186

O)rx

Planning analysis

Given thal the site in its entirety lies within Flood Zone 3a
and the proposals come under the ‘more vulnerable
classification, they constitute inappropriate development
in an area with a high probability of flooding. In line with
Paragraph 159, such uses should be directed away from
areas at highest risk.

Furthermore, the developmenl proposals are not
necessary given that the City of Lincoln Council has an up-
todate five year housing land supply and the Council's
Housing Strategy Report 2020-2025 notes that there is
sufficient development in the pipeline until 2025 to meet
the accommodation needs of students. This site was not
referenced as being within that pipeline in the Central
Lincolnshire Five Year Housing Land Report (Oclober
2021). This further supports the case that the proposals
are nol necessary.

Please see below.

It is considered that there are reasonably available sites
that are appropriate for the proposed development ir
areas with a lower risk of flooding in the local area. In line
with Paragraph 162 of the NPPF, the developme
proposals should be refused on this basis.

Further details of some such sites can be found at
Appendix C of the Central Lincolnshire Housing and
Economic Land Availability Assessment Report (2020). The
planning application submission included a Flood Risk
Sequential Assessment and Exceplion Test Report
prepared by DPP Planning. However, the methodology for



OJc

to be at risk now or In the fulure from any determining whether there are alternative sites that are
form of flooding.’ reasonably available is flawed for a number of reasons.
Essentially:

- therequirement for alternative sites noted in the
report is geared around a site that is located on
the edge of Lincoln city centre that offers easy
access lo the University buildings and amenities
used by students. There is no need for further
student accommodation in the City of Lincoln as
noted above, therefore, this should not form part
of the search criteria.

- the size of the alternative sites sought was ‘an
area of at least 3.5ha’. Again, this was to suit the
needs of providing low density student

-accommodation which is nol needed in the area.

- the allernative sites were deemed to be needed
to be available now. However, there are |
student accommodation needs to be met until at
least 2026 and even at that time, in line with the
Council's Housing Strategy Report 2020-2025
document, it is anticipated that there will be a
reduced need to provide @ student
accommodation.

Given the above, the methodology used in the Sequential
Test Report prepared by DPP Planning is flawed and there
are sites included within the report that were undu
discounted.

Interestingly, the Site Assessment for the Former CEGB
Power Slation on Spa Road states thal, ‘7he site’s
adjacency lo the River Witham lo the south has resulfed in it
being predominantly localed in Flood Zone 3..the areas
oulside of Flood Zone 3 are localed along the north and
easlern boundaries of the site and would, at around 1.7ha,
not be large enough lo accommodate the Propost

Development.’ This is noted as a reason for discounting the
site. However, the subject site is also within Flood Zone 3

and is also inappropriate for the proposed development.

187



163

164

‘If it is not possible for development to be
located in areas with a lower risk of flooding
(taking into account wider sustainable
development objectives), the exception test
may have to be applied. The need for the
exceplion test will depend on the potential
vulnerability of the site and of the
development proposed, in line with tF
Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification set
outin Annex 3.'

‘To pass the exception test it should b
demonstrated that:

a) the development would provid:
wider sustainability benefits to the
communily that outweigh the
flood risk: and

b) the development will be safe for its
lifetime taking account of the
vulnerability of its users, without
increasing flood risk elsewhere,
and, where possible, will reduce
flood risk overall.!

188

OJc

As sites were unduly discounted in the Sequential Test
carried out by DPP Planning, it is considered that it is
possible for development to be located in areas with a
lower risk of flooding in this instance. For example, the
Land of Wolsey Way site and the Walerside North/Spa
Road site was discounted as it was noled that the sites
were too small in size to accommodate the proposec
development, the Land North of Ermine West site
located 1.5 miles from the Lincoln city centre and was
discounted on that basis. However, as mentioned the
approach taken when undertaking the Sequential Testis
flawed given that there is no need for sludent
accommodation.

Notwithstanding the above, we have also demonstrated
below why the proposals fail to meet the requirements of
an Exception Test.

The development would not provide wider sustainability
benefits to the community that outweigh the flood risk.
Although the proposals represent redevelopment of a
brownfield site which does provide_a benefit in terms of
sustainability, this is overridden by the numbe
malerial considerations that must be factored into the
balance when considering the proposals. Ultimately
these material considerations resull in the proposal
being deemed as unsustainable.

The proposals are unsuslainable as they would lead to an
over concentration of student accommeodation in the local
area. Itis recognised that in local planning policy that this
in turn, can lead to issues around antisocial behaviour,
crime and create an imbalance whereby there is a failure
to meet the housing needs of non-students. Local
planning policy also highlights that a high concentration
of student housing can make private renting unaffordable
for other vulnerable groups. An oversupply of student
housing also affects the area's prevailing character and

setling.



O

The proposals are also unsustainable as:

- there is no unmet need to deliver student
housing accommodation in the City of Lincoln

- the proposals are classed as being ‘more
vulnerable' development and are o be sited in an
area where this is a high probability of flooding
when there are other reasonably available sites
which have a lower risk of flooding and as such,
would be more suitable for the proposed use if it
were required,

- the proposals have failed to take account ¢
Lincoln's rich historic heritage and the design is
not sympathetic to the surrounding area. Good
design is a key componen! of suslainable
development and the proposals have failed to
consider key views into and from the site.

165 ‘Both elements of the exception test Importantly, both elements of the exceplion test criteria
should be satisfled for the development need 1o be salisfied. As noted above, the proposals fall
to be allocated or permitted’ [Our short of satisfying criteria ‘a)'.
emphasis]

Re-use of brownfleld site

Paragraph 120c states that substantial weight should be given to the value of using of suftablebrownfield land within
settlements for homes and other idenlified needs, and supporting aopropriate opportunities to remediate despoiled,
degraded, derelict, conlaminated or unstable land.

The policy wording notes that substantial weight should be afforded 1o the re-use of sultable brownfield land and supporting

appropriale opportunilies only. This site is unsuftable for redevelopment due lo the aforementioned flood risk constraints
and the proposals lo provide student accommodation are Inappropriate as a resull of the lack of need o provide student
accommodalion in the City of Lincoln (beyond what is included in the residential pipeline oullined in the Central Lincolnshire
Five Year Housing Land Report (October 2021). Pertinently, this site is not mentioned in the Five Year Housing Land Report
{Oclober 2021).

Furthermore, there are a number of malerial considerations that demonstrale thal the proposals should not be supported
and these malerial considerations should also be afforded substantial weight when determining the application proposals.

189



()nyus

Making efffcient use of iand

Paragraph 119 stales that planning decisions should promole the most effective use of land in meeling the needs of the
area, whilst safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.

Paragraph 124 highlights that development should be supported where it makes efficient use of land, laking inlo
account:
the identified need for different types of housing and the availability of land suilable for accommodation il
local market conditions
the: availability and capacity of infrastructure and services
the: desirability of maintaining an area's prevailing characler and setting and
the importance of securing well designed, attraclive and heallhy places.

There is nol an identified need for the development proposals. The lack of demand for siudent accommodation in Lincoln is
evidenced laler in this fetler. As such, the proposals do not afign with Paragraph 119 as redeveloping the site lo provide
studen! accommodalion would not be an effective use of land and wowld’ not meet the needs of the area.

Paragraph 126 slales thal, ' The creation of high qualily. beautiful and sustainable bulidings and places is fundamental
lo whal the planning and development process should achfeve. Good design Is 8 key aspect of sustainable
develgoment.’ [Our emphasis].

Paragraph 130 noles thal planning decisions should ensure thal ‘developments are sympathetic to local character and
history. including the surrounding bullt environment and landscape setting. [Our emphasis]

Paragraph 134 stipulztes that ‘development that Is not well designed should be refused, especially where It falls to
reflect local design policles and govermment guldance on deslgn, taking into account any local design guidance and
supplementary planning documents such as design guides and codes.’ [Our emphasis]

The proposals are nol of good design as the food risk consiraints of the sife compromise the gualily of the development and
Ihe impact of the proposals upon the local herilage assels and nearby residential properlies has nol been considered. The
scale and massing of the praposed development is nol sympathelic o the surrounding buill form and sefing. The building
thal is proposed is of 3 sloreys and the residential properlies in the vicindy are only of 2 sloreys. Importani herilage assels
are also clearly visible from the site and fitte has been done o enhance the seifing or significance of these asseals or indeed,
even consider herifage. Overall, the proposals are nof of 2 good design and thus, do nof constitute sustainabile developmen.

190



)JLL

Paragraph 189 stresses thal heritage assels are an irreplaceable resource and should be conserved in a manner
appropriate lo their significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and
fulure generations.

Paragraph 199 notes that, when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated
heritage asset, great weight should be given lo the assel’s conservation (and the more important the assel, the greater
the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less
than substantial harm lo ils significance.

The planning application submission omits any reference to herilage considerations which should have formed an
important consideration when designing the proposals. This is very much a lost opportunity to promole suslainable
design principles through incorporating herilage considerations. It is considered that a Heritage Impact Assessment
needs 1o be carried out to ensure that there will be no harm lo the significance or setting of the herilage assets in the
vicinity.

Local Planning Policy

The current Development Plan covering the Site is made up of the following documents: -
s Central Lincolnshire Local Plan
s University of Lincoln Masterplan

The Central Lincolnshire Local Plan was adopted in April 2017 and guides development for Central Lincolnshire
authorities until 2036.

Site specific policy - Regeneration and Opportunily Area

Policy LP35: Lincoln’s Regeneration and Opportunity Areasnotes thal planning permission will be granted in the
‘Firth Road Area’ for the appropriateredevelopment of siles in the regeneration area for housing, including
accommodation for students, either solely or as part of a mixed-use development in association with Business B1 use,

Education and Community Use D1, small shops, cafes, restaurants on the ground floor along the waterfront: and
leisure. The silte falls within this Regeneration and Opportunity Area.

I should be noled any proposals should represent appropriale redevelopment of sites in the Regeneration and
Opporiunitly Area. Given the flood risk constraints of the site and the lack of need for student accommodalion, the
proposals would not represent appropriale redevelopment of the site. There should be flexibility and the development
proposals should meet an identified need rather than crealing an oversupply of housing for one particular demographic as
this is unsustainable.

191



(O)Jrc

Paragraph 7.11.11s of relevance as it acknowledges that whilst it is important that the accommodation needs of
students is met, difficulties can arise where there is a high concentration in a particular area. The wording notes that,
‘Froblems mainly occur where there [s a conceniration of dwellings with a rapid furnover of residents or a concenlration of
converfed awellings in an established resigential area causing an imbalance in those communilies wivch can have
negalive effects. These can include an increase in parking pressures and & decreasad demand for local shops and services
wiich can lead o their closure. i can also fead lo & rise in anti-social behaviour and crime favels and puf pressure on

family housing 2s owner acoupiers and buy lo let landiord's compele for similar properlies and inflate rental prices.
Fiood Risk

Policy LP14: Managing Waler Resources and Fiood Risk noles thal, ‘All develnpment proposals will be considered
against the NPEF, including application of the sequential and, if necessary, the exceplion test” As demonstrated in Table
1, the development proposals conflict with national planning policy in respect of flood risk and the proposals fail when
assessed against the Sequenfial Test and Exception Test requirements. As such, planning permission should be refused.

Herltage

Paragraph 5.10.1 highlights thal the nolable historic environment positively contribules to Central Lincolnshire's
character, the quality of life experienced by residents, and its appeal as a destinalion for visitors and tourists.

Paragraph 5.10.2 slales thal Cenlral Lincolnshire's local characler is heavily influenced by Lincoln, a world class
Cathedral City.

Paragraph 5.10.3 stresses thal Central Lincolnshire’s herilage assets, including the significant historic building stock
and archaeological resource, are irreplaceable and require careful management as the area evolves and under goes
significant growlh and regeneration.

Pollcy LP25: The Historlc Environment stipulates thal, ‘Develapment proposals should profect, conserve and seek
opporiunilies fo enhance the hislonic environmen! of Canfral Lincolnshire.

I insiances where 3 development proposal would affect the significance of a heritage assel fwhelher designated or non-
designaled), including any conlribulion made by its seffing, the applicant wilf be required o underiake the following, in 3
manner propoviionate fo the assefs significance:

& describe and assess the significance of the assel, including fs sefling, o delermine ifs archifectural, isiorical or
archaeological inferest: and

b identify the impact of the proposed works on the significance and special characler of the assel and

£ provide clear fustification for the works, especially if these would harm the significance of the asse! or fts selting, so thal
the harm can be welghed against public benefis.

Unless it is explicilly demonstraled thal the proposal meels e lests sef owl in the NEPF, permission will only be granied
for development affecling designalad or non-designated herifage assels whare the impact of the proposails) does nof
harm fhe significance of the assef andior its seffing.

Development proposals will be supported where they:

192



(O)Irc

d. Profect the significance of designated heritage assels (including their sefting) by profecting and enhancing architectural
and historic characler, fislorical associalions, landscape and lownscape fealures and hrough consideralion of scale,
design, malerials, siting, fayoul mass, use and views and visias both from and lowards the assel:

& Promole cpporfunities o betfer reveal signifficance of herilage assels, where possible:

£ Take info account the desirability of susizining and enhancing non-designated herftage assels and el sefiing.”

Given Lincoln's rich hislonc characler, il s considered 2 gross oversight thal heritage has nol been considerad when
designing the proposals. This lack of regard for heritage demonsirales poor design and good design is & key component of
sustainable development. Any planning application lo redevelop e sife showld have been supporfed by 2 Heritage Impact
Assessment

Planning Application Submission
The planning application submission comprises of the following plans and documents:

Planning Statement and SCI by DPP

Air Quality Assessment by Stroma

Archaeological Desk Based Assessment by On Site Archaeology Limited
Architectural Drawings by Den Architecture showing proposed plans and views
Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment by Brooks Ecological

Design and Access Statement by DEN Archilecture

Drainage Statement by Building Design Northern and associated plans

Energy and Low Carbon Technology Stalement by Desco

Flood Risk Assessment by Building Design Morthern

Flood Risk Sequential Assessment and Exceplion Test by DPP

Landscape Masterplan (ref: 21 5523 100) by JRP

Noise Impact Assessment by Nova

Notes on Site Investigation by Bradbrook Consulling

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal by Brooks Ecological

Transport Assessment by Local Transporl Projects

Travel Plan by Local Transport Projects Ground Investigation Report by lan Farmer Associates

The planning system is important in ensuring high-quality, goed design, sustainable place-making that meets current
needs without intentionally harming the local area or community.

We have reviewed the planning application submission and consider thal it is insufficient in demonsirating a need for
sludenl accommodalion al this sile and there are also a number of lechnical considerations thal should preclude the
granting of planning permission of the proposals.

Overall, we consider that the site is unsuitable for the developmenl proposed, there is no need for additional student
accommodation in the area, the proposals are of poor design and the proposals are unsustainable for these reasons.

193



@)JLr

Table 1 in this letter demonstrates the failure of the development proposals in satisfying the Sequential and Essential
Tesls required to be satisfied in order to allow the proposals to be granted planning permission given the site's Flood
Zone 3a slalus. Thus, the proposals conflict with Policy LP14: Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk of the Local
Plan.

Below, it is demonsirated that the proposals that have been pul forward are of poor design and the lack of need for
student accommodation in Lincoln is explored. Overall, each of these planning arquments - flood risk, poor design and
lack of need for student accommodation —is a material consideralion to be weighed in the balance when delermining
the planning application. It has been justified why the proposals constitute unsuitable, inappropriate and unsustainable
development.

1. Poor design

Although the design of the scheme includesred brick, this is not enough to ensure thal the proposals are of good design
and are sympathetic 1o the surrounding area. The proposed buildings are of contemporary appearance whichis a stark
contrast to the historical built form and landscape in the vicinity of the site, including the local herilage assets and the
Victorian houses on Coulson Road.

The Design and Access Statement, as well as other submitted supporting documents or plans, do not effectively
conslider the key views at the site, particularly views 1o and from key herilage assets in the local vicinity such as, but
not limited to, the Crown Windmill, Lincoln Cathedral, and Lincoln Castle. The images presented in the ‘Site and
Surroundings' section of this letter show some of views photographed at different points throughout the site. These
views and indeed, the impact of the proposals on these key heritage assels have been ignored in the planning
application submission. Given Lincoln's rich heritage, due regard should be had to the heritage assets in the vicinity of
the site. The planning application submission has not considered heritage.

Furthermore, the planning application has not given enough consideration to the implications of building 3-7 storey
apartments al this site. This has significant implications for views ofthe sile from important heritage assets and also
views fromthe sile. The changes in views for surrounding existing residents should also be considered, as well as views
for the future residents of the proposed scheme. In particular, the Crown Windmill on Princess Streel is well known for
providing views of Lincoln that can be seen from the upper floors, and with the proposals at this site sitting within 300
meters of the Windmill, the changes and effects of these views should be considered in depth.

The proposed heights will also significantly change the views from the existing residential dwellings surrounding the
proposed development such as those on Coulson Road. Heights of 3-7 storeys will significantly alter their views of the
Gty and therefore, the height of buildings should be reconsidered to prevent conflict between the existing and
potential future residents.

194



@)JLc

Overall, the design of the proposals in their current form, are not sympathetic to the existing built environment and
wider landscape. Furthermore, the implications of the development on key heritage asserts have not been considered.
As such, we consider thal the proposals are unsustainable.

For the reasons noted above, it is considered that the development proposals do not accord with:

= Policy LP17: Landscape, Townscape, and Views
= Policy LP25: The Historic Environment;
= Policy LP26: Design and Amenity;
= Policy LP29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character
2. Lack of need for student accommodation In Lincoln
The City of Lincoln Council has a 5.35 year housing land supply as of Oclober 2021.

In addition, The Housing Strategy 2020-2025 document prepared by The City of Lincoln Council acknowledges that the
housing market in the City needs rebalancing due to the high level of student housing in particular localities. It states that
the University of Lincoln and Bishop Grosseteste University have advised thal, further 1o the completion of the Medical
School, they currently have no plans for further expansion within the timeframe of the Housing Strategy and pipeline
residential sites will adequately meet demand until 2025. This site is not referenced as being within that pipeline in the
Central Lincolnshire Five Year Housing Land Report (October 2021). This further supports the case that the proposals are
not necessary.

Furthermore, the Housing Stralegy document states that, by 2026, the demand by students for HMO accommodation in
city cenlre locations will have greally reduced, allowing for the reintroduction of family housing and more balance
residential neighbourhoods.

Local market conditions should also be factored in. The University of Lincoln has provided JLL with a letter which further
evidences the current lack of demand and uplake of student accommodation in the local area and siresses that the
provision of further student accommodation will only serve lo exacerbale existing void issues. The letter is provided in

full at Enclosure 2.

Given that there is a subslantial student accommodation block in construction to the north of the site at the St Marks
Retall Park site permitled under Planning Application Ref. No. 2018/1261/FUL that has planning consent to deliver 1372
bed spaces and there are adequate sites identified lo provide student accommodation up until 2025, if the application
site were o be brought forward for student accommodation use also, this would result in an overconcentration of
student housing in the area. As such, the proposals do not represent sustainable development.

195



(O)Irc

The Housing Strategy 2020-2025 document prepared by The City of Lincoln Council acknowledges that the
concentration of student accommodation in the City has driven up rents for private rented housing, making private

renting unaffordable lo many people on benefits and low incomes. Thus, an oversupply in student accommaodation will
further exacerbale these issues and will resull in the needs of other groups that are vulnerable not being mel.

Having a concentration of student accommadalion in areas also has a knock-on effect on the local area’s desirability
for those that are not students as it impacts the area’s prevailing character and sefting and can lead to adverse effects
in terms of anlisocial behaviour and an increase in crime. Furthermore, an overconcentration of student
accommodation s likely lo cause an imbalance whereby there is a failure to meet the housing needs of non-students.
This should be factored into consideration when determining the planning application.

For the reasons noled above, it is considered thal the development proposals do nol accord with:
= Policy LP10: Meeting Accommodation Needs.
Summary and Concluslons

The development proposals that are the subject of Planning Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB conflict with policies
contained within the NPPF and Local Development Plan. Specifically, the proposals do not comply with the following
policies contained within the Ceniral Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017):

= Policy LP10: Meeting Accommodation Needs
= Policy LP14; Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk
= Policy LP17: Landscape, Townscape, and Views

= Policy LP25: The Historic Enviranment

«  Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

= Policy LP29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character

In addition, the propasals conflict with the following policies contained within the NPPF:

= Paragraphs 2 and 47 as the proposals do not accord within policies contained within the Development Plan:
= Paragraphs 10 and 11 as the proposals do not represent sustainable development

= Paragraphs 159, 162, 163, 164 and 165 a5 the proposals do not comply with policy in respect of flood risk

= Paragraph 120c as the proposals are unsuilable and inappropriale

196



R o

m Paragraphs 119, 124, 126, 130 and 134 as the proposals represent the ineffective and inappropriate use of land
and poor design

m Paragraphs 189 and 199 as the proposals have a lack of regard for heritage considerations

Furthermore, it has been demonstrated within this letter that the site is unsuitable due to the significant flood risk
constraints that are present, the proposals are of poor design, there is a lack of need for student accommodation
proposals and the granting of planning consent in this instance, would lead to an overconcentration of student housing
in the local area. Overall, the proposals represent inappropriate, unsuitable and unsustainable development. On the
basis of the planning arguments set out within this letter, the proposals should not be granted planning permission.

Yours sincerely,

Ravinder Uppal

Associate Director

Planning and Development

For and on behalf of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited

OJrc

Enclosure 1 — Annotated Extract from Historic England illustrating
the heritage assets within the local vicinity of the site

197



S UECN . W - " 3 Qy &m Z:A:|
5 NS TNU x |l
4 | Grade | Listed Bullding P i”!
F v » || Church of St. Mary Le Wigford o Grade Il Listed Buliding ]
Y | [~ ROPE WALK Lincoln Central Station and Footbridge
PN W el ~ and Platform Bullding and Yard Walls
—~7 10| orade nisted Butding 4 7 Werks Worl
PR RE
N d S = S'Wtimml oo
4 5 L White House, Akrills Court 1.
3\ : ,::7')&; = - e 74 Ind Est7, -~
) AT ; FIR7| Grade Il Listed Bullding / L2 &L e
. SN Former St. Marks Rallway - =
Vy - e Station Office and Platform T ROA \' Grade Il Listed Bullding Ks‘
\ 3 ° ~ Marchmont House TEVER5
BOUIt 1am sl }y{ ;
ls
SR 2 2 A 0 rhEey
7 |.| Grade i Listed Bullding ST %
= |2 Central Methodist Church ~ “"’"G [ 3 workHetamsie:
/| i Gndolu:bdmu
m -
:’ Protectec Vivetu Ste
L/ Grade I Listed Buliding o
4| Romanesque Door Arch [ !
- —2 ey, f1 Si57 StMary's Gulld Hall .
4 i N T s 3
107-113 High Street & Eroy
e w) e
T Y €
! Grade | Listed Bullding — )
T | Church of st. Peter | I s
Grade Il Listed Bullding {14 /C(" ;"‘" B Fesrsteoe
Crown Mill STREEY Listed Bullding N ) .
_____ 5 iz
= il
— ) N Q) Tzt 2
A 3l gy T G R W.{gﬁg{\:&.i”’. T L

Enclosure 2 — Letter dated 4" November from the University of
Lincoln to JLL providing current market evidence on the lack of
demand of student accommodation in the local area

198



UNIVERSITY OF

LINCOLN

4™ November 2021
Mrs Ravinder Uppal
Jones Lang LaSalle
45 Church Street
Birmingham
B3 Z2RT

Dear Ravinder,
Re: Objection to Planning Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB

Further to our correspondence, you have been instructed by the University of Lincoln
(UoL) to consider the above referenced planning application relating to the proposed
development of student accommodation at Firth Road. This letter is to support the
formal letter of objection Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) are to submit on behalf of UoL.

At present, UoL are experiencing significant voids in our existing supply of student
accommodation. Currently, student numbers are approximately 800 down on last year,
illustrated in the graph below, with a plan to recover to last year's level of take up by
next year,

Uol full time students

14,000
12,000
O
B.O00
B0
A D
Pk ob 02021

1118 2819

M ol hull Lirne At ude i

g

022

W Mew UG B Astiamang UG B PGT & PGR

This aim is optimistic and highly dependent on steps taken by more popular
Universities across the country and whether the ‘over - offering’ of places at these
facilities continues and whether overseas students return. It will also be difficult to
achieve this target given the smaller cohort of returning undergraduates due to this
year's small intake.

199



UNIVERSITY OF

LINCOLN

The table below shows the UoL capacity and occupancy as of 10" November 2021. In
August 2022, UoL will also have taken on Block A at St Marks and assuming the same
number of residents, the number of vacant beds will rise to 926. UoL

Nov-21  Aug-22

Uol capacity 4,260 4,410
Occupancy 3,484 3,484
% 81.8% 79.0%
Surplus Uol beds 776 926

UoL are also aware of some private providers in the region who are extremely
concerned about vacancy numbers. Adding more capacity will only pile more negative
pressure onto an already over-supplied market.

UoL are happy to provide further input and supporting information as required.

Yours sincerely,

Mr Rob Haigh BSc (Hons) MRICS
Interim Estates Property Manager

For and on behalf of the University of Lincoln

200



@)JLc

45 Church Street, Brmingham B3 2RT

Development Team

City of Lincoln Council +44 (0)121 643 6440
City Hall jiLco.uk

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln Mobile: 07594519736
LN11DD sarah jones @eu jil.com
15™February 2022

Dear Sir / Madam,

Letter of additional Supporting Information and response to comments to accompany the Letter of Objection
against the proposals for the erection of student accommodation at the Former Willlam Sinclair Holdings Site,
Firth Road, Lincoln, LN6 7AH, prepared on behalf of the University of Lincoin.

I write to submil this Supporting Information alongside the Letter of Objection dated 4 November 2021 on behalf of
our client, the Universily of Lincoln, in respect of the planning application proposals that are the subject of Planning
Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB. Thisletler sets oul research and evidence thal demonstrates the lack of need for
additional student accommodation in the City of Lincoln, and responds to the further information provided by the
Applicant.

Description of Proposals

W previously submitted a letter of objection (dated 4" November 2021) in respect of the hybrid planning application
that seeks Full Planning Permission for Phase 1 and Outline Planning Permission with details of only access for Phase 2
(Planning Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB). This letter should be read in conjunction with the letter dated 4"
November 2021. The description of the proposals are as follows:

“Hybrid application for the erection of 22no. buildings for us as HMO (Class C4/Sui Generis) (fotalling 6 7no. units)
and Tno. office building with 8no. residential aparfments on the first and second floors (Class E(g)/C3) with
associaled parking and landscaping works (Phase T - Full Planning Permission): and erection of approximaiely
3no. apartment biocks (Class C3) and 9no. HMOs (Class C4/Sui Generis) with associaled parking and landscape
works (Phase 2 - Oulline planning permission including delails of access only)'

We understand that the Applicant has submitted amendments lo the application that include a revised Proposed Site
Plan, revised Drainage Strateqy, revised Flood Risk Assessment, and a revised Landscape Plan, following comments from
local authority consultees which indicated that the proposed drainage system would not function. The Applicant also
issued a Response to Comments which we will address in this Letter.

201



O

In their Response to Comments, the Applicant states that “there is no planning policy requirement for a student
accommodation development lo demonsirate that it meets a specified need for student accommodation, meaning the
University's claims in this regard are unsubstantiated from a planning policy perspective”.

Planning Policy requirements to consider the relevance of the proposed development

National planning policy does require the Applicant to assess the need and requirement for a particular type and the
proposed use of development. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) asserts that development should
ensure places respond to local changes and allow a suitable and relevant mix of uses that consider the scale and type of
development that is likely to be needed in the surrounding area (paragraph 86).

Sustainable development lies at the heart of the NPPF, with paragraph 8 stating that development should meet the
needs of present and future generations that reflect uses for both current and future needs. To reinforce, the social,
economic, and environmental objectives outlined in the NPPF should be considered together 1o ensure that land is used
effectively to safequard the vitality of localities and prevent decay of urban areas. This paragraph also states that local
circumstances should be considered to * reflect the needs of each ared”.

The presumption in favour of sustainable development (paragraph 11) outlines thal sustainable development should
meet the development needs of the area and provide objectively assessed needs for both housing and other uses. In any
circumstance, the Applicant and the Local Authority should consider how sustainable the development proposals are for
current and fulure generations. The research presented by the University of Lincoln evidences the vast oversupply of
student accommodation in the area and thus, the development proposals are wholly inappropriate and unsuitable for
the local area.

Further Information: The Lack of Need for Student Accommodation In the Clty of Lincoln

In their Response to Comments, the Applicant states that the proposal “looks beyond the need for accommodation up
until 2025".

The University of Lincoln has undertaken research into the need for student accommaodation in the City for the next
decade, and to this end, has compiled evidence of theforecas! numbers of students that are predicted lo residein Lincoln
between now and 2031. The University of Lincoln has analysed these predictions against both existing and proposed
student accommodation schemes in the City, with the findings demonslrating that there is a vast oversupply of student
accommodation In Lincoln, thereby demonslrating that there isa lack of need for additional student accommodation
provisions in Lincoln both now and for the next decade. These findings are explained in further detail below.

Figure 1 below, produced by the University of Lincoln, indicates the existing supply and demand of student
accommodation over the course of the next decade.

202



@)JLc

This shows that currently, with the existing stock of student accommodation in Lincoln, (and not including any pending
applications for schemes), there Is already a surplus of 2,670 beds In the city of Lincoln. This is predicled to be a
surplus of 1,010 beds by 2031. As shown in the graph, this exceeds the targel 2% surplus of 170 beds.

Fiigure 1: Supply and Demand of beds from the existing stock of student accommodation In Lincoln

Student Accommodation Surplus/Deficit

+3000
42500
+2000
+1500
+1000 ——
4500
esccse |; - -
2/ 2824 24025 25026 27 228 2829 2930 o
= Totsl Demand Change wa e s 27 251 98 S8 W3 a5
s Tosal Supply Change a9 0 W0 () 0 W 0 w0 0
— 1 000 Srphus 2670 238 12 1515 1264 1166 +1108 1055 +1010
- et 2% Surplus B h 170 i N “n 10 N 10 110

r

Flgure 2 below, again produced by the University of Lincoln, indicates how this existing surplus will be affected by the
proposals for additional student accommodation in the City, namely at Land at Firth Road.

If the pending schemes are approved by the Council, the surplus will rise to 3,542 beds too many by 2023 and will
maintain a significant surplus of 2,174 beds by 2031. This again drastically exceeds the target surplus of 2% (170 beds).

203



"~ .

Flgure 2: Supply and Demand of bedss from the existing and proposed stock of student accommodation in Lincoin

Student Accommodation Surplus/Deficit

4000
43500
*3000
2500
2000
+1500
+1000
*500
n il o
i - N i =
8 S 53] is s .
w0 e f 13 le 22 ¥ _— . "
223 24 24425 296 W 21z 829 2930 g/
s Total Demand Change 447 2 L% 27 %1 38 “s 53 a5
Total Supply Changs 2 1164 L] w0 0 w0 w0 0 W
— 0 Sl 2670 235400 3106 2679 s 2330 22 2 2a0) w174
-t 2% Surplon 10 9% oam 19 “as . - Qv am

The evidence provided herewith justifies the University of Lincoln’s objection of proposals for additional student
accommodation at Firth Road, on the basis that there is a lack of need for this type of development in the City of Lincoln.
The existing stock of student accommodation Is more than sufficient to support the predicted forecast of student
numbers over the next decade. Therefore, itis in the Council's interest lo encourage betler use of this land as student
accommodation here will nol meet the needs of the City and its' residents, and over time, may prove detrimental to the
successlul and sustainable development of Lincoln as a City.

Herltage

In their Response 1o Comments, the Applicant aimed to justify their lack of consideration of the impact of the
development on surrounding heritage assets by stating “in respect to the perceived impact on the nearby heritage assels,
this has not been assessed as part of the planning application as it was nol raised as an issue by the LPA at pre-app stage”.

204



(O)Jrc

Sectlon 16 of the NPPF highlights the importance of conserving and enhancing the historic environment and
demonstrates how planning applications should always assess the impacts upon surrounding heritage assets.

Paragraph 194 states that applicants should describe the significance of any heritage assels affected, including any
contribution made by their setling. The level of detail should be proportionale to the importance of the heritage asset lo
understand the polential impact of the proposal. As a minimum, the relevant historic environment record should have
been consulled and the herilage assets assessed.

Paragraphs 195, 197, 199 and 205 exlend this, encouraging authorilies to consider how surrounding herilage assels
and their settings may be affected by a proposal by encouraging developers lo record and advance understanding of the
significance of the surrounding heritage assels. The potential impacts should be considered wholly by the applicant,
irrespective of whether the polential harm amounts 1o substantial harm, or less than substantial harm lo its significance.

The proposals as submitled fail 1o consider the surrounding heritage assels that are in view from the sile, including
Lincoln Cathedral and Lincoln Castle. The Applicant should demonstrate understanding of the polential heritage
impacts of the proposed development before the local authority consider approval of the hybrid planning application.

Flood Risk and Dralnage

This letter should be read in conjunction with the letter submitled 1o the City of Lincoln Council on 4" November on behalf
of the University of Lincoln. Overall, it is considered that the proposals for this ‘more vulnerable’ use are wholly
unsuitable, unsustainable and inappropriateat the site.

Conflict with planning policy

The development proposals thal are lhe subject of Planning Application Ref. No. 2021/0817/HYB conflict with policies
within the NPPF and the Local Development Plan. The evidence presented in this letter specifically indicate how the
proposals do nol comply with the following policies contained within the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017):

= Policy LP10: Meeting Accommodation Needs;

= Policy LP26: Design and Amenity;
= Policy LP29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character

In addition, the evidence presented here shows how the proposals conflict with the following policies contained within
the NPPF:

= Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment as the proposals do not wholly consider the
polential impacts upon heritage assels in the surrounding area / setling of the sile

205



@)L

= Paragraphs 2 and 47 as the proposals do not accord within policies contained within the Development Plan;

= Paragraph 120c as the proposals are unsuitable and inappropriate;
= Paragraphs 119, 124, 126, 130 and 134 as the proposals represent the ineffective and inappropriate use of land

Therefore, the granting of planning consent in this instance is not in the public interest as it would lead to an
overconcentration of student housing in the local area. Overall, taking the recent amendments to the application in
account, the proposals still represent inappropriate, unsuitable, and unsustainable development. On the basis of the
evidence set out within this letter, and the planning arguments set out in the Letter of Objection dated 4™ November
2021, we respectfully request that the proposals should not be granted planning permission.

Yours sincerely,

Sarah Jones MSc BA (Hons)
Graduate Planner
For and on behalf of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited

206



DPP Planning
Studio 012, Haylofts

St Thomas Street
Newcastle upon Tyne

NE1 4LE

info@dppukltd.com PLANNING

www.dppukltd.com

Julie Mason

City of Lincoln Council
City Hall

Beaumont Fee
Lincoln

LN1 1DF

Ref: KD/LF/JL/3793NE/LOOS

Date: 25 January 2022

Dear Julie,

Planning reference 2021/0817/HYB — Hybrid application for the erection of 22no. buildings for use as HMO (Class C4/Sui
Generis) (totalling 67no. units) and 1no. office building with 8no. residential apartments on the first and second floors
(Class E(g)/C3) with associated parking and landscaping works (Phase 1 - Full Planning Permission); and erection of
approximately 3no. apartment blocks (Class C3) and 9no. HMOs (Class C4/Sui Generis) with associated parking and
landscape works (Phase 2 - Outline planning permission including details of access only) at Former William Sinclair
Holdings Site Firth Road Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7AH.

On behalf of aur client, Ashcourt Group (“the Applicant”), we submit the following responses (in bold) to the consultee
and public comments received to date in respect of the application described above.

Consultee Comments

Environment Agency

The EA have not objected to the development and have instead recommended that four conditions are attached,
including one for flood risk and three for land contamination. The flood risk condition states that the flood resilient
construction methods set out in point 5.5 of the previous FRA should be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements.

The EA have also offered up further advice regarding land contamination, including additional assessments.

The EA have noted that the Council’s EIA screening opinion confirms that they are of the opinion that the proposed
development does not warrant an EIA.

In addition to the above, the EA have made the following comments:
e Impacts of raised development platform — it is noted that the proposal includes a raised development platform. The
EA are aware of the objections raised by the Drainage officer to this proposal and, in respect of their concerns relating

to access to the adjacent Main Drain and possible impacts on adjacent surface water, the EA support their position.

DPP One Limited

. Company number 08129507
Cardiff  Leeds London Manchester Newcastle upon Tyne  vat number 138284595

207



PLANNING

It is their strong recommendation that a multi-agency meeting of all Flood Risk Management Authorities be held to
discuss this site.

e Site drainage strategy —the EA highlight the fact the proposed outfall from the site is below water level and therefore
the system as designed will not work.

e Flood warning and evacuation plan — the EA advise that a flood warning and evacuation plan is produced for the
development in order to address the residual risks of flooding at the site and to confirm the approach that will be
taken for safe evacuation of the area.

e Signing up for flood warnings — the Applicant should phone Floodline on 0345 988 1188 to register for a flood
warning, or visit https://www.gov.uk/sign-up-for-flood-warnings. This is a free service that provides warnings of
flooding from rivers, the sea and groundwater, direct by telephone, email or text message.

e Environmental permit —under the terms of the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2016, a permit or exemption
may be required for any proposed works or structures, in, under, over or within a ‘main river’ or within 8m of a fluvial
main river or 16m of a tidal main river. Please contact our Partnership and Strategic Overview Team in Lincoln by
email psolincs@environment-agency.gov.uk to discuss the proposals. The team will be able to advise if permit or
exemption is required and the fee applicable. Please be aware that the EA have up to two months to determine the
application from duly made date, therefore prompt discussions are advised.

The Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy originally submitted in support of this application have been amended
to address the Environment Agency’s comments.

The flood resilient construction methods set out in point 5.5 of the previous Flood Risk Assessment have been replaced
by the following flood mitigation measures, which are deemed sufficient to ensure the future residents are not at adverse
risk of flooding:

e |tis proposed to place the new development on the Environment Agency’s emergency flood line which would
advise occupants of potential flood events;

e Aflood procedure plan will be drafted by the management to ensure that all occupants are aware of the
evacuation plan / safe egress and refuge routes should flooding occur; and

e To manage residual risk and minimise flood risk to the proposed dwellings, the FFL’s have been set at 1300mm
above the existing ground levels of the site, to a minimum level of 5.700mAQD.

The above measures can be secured by condition.
Anglian Water

No objection. Anglian Water’s records show that there are assets owned by Anglian Water or those subject to an
adoption agreement within the development site boundary. Anglian Water have requested the following text is included
on the decision notice should permission be granted: “Anglian Water has assets close to or crossing this site or there are
assets subject to an adoption agreement. Therefore the site layout should take this into account and accommodate those
assets within either prospectively adoptable highways or public open space. If this is not practicable then the sewers will
need to be diverted at the developers cost under Section 185 of the Water Industry Act 1991. or, in the case of apparatus
under an adoption agreement, liaise with the owners of the apparatus. It should be noted that the diversion works should
normally be completed before development can commence”.

The applicant has no objection to the above.
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board

The Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board has objected to the development on basis of the proposed raised ground
level preventing maintenance of the Boultham Pump Drain. The officer states that under the terms of the Upper Witham
Internal Drainage Board's Byelaws, the prior written consent of the Board is required for any proposed temporary or
permanent works or structures in, under, over or within the byelaw distance (6m) of the top of the bank of a Board
maintained watercourse. At this location, the full width is required to be kept clear of all obstructions to allow

Ref: KD/LF/JL/3793NE/LO0OS 2

208



PLANNING

maintenance with large excavators and tractor flail units and to deposit cut vegetation and silt. The Byelaws are
independent of the planning process and any ground raising, planting (as shown on the landscape plans), street furniture,
lighting, etc. would not be permitted. The Board will shortly be adopting revised Byelaws with a distance of 9m, as this
is a large watercourse the full 9m would be required to provide sufficient room for maintenance, it is advised that the
layout is revised to accommodate this.

They go onto state that there is a culverted riparian watercourse running parallel to the River Witham, which is not
identified on any plans or in the FRA or Drainage Strategy. It is vital this watercourse is not obstructed. The current plans
show buildings on top of it, the Applicant needs to address this and it would be advised that the culvert is reconstructed
as it is likely to be in poor condition.

Itis also noted the proposed system discharges to the River Witham, the current design as detailed will not work because
of the proposed levels relative to the water level in the river. It would only work if a pump was used. The current
methodology in the Drainage Strategy is unacceptable and the allowable discharge rate would be lower.

The Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy originally submitted in support of this application have been amended
to address the Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board’s comments. The Board have reviewed both reports initially and
have confirmed that they are now acceptable, and that they have no objections.

University of Lincoln
University of Lincoln object to the proposed development, their three main reasons for the refusal are as follows:

1. Flood Risk

Table 1 in the University’s letter argues that the development proposals have failed to satisfy the Sequential and
Exception Tests which are required to be satisfied in order to allow the proposals to be granted planning permission
given the site’s Flood Zone 3a status. Thus, it is asserted that the proposals conflict with Policy LP14: Managing Water
Resources and Flood Risk, of the Local Plan.

2. Poor Design

The University states that the design of the proposals in their current form are not sympathetic to the existing built
environment and wider landscape. Furthermore, the implications of the development on key heritage asserts have
not been considered. As such, it is considered that the proposals are unsustainable.

3. Lack of need for student accommodation in Lincoln

The University of Lincoln has provided JLL with a letter which supposedly evidences the current lack of demand and
uptake of student accommodation in the local area and stresses that the provision of further student
accommodation will only serve to exacerbate existing void issues.

It is noted that there is a lack of need for student accommodation proposals and the granting of planning consent in
this instance, would lead to an overconcentration of student housing in the local area.

We have responded to each of the University’s proposed reasons for refusal in turn below:
Flood Risk

Local Plan Policy LP14 — Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk, states that all development proposals will be
considered against the NPPF, including the application of the sequential and, if necessary, the exception test. DPP
maintain the position that the Flood Risk Sequential Assessment and Exception Test report (ref: R002) submitted as part
of this planning application sufficiently demonstrates that there are no reasonably available, alternative sites for the
proposed development to meet the specific criteria of the Land south of Firth Road, Lincoln, can replicate the
sustainability benefits to Lincoln, or that present any lesser risk than the proposed development site. Moreover, it is also
demonstrated by the Exception Test and accompanying Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, that the proposed
development passes both elements of the Exception Test as it has been demonstrated to be safe for its lifetime, providing

Ref: KD/LF/JL/3793NE/LO0S 3

209



PLANNING

a significant betterment to the site and neighbouring sites in relation to flood risk and wider community benefits in terms
of volumes for flood storage, in addition to the weighty economic, social and environmental benefits. In light of the
above, the proposed development is considered to accord with Local Plan Policy LP14 as it has passed both the required
Sequential and Exception Tests.

The University states that the development proposals are not necessary as there is sufficient development in the pipeline
until 2025 to meet the accommodation needs of students. This proposal looks beyond the need for accommodation up
until 2025, and this is discussed further below.

The methodology of the Flood Risk Sequential Assessment and Exception Test is deemed not sound by the University on
the basis that again, there is sufficient development in the pipeline until 2025 to meet the accommodation needs of
students. This is addressed above and below, however, the LPA have deemed that the methodology is sound based on
the Applicant’s requirements and the requirements of a functional student village site.

The University have stated that the DPP site assessment of the Former CEGB Power Station on Spa Road discounts the
site on that basis that the site is in Flood Zone 3 but the proposed development site is also in Flood Zone 3. This is
recognised but, in line with the Sequential Test requirements set out within paragraph 162 of the NPPF, it is acceptable
to a discount a site within the same floodzone as it is not at a lower flood risk than the proposed development and thus
not sequentially preferable. Therefore, our approach in discounting this site is sound and in accordance with national

policy.

The University also state that the Exception Test has not been passed by the proposed development as it will not provide
wider sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh the flood risk. The very clear and substantial benefits of
the proposed development are set out in point 6.11 of our Flood Risk Sequential Assessment and Exception Test report
(meeting part A of the exception test), whilst it has also been demonstrated that the scheme incorporates flood
mitigation and management that ensures the development will be safe for its lifetime taking into account the
vulnerability of its users, will not increase flood risk elsewhere, and in fact reduces flood risk overall (meeting part B of
the exception test). Therefore, the proposed development passes both elements of the Exception Test. Once again, the
LPA have confirmed that the content of the Flood Risk Sequential Assessment and Exception Test report is acceptable.

Poor Design

The scale and massing of the proposals are considered appropriate when viewed within the wider context of the Site
and the surrounding area. Please note, Phase 2 is currently submitted in outline and as such the detail (including height)
is not submitted with this planning application. The design has been extensively consulted upon and sits very well
between the more urban form to the north and the residential streets to the south and east. The proposal is well
contained by the two waterways and gives great access into the city and the university.

Although the architectural style may be more contemporary than the existing buildings surrounding the site, the
proposed materials of red brick with alternative patterned accents and mansard style roofs will ensure that the scheme
is in-keeping with the local area. Moreover, the variance in flat and pitched roofs will add interest to the surrounding
roofscape.

In respect to the perceived impact on the nearby heritage assets, this has not been assessed as part of the planning
application as it was not raised as an issue by the LPA at pre-app stage and the detailed aspect of the proposed
development comprises three-storey HMOs which would have no impact on the heritage assets identified within the
University’s response. As above, the scale and massing of the Phase 2 apartment blocks are submitted in outline and as
such, the impact of the blocks upon the identified heritage assets will be fully assessed at reserved matters stage when
the LPA will have further detail relating to appearance and scale.

Overall, the proposed development is considered to accord with section 12 of the NPPF and Local Plan Policies LP18 and
LP26.

Ref: KD/LF/JL/3793NE/LO0S 4

210



PLANNING

Lack of need for student accommodation in Lincoln

First and foremost, it should be noted that there is no planning policy requirement for a student accommodation
development to demonstrate that it meets a specified need for student accommodation, meaning the University’s claims
in this regard are unsubstantiated from a planning policy perspective.

The city of Lincoln faces a tangible issue in that the west end of the city is inundated with HMOs and this has severely
impacted housing stock in this location and has led to tensions between residents and students. Therefore, the
development of a student village on the proposed development site will see students moving here and freeing up
traditional housing stock in areas subject to high concentrations of students, and specifically the west end, in turn
allowing families to move into these traditional houses and re-balancing communities.

As there is no policy requirement to demonstrate student need, the comments made by the University relate more to a
commercial decision of Ashcourt as to whether to deliver a development which the University believes may be left empty
due to lack of student demand. Ashcourt are confident that their scheme is viable and deliverable. The proposal is based
upon a very successful scheme that the Ashcourt Group built and operate in Hull close to the University of Hull. The
accommodation is presented in a series of townhouses, giving intimate individual student communities largely used by
2", 3 and 4% year students who have formed social groups through coming together during the first year at university.
Many of the Ashcourt properties are reserved by the same student groups throughout their university life. As such the
product very much competes with converted residential properties scattered across the city. As such it will assist in
easing tensions within residential communities where the different lifestyles can and do cause conflict.

It is entirely possible that the product could be used by some first-year students but in the experience that Ashcourt
have in Hull, this is limited. The product offers enhanced student accommodation and will increase and enrich the
student experience, ultimately to the benefit of the university. It will help create long lasting social groups and friendships
extending students relationships with each other, the University, and the city.

It is also worth noting that Ashcourt as a company also ran 850 student rooms in and around the University of Hull within
converted residential properties but as a result of the new purpose built student scheme that they now operate, they
took the decision to sell these properties, as they are much less desirable to the student community and to a far inferior
specification to the purpose design and built accommodation. Many of these properties are now being used for their
originally intended residential purpose. The management within a purpose-built community such as this proposal is
much more straightforward, allowing for garden spaces that students can use but which is easy to maintain, avoiding
gardens within residential areas becoming uncared for. The landscaped spaces within the development allow students
to gather outdoors without affecting residential communities and where they can enjoy games with friends and eat
outdoors. Ashcourt provide safe and secure student communities, with CCTV and nigh time security 7pm to 7am,
meaning student tenants (and their parents, who are often financial contributors of rent) feel safe whilst living away
from home at University. Ashcourt also offer a first class property management service, with on site maintenance
management and staff.

Notwithstanding the above, the units will be built to be future-proofed meaning in the unforeseen circumstance in which
some of the proposed units are vacant, they could be flexibly converted from HMOs to apartments or offices, for
example. It is not expected that such conversions would be required, but it is an option in the future should vacancy
become an issue.

Ultimately, the site is allocated under Local Plan Policy LP35 for a mixed-use development comprising what were formerly
known as Class A1, A3, B1, D1 and D2 uses, as well as housing, including accommodation for students. Moreover, the
site is identified in the Council’s Brownfield Land Register and the proposed development is in accordance with the
HGDP, which outlines that one of the LPA’s strategic housing priorities is to provide student accommodation and to work
with providers to deliver more student accommodation to meet demand.

Ref: KD/LF/JL/3793NE/LO0S 5

211



PLANNING

Lincoln Civic Trust

The Trust have objected to the application on a number of grounds, including; overdevelopment of the site, a lack of
need for further student accommodation, design, unacceptable height of the Phase 2 blocks, flooding and drainage, and
access.

Please refer to the above responses regarding overdevelopment, a lack of need for further student accommodation,
design, height of the Phase 2 blocks, and flooding and drainage.

In relation to access into the site, the Transport Assessment submitted as part of this application notes that the proposed
development would not be expected to have a significant impact on the operation of the local highway network. The
proposed development is therefore considered to be in accordance with Local Plan Palicy LP13.

City Archaeologist

The City Archaeologist has no objections to the Desk-Based Assessment submitted as part of the application, and the
proposed borehole survey. In such cases, they would condition (i) the foundation design, (ii) further archaeological
evaluation (the proposed borehole survey), (iii) archaeological mitigation and (iv) archiving and reporting.

The applicant has no objection to the proposed condition.

Community Contracts

Community Contracts confirms the requirements for communal bin stores.
Comment noted, these requirements will be followed by the Applicant.
Lincolnshire Police

Lincolnshire Police had no formal objections in principle, but recommended that their initial advisory recommendations
are implemented to reduce the opportunity for crime and increase the safety and sustainability of the development.
Their principal recommendation is a secure access-controlled boundary and fence to enhance the security and safety of
students and staff. Further to this they recommend:

e Perimeter treatment to include appropriate fencing and commensurate gating is included to at least 1.8 m non-
climbable LPS 1175 Security rating 1 (SR1);

e External doors and windows should be made safer by:
o an air-lock style entrance;
o industry standard approved CCTV; and
o ground floor windows should have window restraints and effective locking systems.

e Access to places of height is secured on all levels and should include the provision of substantial windows and
locking systems together with fixed and secured ‘window restraining’ devices; and

e Lighting should be designed to cover the external doors.

The layout has been amended to incorporate appropriate fencing as suggested by Lincolnshire Police. It is understood
that the remaining points could be secured via planning condition.

Housing Strategy Officer
No comment.

Comment noted.

Ref: KD/LF/JL/3793NE/LO05 6

212



PLANNING

Education Officer
No comment.
Comment noted.
Scientific Officer

The Scientific Officer has recommended standard conditions given that the submitted Site Investigation Report was
based upon a different use to that of the current application.

The applicant has no objection to the proposed conditions.
Noise

The Pollution Control Officer is content with the details in the new Noise Impact Assessment subject to a condition
regarding the noise mitigation measures to be submitted prior to commencement of development.

The case officer has confirmed that this condition can be amended to read ‘prior to works above damp proof course’,
which the application accepts.

NHS

The NHS contribution request has been summarised below:

e The contribution requested for the development of Phase 1 - £85,250 (275 x 310 dwellings)
e The contribution requested for the development of Phase 2 - £75,900 (275 x 276 dwellings)
e Total for Phases 1and 2 = £161,150

There is currently limited capacity at some practices to accommodate additional growth in patient numbers arising from
this development, therefore it is requested that the trigger point for the release for funds for health care be set at
payment of all monies upon completion of 50% of the dwellings for each phase of the development. This will ensure the
practices are not placed under undue pressure. To ensure that there is sufficient time carry out the works and allow the
5106 funds to be spent in the most appropriate way, a repayment period of 10 years from receipt of the final payment
transfer (for the entire development) to the relevant NHS body will be required.

The applicant has no objection to the proposed financial contribution.

Public Comments

A total of 3 public comments have been received to date, these include 2 objections and 1 neutral comment. These
comments have been summarised and responded to (in bold) below:

Hours of Construction

The hours of construction have been raised as a concern. A public comment hopes that the hours of construction can be
limited to daylight hours Monday to Friday without starts before 8 am and no later than 5 pm finishes.

Hours of construction are expected to be standard. This will be secured by condition by the Council’s Environmental
Health Officer.

Height of Phase 2 Apartment Blocks

Concerns regarding the height of the apartment blocks in Phase 2.

Ref: KD/LF/JL/3793NE/LO05 7

213



PLANNING

Phase 2 is currently submitted in outline and as such the detail (including height) is not submitted with this planning
application. The comments have been shared with the Applicant for consideration as part of the future development
phase.

Surface Water

A public comment requests assurance the surface water will not be discharged into the river as part of the flow control
when the water of the river is very high.

The proposed development will not be discharged into the River Witham.
Impact on Historical Assets

Concerns regarding the likely unacceptable heritage impact upon Cannon’s Glue Factory which is a building of
considerable interest to the history of Victorian industrial development in central Lincoln..

Cannon’s Glue Factory is situated directly north of site but is in a poor state of repair and vacant and covered in graffiti.
This is not a designated or non-designated heritage asset and as such, the assessment of the proposed development’s
impact on this building is not considered relevant to this planning application.

Access

Clarification is requested on how general public access into this site can be prevented from Waterloo Street, or how
students will be restricted from using the Public Right of Way to access the retail area to the north.

Sufficient boundary fences are proposed around the site to ensure that public access from Waterloo Street into this site
will be restricted. Students will not be restricted from using the Public Right of Way (PROW) along the eastern boundary
of the site, with a access-controlled gate in the east of the site providing access to this PROW.

Parking

Pleased to see that the Applicant is considering the parking issues in the area.

Comments noted.

Plans/Reports
Original (Superseded) Plans & Reports New/Amended Plans & Reports
3233-DEN-AB-ZZ-DR-A-200 — Proposed House Type A and | 3233-DEN-AB-ZZ-DR-A-200 - Proposed House Type A
B — Plans and Elevations and B - Plans and Elevations Rev B
3233-DEN-C-ZZ-DR-A-201 — Proposed House Type C— 3233-DEN-C-ZZ-DR-A-201 - Proposed House Type C -
Plans and Elevations Plans and Elevations Rev B
3233-DEN-D-ZZ-DR-A-206 — Proposed Office — 3233-DEN-D-ZZ-DR-A-206 - Proposed Office -
Apartments Type D — Plans and Elevations Apartments Type D - Plans and Elevations Rev C
3233-DEN-E-ZZ-DR-A-203 — Proposed House Type E — 3233-DEN-E-ZZ-DR-A-203 - Proposed House Type E -
Plans and Elevations Plans and Elevations Rev B
3233-DEN-F-ZZ-DR-A-204 — Proposed House Type F — 3233-DEN-F-ZZ-DR-A-204 - Proposed House Type F -
Plans and Elevations Plans and Elevations Rev C

Ref: KD/LF/IL/3793NE/LO0S 8

214



PLANNING

Original (Superseded) Plans & Reports | New/Amended Plans & Reports

3233-DEN-G-ZZ-DR-A-205 — Proposed House Type G —
Plans and Elevations

3233-DEN-H-ZZ-DR-A-207 — Proposed House Type H —
Plans and Elevations

3233-DEN-I-ZZ-DR-A-208 — Proposed House Type | —
Plans and Elevations

3233-DEN-G-ZZ-DR-A-205 - Proposed House Type G -
Plans and Elevations Rev D

3233-DEN-H-ZZ-DR-A-207 - Proposed House Type H -

Plans and Elevations Rev A

3233-DEN-I-ZZ-DR-A-205 - Proposed House Type | -

Plans and Elevations Rev D

3233-DEN-JK-ZZ-DR-A-209 — Proposed House Type J and
K- Plans and Elevations

3233-DEN-JK-ZZ-DR-A-209 - Proposed House Type J
and K - Plans and Elevation Rev A

N/A 3233-DEN-NO-ZZ-DR-A-200 - Proposed House Type N
and O - Plans and Elevations Rev B

N/A 3233-DEN-LM-ZZ-DR-A-209 - Proposed House Type L
and M - Plans and Elevations Rev A

N/A Riparian Mammal Survey (ref: ER-5774-03)

Flood Risk Assessment (ref: $2274-C-01-0)

Flood Risk Assessment (ref: $2274-C-01-B)

Drainage Strategy (ref: $2274-C-02-A)

Landscape Masterplan (ref: 21 5523 100)

Drainage Strategy (ref: $2274-C-02-B)

Landscape Masterplan (ref: 21 5523 100 Rev A)

Summary

The above responses and amendments to the planning documents demonstrate that the Applicant has made every
endeavour to work proactively with the LPA and consultees. The development would not have any significantly adverse
impacts and as such, planning permission should be granted without delay. If you require any further information at this

stage, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Yours sincerely,
K-Dixon
Kayleigh Dixon
Associate Director

DPP
M: 07398229076

215



love evexy drop O
anglian °

Planning Applications - Suggested Informative Statements and
Conditions Report

If you would like to discuss any of the points in this document please
contact us on 07929 786955 or email

planningliaison@anglianwater.co.uk.

AW Site 181268/1/0133548

Reference:

Local Lincoln District (B)

Planning

Autharity:

Site: Former William Sinclair Holdings Site Firth

Road Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 7TAH

Proposal:  Hybrid application for the erection of 22no.
buildings for us as HMO (Class C4/Sui
Generis) (totalling 67no. units) and 1no.
office building with 8no. residential
apartments on the first and second floors
(Class E(g)/C3) with associated parking
and|

Planning  2021/0817/HYB
application:

Prepared by: Pre-Development Team
Date: 10 December 2021

216



ASSETS

Section 1 - Assets Affected

Qur records show that there are assets owned by Anglian Water or those subject to an adoption agreementwithin
the development site boundary. Anglian Water would ask that the following text be included within your Notice
should permission be granted. Anglian Water has assets close to or crossing this site or there are assefs subject to
an adoption agreement. Therefore the site layout should take this into account and accommodate those assets
within either prospectively adoptable highways or public open space. If this is not practicable then the sewers will
need to be diverted at the developers cost under Section 185 of the Water Industry Act 1991. or, in the case of
apparatus under an adoption agreement, liaise with the owners of the apparatus. It should be noted that the
diversion works should normally be completed before development can commence

WASTEWATER SERVICES
Section 2 - Wastewater Treatment

The foul drainage from this development is in the catchment of Canwick Water Recycling Centre that will have
available capacity for these flows

Section 3 - Used Water Network

This response has been based on the following submitted documents: FRA September 2021/Drainage Strategy
September2021 The sewerage system at present has available capacity for these flows. If the developer wishes to
connect to our sewerage network they should serve notice under Section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991. We
will then advise them of the most suitable point of connection. (1) INFORMATIVE - Notification of intention to
connect to the public sewer under S106 of the Water Industry Act Approval and consent will be required by Anglian
Water, under the Water Industry Act 1991. Contact Development Services Team 0345 606 6087. (2) INFORMATIVE
- Notification of intention to connect to the public sewer under S106 of the Water Industry Act Approval and consent
will be required by Anglian Water, under the Water Industry Act 1991. Contact Development Services Team 0345
606 B087. (3) INFORMATIVE - Protection of existing assets - A public sewer is shown on record plans within the
land identified for the proposed development. It appears that development proposals will affect existing public
sewers. It is recommended that the applicant contacts Anglian Water Development Services Team for further advice
on this matter. Building over existing public sewers will not be permitted (without agreement) from Anglian Water. (4)
INFORMATIVE - Building near to a public sewer - No building will be permitted within the statutory easement width of
3 metres from the pipeline without agreement from Anglian Water. Please contact Development Services Team on
0345 606 6087. (5) INFORMATIVE: The developer should note that the site drainage details submitted have not
been approved for the purposes of adoption. If the developer wishes to have the sewers included in a sewer
adoption agreement with Anglian Water (under Sections 104 of the Water Industry Act 1991), they should contact
our Development Services Team on 0345 606 6087 at the earliest opportunity. Sewers intended for adoption
should be designed and constructed in accordance with Sewers for Adoption guide for developers, as
supplemented by Anglian Water's requirements.

Section 4 - Surface Water Disposal

The preferred method of surface water disposal would be to a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) with connection
to sewer seen as the last option. Building Regulations (part H) on Drainage and Waste Disposal for England
includes a surface water drainage hierarchy, with infiltration on site as the preferred disposal option, followed by
discharge to watercourse and then connection to a sewer.

From the details submitted to support the planning application the proposed method of surface water management
does not relate to Anglian Water operated assets. As such, we are unable to provide comments in the suitability of
the surface water management. The Local Planning Authority should seek the advice of the Lead Local Flood
Authority or the Internal Drainage Board. The Environment Agency should be consulted if the drainage system
directly or indirectly involves the discharge of water into a watercourse. Should the proposed method of surface
water management change to include interaction with Anglian Water operated assets, we would wish to be re-
consulted to ensure that an effective surface water drainage strateqgy is prepared and implemented.

217



Environment

W Agency

City of Lincoln Council Owr ref: AMI2021/132385/02-L01
Development Control Yourref:  2021/0B17/HYB

City Hall Beaumont Fee

Lincoln Date: 14 February 2022

LMN1 1DF

FAQ Julie Mason

Dear Julie

Hybrid application for the erection of 22no. buildings for us as HMO (class Cd/sui
generis) (totalling 67no. units) and 1no. office building with 8no. residential
apartments on the first and second floors (class E(g)/C3) with associated parking
and landscaping works (phase 1 - full planning permission); and erection of
approximately 3no. apartment blocks (class C3) and 9no. HMOs (class C4/sui
generis) with associated parking and landscape works (phase 2 - outline planning
permission including details of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping to be
considered)

Former William Sinclair Holdings site, Firth Road, Lincoln, LN6 7AH

Thank you for re-consulting us on the above application on 25 January 2022 following
the submission of amended plans.

Environment Agency position
In our response of 26 October 2021 we had no objection to the application but
requested conditions covering flood risk mitigation and land contamination.

Having reviewed the amendments, our position remains as before but the flood risk
mitigation condition will need to refer to the latest flood risk assessment, as follows:

Condition

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk
assessment (ref S2274-C-01-B, dated 22 September 2021, revised 24 January 2022,
by Building Design Morthern) and the following mitigation measures it details:

+ Finished floor levels to be set no lower than 5.7 metres above Ordnance Datum
(AOD)

= Flood resilience and resistance measuras to be incorporated into the proposed
development as stated

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the scheme's timing/phasing amrangements. The
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the
lifetime of the development.

Ceres House, Searby Road, Lincoln, LM2 40W Calls to 03 numbers cost no more than national rate calls to
Customer services line: 03708 506 506 01 or 02 numbers and count towsards any inclusive minules
Email LMplanningi@environment-agency_gov_uk in the same way. This apples to calls from any type of line
wnw .o ulklenyironment-agency including meobile.

Cont/d..

218



Reason
To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants.

Advice to the local planning authority

Impacts of raised development platform

We note the proposal includes a raised development platform. We are aware of
previous objections raised by the Upper Witham IDB to this proposal and, in respect of
their concerns relating to access to the adjacent Main Drain and possible impacts on
adjacent surface water, if the amended arrangement has not addressed the IDB's
concerns we would continue to support their position.

Land contamnination conditions
Please refer to our letter of 26 October 2021 for our requested conditions.

Advice to the applicant
Please see our letter of 26 October 2021 for advice on flood warning and evacuation,
environmental parmit reguirements and site investigation and remediation.

Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters further,
please do not hesitate to contact me on the number below.

Yours sincerely

Nicola Farr
Sustainable Places - Planning Specialist

Direct dial 02030 255023
Direct e-mail nicola farr@environment-agency.gov.uk

219



NHS

Lincolnshire

Clinical Commissioning Group

Application Number: 2021/0817/HYB
Location: Former William Sinclair Holdings Site, Firth Road, Lincoln comprising of:
Phase 1 - 67 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) and 8 flats equating to 310
bedspaces, Phase 2 - apartments and 9 HMOs totalling 276 bedspaces

Impact of new The above development is proposing in Phase 1 - 310 dwellings, and Phase 2- 276
development on | dwellings which, based on the average of 1 person per dwelling for single occupancy
GP practice in the City of Lincoln Council area, would result in an increase in patient population of
586.

The calculations below show the likely impact of this new population in terms of
number of additional consultation time required by clinicians. This is based on the
Department of Health calculation in HBN11-01: Facilities for Primary and Community
Care Services.

Phase 1:

Consulting room GP

Proposed population 310

Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts | 0.310 x 5260 = 1631
Assume 100% patient use of | 1631

room
Assume surgery open 50 1631/50 = 326

weeks per year

Appointment duration 15 mins

Patient appointment time per | 32.6 x 15/60 = 8.2 hrs per week
week

Treatment room Practice Nurse

Proposed population 310

Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts 0.310 x 5260 = 1631
Assume 20% patient use of 1631 x 20% = 326.1

room
Assume surgery open 50 326.1/50 = 6.522

weeks per year

Appointment duration 20 mins

Patient appointment time per | 6.522 x 20/60 = 2.2 hrs per week
week

1 Souree: Lincolnshire Reseanch Obsenvatory 2011 Census Data

220




Phase 2:

Consulting room GP

Proposed population 276

Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts | 0.276 x 5260 = 1452
Assume 100% patient use of | 1452

room

Assume surgery open 50 1452/50 = 29

weeks per year

Appointment duration 15 mins

Patient appointment time per | 29 x 15/60 = 7.3 hrs per week
week

Treatment room Practice Nurse

Proposed population 276

Access rate 5260 per 1000 patients
Anticipated annual contacts 0.276 x 5260 = 1452
Assume 20% patient use of 1452 x 20% = 290.4

room

Assume surgery open 50 290.4/50 = 5.807
weeks per year

Appointment duration 20 mins

Patient appointment time per | 5.807 x 20/60 = 1.9 hrs per week
week

Therefore, an increase in population of 586 in the City of Lincoln area will place extra
pressure on existing provisions, for example, extra appointments requires additional
consulting hours (as demeonstrated in the calculations above). This in turn impacts
on premises, with extra consulting/treatment room requirements.

GP practice(s)
most likely to be
affected by the
housing
development

Due to the fact that patients can choose to register at any practice that covers the
area of the development, and there are no waiting lists for patients, all practices that
provide care for the region that the development falls within are obliged to take on
patients, regardless of capacity.

Due to the location of the development the 3 practices that would be impacted are
Abbey Medical Practice, Portland Medical Centre (The University Health Centre is
now part of Portland Medical Centre) and Brayford Medical Practice.

Issues to be
addressed to
ensure the
development is
acceptable

Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) wishes for the Section 106
contribution from the development at the Former William Sinclair Holdings Site, Firth
Road, Lincoln comprising of: Phase 1 - 67 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) and
§ flats equating to 310 bedspaces, Phase 2 - apartments and 9 HMOs totalling 276
bedspaces to contribute to support the University patients within Marina PCN.

Collaborative work is currently underway on the estate’s strategy for the Lincoln
area, as part of the Primary Care Network.

221




This development would put additional demands on the existing GP services for the
area and additional infrastructure would be required to meet the increased demands.

Nationally the NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, seeks to improve
the quality of patient care and health outcomes. The plan builds on previous national
strategies, including the General Practice Forward View (2016), and includes
measures to:

+ |mprove out-of-hospital care, supporting primary medical and community
health services;

s Ensure all children get the best start in life by continuing to improve maternity
safety including halving the number of stillbirths, maternal and neonatal
deaths and serious brain injury by 2025;

s Support older people through more personalised care and stronger
community and primary care services;

+ Make digital health services a mainstream part of the NHS, so that patients in
England will be able to access a digital GP offer.

The strategic direction both nationally through the development of Primary Care
Networks (PCN) and locally through the Sustainability Transformation Plan, is to
provide primary care at scale, facilitating 100% patient population coverage by
primary care and services being delivered in the community in an integrated way.
Included within the PCNs is the requirement to provide on-line access to services
and appointments, as well as the introduction of additional roles to enhance the
delivery of primary care, including Clinical Pharmacists, Physiotherapists, Social
Prescribers, Emergency Care and Mental Health Practitioners.

The Lincoln GP Practices are within the Lincolnshire CCG IMP and Marina PCNs
{Primary Care Networks) where the housing is being developed. There is a huge
variation in the type, age and suitability of current premises within the PCN
Networks.

The PCNs are working to employ additional staff to increase capacity within primary
care and as more care is moved to the community from secondary care closer to
individuals' home.

Fairly and
reasonably
related in scale
and Kind to the
development.

Average | Required £ per m2 Total cost fper

list size | m2 person

per GP
GP team 1,800 170 2,300 £391,000 217
GP furnishings | 1,800 £20,000 12

229

Contingency requirements @ 20% 46
Total per resident 275
Total per dwelling (resident x 1.0) £275

The table above shows the contribution formula which is based on the needs of a
Primary Care Health Team and associated administration support. By applying
average national list sizes to these groups and identifying the required area and
furnishings, a total cost of £275 per patient is determined.

222




This figure is multiplied by 1 (the average number of persons per dwelling for City of
Lincoln Council) to provide a funding per dwelling of £275. Single occupancy (e.g.-
student accommodation)

Financial The contribution requested for the development of Phase 1 - £85,250 (275 x 310
Contribution dwellings)
requested
The contribution requested for the development of Phase 2 - £75,900 (275 x 276
dwellings)
Total from Phase 1 and Phase 2 amounts to £161,150.
Please note that the expectation is that the appropriate indexation rate and any late
payment penalties would also be paid on top of the value specified above.
Trigger point There is currently limited capacity at some practices to accommodate additional

growth in patient numbers arising from this development, therefore it is requested that
the trigger point for the release for funds for health care be set at payment of all monies
upon completion of 50 percent of the dwellings for each phase of the development.
This will ensure the practices are not placed under undue pressure.

To ensure that there is sufficient time carry out the works and allow the s106 funds to
be spent in the most appropriate way, a repayment period of 10 years from receipt of
the final payment transfer (for the entire development) to the relevant NHS body will
be required.

Kate Robinson

Locality Improvement and Delivery Manager
NHS Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group
3rd December 2021

223




Lincoln Civic Trust

Comment Date: Mon 21 Feb 2022

OBJECTION

We have read the revised documents and the Comments responses for which we commend
the developers for addressing. However, we still feel that some of our original objections
were not adequately answered and are hence still valid.

' Flooding ' We do not offer any expert knowledge on the subject but are pleased that the
developers have re-visited the subject and accept the findings of the experts.

' 3 Storey Properties ' The street scene along Coulson Road is of 2-storey houses and were it
not for the watercourse on the opposite side, the 3-storey properties would do unacceptable
damage to the street scene. The watercourse breaks that problem and although we still feel
that the buildings visible from the Coulson Road should be 2-storey, we do accept the idea
of the contrast created between the commercial buildings and the traditional houses to be
valid.

" Overdevelopment & Student need ' We do not accept the explanation to these arguments
as we still feel that the number of units to be built in phase 1 to be excessive and congested
and if we then add in the future application for phase 2 with the potential Student tower
blocks, it becomes even more excessive. As to the volume of student accommodation
provided, we consider that the number of those who choose to, or currently, occupy the
houses in the West End Quarter is dwarfed by number of student places already provided,
or yet to come on stream in 'purpose-built student blocks'. When all the authorised,
purpose-built accommodation is available, there will be more than enough student places
available, even if the West End Quarter is excluded. We fear the over provision of places for
students will be mirrored by the under provision of decent starter homes for young
professionals and families. Contrary to the comments made by the developers, purpose-built
student accommaodation is NOT easily adaptable to form other types of residences and the
mixing of students and non-students does not lead to residential harmony.

" Access ' We totally disagree with the dismissive response to vehicle access as when the
volume of traffic that the site will create be that student, visitor, delivery, maintenance and
service vehicles all have to enter and exit the site via Firth Road and then to the traffic lights
on to Tritton Road, the volume will be substantial. The luxury for the developers is that they
are only expected to view this application in isolation whereas we and the Lincoln public will
view it in conjunction with the expected additional growth in traffic created by the Science
and Innovation Park, the Student accommodation on St Marks, the through traffic created
by the Western Growth Corridor development, the further expansion of the University of
Lincoln and the lack of any multistorey car park in the area. All this added together is a
recipe for gridlock and needs to be addressed before its too late. The Lincolnshire County
Council Highways department needs to reconfigure this whole area to avoid a nightmare
scenario.

224



Upper Witham, Witham First District & Witham Third
District

Comment Date: Mon 21 Feb 2022

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board district. The Board maintained Boultham Pump Drain
(24200) is on the south of the site.

Following the submission of revised drawings and documents the Upper Witham IDB
Objection can be removed.

BDN Outline Levels Plan, drg no S2274-BDN-XX-XX-DR-C-0105 Rev P3.

DEN Architects - Sections adjacent Boultham Pump Drain, drg no 3233-DEN-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-
3002.

BDN Drainage Strategy Rev C, dated 18-02-22 & Flood Risk Assessment Rev C, dated 18-02-
22

Byelaw Consent from Upper Witham IDB will be required for the works adjacent to the
Boultham Pump Drain including the proposed outfall. Land drainage consent will be required
for the diversion of the culvert running north south through the site. The developer is aware
of this.

Regards

Guy Hird
Head of Technical & Engineering Services

Education Planning Manager, Lincolnshire County
Council

Comment Date: Mon 31 Jan 2022
The County Council has no comments on this consultation in relation to education as there
would not be any children generated by the scheme.

225



This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 5¢

Application Number: | 2022/0135/0UT

Site Address: Land at Derwent Street, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Target Date: 16th April 2022

Agent Name: Globe Consultants Ltd

Applicant Name: D Cullen & T Stepniewski

Proposal: Erection of 4no. dwellings (Outline with all matters reserved)

Background - Site Location and Description

Permission is sought for Outline permission for the principle of residential development for
a parcel of land on Derwent Street. The site is currently occupied by 18 single storey
lock-up garages with permission sought for up to 4 dwellings.

Derwent Street is situated off Carholme Road, a one way street, characterised by two
storey terrace properties.

The application is brought to Planning Committee following a request from Clir Nell
Murray.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 10t March 2022.

Policies Referred to

e National Planning Policy Framework
e Policy LP26 - Design and Amenity

Issues

Principle of the development
Visual amenity and design
Impact on neighbours
Technical matters

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2018.

227



Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee

Comment

Highways & Planning

Comments Received

Environment Agency

Comments Received

West End Residents
Association

No Response Received

Lincolnshire Police

Comments Received

Upper Witham Internal

Comments Received

Drainage Board

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

Mr Simeon Clark 23 Derwent Street

Consideration

Principle of the Development

This application is seeking outline planning permission, with all matters reserved for
subsequent consideration. As a result, the plans and drawings submitted in support of the
application are all for indicative purposes only, with detailed matters relating to access,
appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale to be established at the reserved matters
stage. The plans submitted with the application demonstrate how 4 no. terraced dwellings
could be accommodated on the site. This is not a final layout, and the application only
seeks the principle of developing the site for up to 4 dwellings.

Visual Amenity and Design

The design and layout of the proposed development would be the subject of a Reserved
Matters application should Outline consent be granted. However indicative drawings
submitted with the application show that a form of development, similar to adjacent
properties, could be accommodated on the site. Two storey dwellings would be
appropriate in this location and would accord with Local Plan Policy LP26.

Residential Amenity and Impact on Neighbours

Given the proposed development would be in an established residential area, the principle
of developing the site would be acceptable and in accordance with Local Plan Policy.
When looking at the Reserved Matters application in the future the applicants would need

228




to consider how the properties are positioned on the site, and designed externally, to
ensure that any impacts on existing neighbours are minimised.

At the time of writing this report one objection had been received from a neighbouring
property. The concerns relate to:

blocking sunlight from the living spaces

loss of light and air

demolition of the garages could damage the patio in the garden

demolition of the garages could damage the tree at the end of our property
loss of the wall/ garages to be knocked down and to be replaced with a fence
e overlooking

e parking

As previously stated, the application is only in outline with no design proposed for the
dwellings. At Reserved Matters stage the applicants and planning authority would be able
to work together to find a design which would limit impact on neighbours. The applicants
could also enter into discussions with neighbours to find a suitable boundary treatment.
Similarly, the methods and times of demolition and works on site would be controlled to
minimise impact.

Highways

The size of the plot shows that each of the proposed dwellings would have the benefit from
adequate dedicated off-street parking provision, to ensure that the proposed development
does not lead to any unacceptable impact upon highways safety. The impact of parking on
Derwent Street has been raised by the Local Member. Therefore, it would be reasonable
to include a condition that the Reserved Matters application would include 1 off street
parking space per dwelling as a minimum.

The Highways Authority have raised no objections to the proposed development.

Drainage

The site is within the Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board district. The site is in Zone
2/3 on the Environment Agency Flood Maps and potentially at flood risk. A Flood Risk
Assessment is included in the Application that the IDB considers contains appropriate
mitigation. The IDB have also recommended that no development should be commenced
until the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority has
approved a scheme for the provision, implementation and future maintenance of a surface
water drainage system. Where Surface Water is to be directed into a Mains Sewer System
the relevant bodies must be contacted to ensure the system has sufficient capacity to
accept any additional Surface Water.

Flood Risk

The site is located in flood zone 2 of the Environment Agency's flood Map for Planning and
is at risk of flooding from Fossdyke Canal and the River Trent in case of a breach. Depths
in the 1% annual exceedance probability events with allowance for climate change would
be relatively shallow (0.1-0.15m) and thus the proposed mitigation measures are
considered satisfactory. The proposed development would meet the requirements of the
National Planning Policy Framework if the mitigation measures as set out in the Flood Risk

229



Assessment are implemented on site. This could be controlled by condition.

Conclusion

The principle of developing this site for residential development would be acceptable. The
detailed design and technical matters would be considered at Reserved Matters stage,
however sufficient information has been submitted at Outline to demonstrate that the site
is capable of being developed.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally.
Conditions

e The development hereby permitted shall be begun either within three years of the
date of this permission

e The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
drawings

e Off street parking provision

e Flood Risk Assessment

e Surface water drainage

230



Site Location Plan

Thed Lo gl - B g iy B il e, £ b il e L] il
o s, AL b e i e b b oo il by (e Comakin b P b el o aesd

o

i %&‘ o IIIIIII

- ™
{ r—d
/ / .

o k3
J‘r\- T - Ill"--\._r - =
DB L ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN ! .’“-=___,u'l T Fri, JE'}
Architccasral Designers & Plowng Consulunts I.-T - r ] "” T e e
e it e fomd, ek o L / II| Ill. -l_,u,,_r 5:‘:.’".
TR — |||:m.a |—| | - -—_|'I:__ |'I ||II I|I "':'

T
Fasgarzd lvilaprean:
A Dhallegn

Snl I'il.r|l|:. Lawyost Mass and

Lard Adazam I Derwan
Seean, Lncoin

FabhND

1:100, 250 & 1730
Al

£

231

Location Plan 1:1230



Existing site layout

]
i
1i
H |
il
i
i
|
i
i
|

232



Indicative Layout in principle only

Il 2 of Lendscaping

233



Photos

\ N

.

234



235



This page is intentionally blank.



Consultee Comments

Directorate of Communities & Environment
Simon Walters MBA, ACG, MCMI
City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, LM1 1DF
21* February 2022

Your Ref: 2022/0135/0UT

Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Consultation on COutline Planning Permission

Land At Derwent Street, Lincoln, Lincolnshire,

Erection of 4no. dwellings (OQutline with all matters reserved)
The date by which representations are to be received by the Local Planning

Lincolnshire Police do not have any objections to this application
External Doors & Windows

Building Regulations (October 1%, 2015) provides that for the first time all new
homes will be included within Approved Document Q: Security — Dwellings (ADC).

Approved document G applies to all new dwellings including those resulting from
change of use, such as commercial premises, warehouse and bams undergoing
conversions into dwellings. It also applies within Conservation Areas.

This will include doors at the entrance to dwellings, including all doors to flats or
apartments, communal doors to mulii-occupancy developments and garage doors
where there is a direct access to the premises. Whers hespoke timber doors are
proposed, there is a technical specification in Appendix B of the document that must
be met.

Windows: in respect of ground floor, basement and other easily accessible locations.

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24 2016 or
2012 {(doors of an enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference number for
PAS 23/24 and is published by Warrington Certification Laboratories). All external
doors should have appropriate bulk-head style lighting. Where patio/bi-folding doors
are to be installed and are not the main point of entry they should still meet the same
physical standard as ‘frontexternal doors’ of PAS24:2016.

POLCE HEADOUARTERS

PO Box 999, Lincoln LNS 7PH % 01522 55 8292 A
{5at Nav: LN2 2UT) B 075700 99424 [@ 10' T TEss
www_lincs.police.uk 2 john.manuel @Eincs pnn.police.uk THih e,

237



All ground floor windows and those that are easily accessible from the ground must
conform to improved security standard PAS24:2016 or 201

Gates — Access to Rear of Properties

Any gates to be erected should have anti-lift hinges and will nead to be erected as
close to the front elevation of the properties as possible. A sliding bolt and padlock
should be fitted to all such gates. Access to the rear of all properties should be
secured by way of gates and fencing as described above.

The gates must be placed at the entrance to the footpath as near to the front
building line as possible, so that attempts to climb them will be in full view of the

street. Where possible the street lighting scheme should be designed to ensure that
the gates are well illuminated.

The gates must have a key operated lock, operable from both sides. The gates must
not be easy to climb or remove from their hinges

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or
clarification.

Please refer to Homes 2019 which can be located on www _securedbydesign.com
Homes 2019,

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a
contract. Meither the Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal
responsibility for the advice given. However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce
the opportunity for crimes to be committed.

Yours sincerely,
John Manuel MA BA (Hons) PGCE PGCPR Dip Bus.

Force Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO]

238



Dear Sir/Madam,

REFERENCE: 2022/0135/0UT
DEVELOPMENT: ERECTION OF 4NO. DWELLINGS (OUTLINE WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED)
LOCATION: LAND AT DERWENT STREET, LINCOLN, LINCOLNSHIRE

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the Upper Witham Internal
Drainage Board district.

The site is in Zone 2/3 on the Environment Agency Flood Maps and potentially at flood risk. It is noted a Flood Risk
Assessment is included in the Application that contains appropriate mitigation.

Mo development should be commenced until the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the Lead Local Flood
Authority has approved a scheme for the provision, implementation and future maintenance of a surface water
drainage system. Where Surface Water is to be directed into a Mains Sewer System the relevant bodies must be
contacted to ensure the system has sufficient capacity to accept any additional Surface Water.

Regards,

Richard Wright
Operations Engineer

Witham First District Internal Drainage Board
Witham Third District Internal Drainage Board
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board

North East Lindsey Drainage Board

Four independent statutory Land Drainage and Flood Risk Management Authorities working in partnership.

www.witham3idb.gov.uk

239



Warren Peppard

Head of Development Management
Lincolnshire County Council

County Offices

Newland

Lincoln LN1 1YL

Tel: 01522 782070
developmientmanagement@iincoinshire. gov uk

Te:  Linceln City Council Application Ref: 2022f0135/0UT
Proposal: Erection of dno. dwellings (Outline with all matters reserved)
Location: Land at Derwent Street, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

With reference to the above application received 18 February 2022
MNotice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Requests that any permission given by the Local Planning Authority shall
include the conditions below.

COMNDITIONS [INCLUDING REASONS) /REASOMNS FOR REFUSAL

Highway Condition 12

Within seven days of the new access being brought into use, the existing access onto Derwent
Street shall be permanently closed in accordance with details to be agreed in writing with the Loca
Planning Authority.

To reduce to a minimum, the number of individual access points to the development, in the
interests of road safety.

Highway Informative 03

The permitted development requires the formation of 2 new/amended vehicular access. These
wiorks will require approval from the Highway Autharity in accordance with Section 184 of the

Highways Act. The works should be constructed in accordance with the Authority’s specification
that is current at the time of construction. Relocation of existing apparatus, underground services

or street furniture will be the responsibility of the applicant, prior to application. For application

240



guidance, approval and specification details, please visit
https://www lincolnshire. gov.uk/licences-permits/a pply-dropped-kerb or contact
vehiclecrossings@lincolnshire gov.uk

Highwiay Informative 08

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council 3treetworks and Permitting Team on 01522 782070
to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will be required
within the public highway in association with the development permitted under this Consent. This
will emable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and timings of these works.
For further guidance please visit our website via the following links:

Traffic Management - https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/traffic-management
Licences and Permits - https://www.lincolnshire_gov.uk/licences-permits

As Lead Local Flood Authority, Lincolnshire County Council is required to provide a statutory
planning consultation response with regard to surface water risk on all Major applications. This
application is classified as a Minor Application and it is therefore the duty of the Local Planning
Authority to consider the surface water risk for this planning application.

As Lead Local Flood Authority, Lincolnshire County Council is required to provide a statutory
planning consultation response with regard te drainage on all Majer Appliations. This application
is classified as a Minor Application and it is therefore the duty of the Local Planning Authority to
consider the drainage proposals for this planning application.

0/L Informative

Dutline with all matters reserved

The principle of development is acceptable. As this is an outline application with all matters
reserved, access and layout have not been considered. Please make the applicant aware of the
requirements for access, parking, visibility, turning and layout; as detailed within the Lincolnshire
County Council Design Approach and Development Road Specification.

NO DBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the Maticnal Flanning Policy Framewerk], Lincolnshire County Council (as Highway
Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed development is
acceptable and accerdingly, does not wish to object to this planning application.

Case Officer: Date: 04/03,/2022
Jodun Clifton

for Warren Peppard

241



Environment
LW Agency

City of Lincoln Council Oiur ref: AMIOF2M 3282 301-L01
Development Controd Your ref: 202201350UT

City Hall Beaumont Fee

Lincoln Diate: 08 March 2022

LK1 1DF

Dear Sir'Madam

Erection of dno. dwellings (outline with all matters resenved)
Land at Derwent Strest, Lincoln

Thank you for consulting us on the above application, on 18 February 2022.

Enwvironment Agency position

The site is located in flood zone 2 of the Environment Agency's flood Map for Planning
and s at risk of flooding from Fossdyke Canal and the River Trent in case of a breach.
Depths in the 1% annual exceedance probabdity events with allowance for dimate
change would be relatively shallow (0.1-0.15m) and thus the proposed mitigation
measures are considered satisfactony.

The proposed development will only meet the requirements of the National Planning
Paolicy Framework if the following measure(s) as detalded in the Flood Risk Assessment
submitted with this application are mplkemented and secured by way of a planning
condition on any planning permission.

Condition

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be camied out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) Ref: RLC/D833FRAD,

December 2021 camed out by Roy Lobley Consulting. and the following mitigation
measures detailed within the FRA:

= Finished floor levels to be sat no lower than 5.8m abowve Ondnance Datum (AOD)
= The dwellings to have at least two storeys

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to cecupation and
subsequently remain in place.

Reason
To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants.

(Cmrees Hieee, Samayrty Rioad, Linendn, LS 400 Caalls i 13 muiriers cost Mo mone than rational e cols o
Csinmer services Ine 02708 506 505 01 or 02 numbers. and oot s any incieshe minuies
Errail: Lipiarningiersironment-apency. pov.uk In e same wey. This appies o mills from any ipe of ine
TR DA LK i Inchading rmoble.

Contf'd

242



Advice to the local planning authority

We hawe not objected to this application on flood risk grounds, but this does not remove
the need for you to apply the sequential test and to consider whether it has been
satisfied. Where a flood risk assessment shows the development can be made safe
throwghaout its lifetime without increasing risk elsewhers, there will always be some
remaining risk that the development will b2 affected sither directly or indirecty by
flogding. A failure to satisfy the seguential test can be grounds alone to refuse planning
pEMMMisSion.

Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters further,
please do not hesitate to contact me on the number below.

Yours faithfully
Nizola Farr
Sustainable Places - Planning Specialist

Direct dial 02030 255023
Direct e-mail nicola fam@environment-agency gov.uk

243



Public Comments

Comments for Planning Application 2022/0135/0UT

Application Summary

Application Number: 2022/0135/00UT

Address: Land At Derwent Street Lincoln Lincolnshire

Proposal: Erection of 4no. dwellings (Outline with all matters reserved)
Case Officer: Lana Meddings

Customer Details
Mame: Mot Available
Address: 23 Derwent Sireet, Lincoln, Lincolnshire LMW1 150

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Proposed developments will be close to our property and will be blocking sunlight from
the living spaces; dining room, living room and bedroom and we are concerned about the loss of
light and air.

Demolition of the garages could damage the patio in the garden that we've recently had put it in.
Demaolition of the garages could damage the tree at the end of our property.

We are not happy for the walll garages to be knocked down and to be replaced with a fence. We
like the secunty and privacy that the height of the wall gives as well as the appearance/ aesthetics.

As far as we are aware, we have responsibility for the boundary but we are happy to discuss ideas
for replacement of the garages.

We purchased this property as it was private and not overlooked, we are concermed about four
new dwellings being able to see directly into our garden, especially as we have a young family.

There will not be a lot of space to tum cars around at the end of street.
Parking is already difficult for residence on the street due to the mulli occupancy dwellings that

have multiple cars. Will the dwelling have access to permits?

We object to the current plans proposed but we will be open to further discussion on the above
points and would reqguire reassurance on the impact of our property.

244



Iltem No. 5d

Application Number: | 2022/0057/HOU

Site Address: 5 Christs Hospital Terrace, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Target Date: 24th March 2022

Agent Name: Weedon Architects

Applicant Name: Mr Simon Green

Proposal: Erection of a two storey extension (including basement) to
south elevation.

Background - Site Location and Description

This application for planning permission relates to the three storey house at the
intersection of Steep Hill, Christ's Hospital Terrace, Michaelgate and Wordsworth Street,
opposite the Harlequin. The house has its gable facing Steep Hill and to its immediate
south is a yard at basement level within which is a single storey outbuilding. The
application property is listed grade Il and we have an associated application for listed
building consent.

The application proposal is to extend the property into the yard, taking down the single
storey outbuilding and erecting a ground floor structure to form a bedroom and above it, at
first floor and part glazed building serving the main house as additional living space. There
is a wall and railings to the Steep Hill side of the yard, at the back of the existing footway
and it is proposed that this wall would remain, and the new structures be constructed
behind it.

The visible parts of the extension would be fully glazed to the Steep Hill frontage and the
face would be set back from the front of the existing house by approximately 650mm at the
northern end of the extension. The ground floor of the extension would all be within the
existing basement yard and be enclosed by the existing surrounding walls and so would
not be visible from outside the site. The first floor southern wall of the extension is
proposed to be brickwork, matching that of the existing house and then the eastern
elevation, enclosed from view by an existing boundary wall would also be wholly glazed.
The roof of the extension will be a metal standing seam the details of which will be
reported further at your meeting.

The application is before Committee as it has been called in by Councillor Longbottom.
Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 25" February 2022.

Policies Referred to

The following policies are relevant to the consideration of this application:

e National Planning Policy Framework - 16. Conserving and Enhancing the Historic
Environment

e Central Lincolnshire Local Plan - Policy LP25: The Historic Environment; Policy

245



LP26: Design and Amenity Standards; Policy 29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and
Character.

Issues
The application raises the following issues for consideration:
e The relationship of the proposal to planning policy

e The impact of the proposal on the significance of the listed building and on the
character and appearance of the conservation area

e The impact on the amenity of adjacent residents.

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2018.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment
Lincoln Civic Trust Comments Received
Highways & Planning Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address
Sam Clarke 11 Gray Street
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN1 3HH

Consideration

The application site is within the heart of the historic City, adjacent to many listed
buildings, within the Conservation Area and the application property is itself listed. A
proposal to alter or extend a building in a location such as this needs to be treated with a
high level of sensitivity and needs to be carefully explained and justified.

The applicant has submitted a Design and Access Statement and a Heritage Statement to
explain the proposals in detail in addition to the drawings that have also been submitted.

In planning policy terms an extension to a dwelling in a location such as this is acceptable
in principle and the detailed consideration relates to the potential impact that the extension
would have on the significance of the listed building to which it is attached and also to the
potential impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area.

246




The Design and Access Statement produced by the applicant has within it the design
options that have been explored in respect of the extension, it's roof type and the type of
materials that might be used to clad it. The applicant has also undertaken pre-application
discussion with your officers and your principal conservation officer.

The basement level for the extension into the existing yard involves the demolition of the
outbuilding that sits at street level within the yard. There is a chimney of the outbuilding
visible from Steep Hill which would also be demolished. The existing boundary wall and
railing would remain, and the basement level of the extension would consequently not be
visible from Steep Hill behind this wall. There is an existing door opening within this wall
and the door would be renewed.

The first floor/ground level element of the extension is that which will be visible from Steep
Hill and the face of this part of the extension is set back from the front face of the existing
house in a manner intended to reduce its visual impact. The glazed elevation would be
framed in a dark metal and the applicant has also discussed with your officers the type of
window dressing that would be used. This is not usually a matter that can be controlled but
in this case the applicant understands the potential sensitivity and has engaged in positive
discussions. The flank, south, wall of the extension would be brick to match the existing
building. This would need to be carefully specified and we would require the applicant to
construct a sample panel before any work commenced to demonstrate that the choice of
brickwork and mortar and indeed the brickwork coursing was appropriate.

The options for the roof of the extension have been explored and the conclusion that was
reached was that a flat metal roof, in either lead or zinc with a standing seam, would be
the most appropriate. This option reduces any visual impact and reduces the impact on
any views through the site to the buildings beyond. It is also a traditional material used in
many places throughout the historic uphill City. The lower height of a roof such as this also
means that it can connect to the existing house in a manner that does not affect any of the
architectural details of the house, particularly the prominent horizontal white plat band that
runs along the existing southern elevation.

The extension, carefully conditioned in respect of the materials to be used, will not be a
harmful addition to this part of the City, it sits back from the main elevation of the house
and would be a contemporary but a subtle addition to the buildings in the area. It would not
harm the setting of the existing house or that of listed buildings within the area.

Conclusion
The applicant has explored several options with their architect and with your officers to
arrive at a form of development that is considered to be acceptable in this sensitive

location. It is a contemporary but also a restrained addition to the area.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is granted with the conditions outlined below.

247



Conditions

Development to commence within three years

Development in strict accordance with the approved drawings

3. No work to take place until a sample panel of all materials to be used has been
prepared on site and has been approved.

4. Details of window dressing including colour to be submitted before those works are

undertaken.

A

248



Drawings, Photographs and Representations — 5 Christ’s Hospital Terrace

2022/0057/HOU and 2022/0058/LBC

Comments for Planning Application 2022/0057/HOU

Application Summary

Application Number: 2022/0057/HOU

Address: 5 Christs Hospital Terrace Lincoln Lincolnshire LN2 1LY

Proposal: Erection of a two storey extension (including basement) to south elevation.
Case Officer: Simon Cousins

Customer Details
Name: Sam Clarke
Address: 11 Gray Street Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:The development does not appear in character with the surroundings based on the
images available. | would support this development if it was aesthetically in line with it's
surroundings.

249



Consultee Comments for Planning Application
2022/0057/HOU

Application Summary

Application Number: 2022/0057/HOU

Address: 5 Christs Hospital Terrace Lincoln Lincolnshire LN2 1LY

Proposal: Erection of a two storey extension (including basement) to south elevation.
Case Officer: Simon Cousins

Consultee Details

Name: Ms Catherine Waby

Address: St Mary's Guildhall, 385 High Street, Lincoln LN5 75F
Email: Not Available

On Behalf Of: Lincoln Civic Trust

Comments

OBJECTION

We have no objection with infill of the area between the buildings but feel very strongly that the
use of large glass windows so close to the road, changes the street scene and is out of keeping
with the very traditional buildings in this very sensitive conservation area. \Were the wall facing the
street to be of brick construction with a window similar to the windows on the exiting building, we
would have no objection. It is suggested that it be redesigned and re-submitted.

250



Lncoin Scheol of

At and Desgn

4
—

\“ I . 2 l
Fig F. Existing 4
Site Plan I
CHRIST'S
N
\
St Michael's
Lodge

251



252



253



. g

254



255



256



257



8G¢

Fig |. Option 3

Fig J. Option 4

Fig K. Option 5 Fig L. Option 6

5.2. Summary

The detailed description of the design process demonstrates that
careful considerations of the culturally rich context has always been the
driving force of the design, and that the pre-application advice has been
fully considered and incorporated into the revised proposals to have
minimum impact on the Listed Building and Conservation area.

In summary these are:
e Existing boundary walls, railing and Cottage building are retained

e Existing views across site towards Church of St Michael on the
Mount and adjacent buildings from Michaelgate is retained.



6S¢

"""""""""""""""" R . L EGuntgrt w iy dremng s smaied b4 188 ATKAIRET ARE 4 MERISR0 BE seped o)
o TS e

@ H . A
: e e e
s :
a0 ls' RCALE DOF ToIN DRAWING

A e b e e PSR
: | Fell sileienistng Dulcing survey raguited for ver fication of design

»IMDDURY ase

L

|

|
i"
-

=

= T .ﬂ!“?'}fﬁ — ,

Existing Wesl Elevation Existing South Elevabion

R 170122 tawsud for Plannieg
Nay Drawn Date Commans

WEEDON

iarchitects ...

Project

HILTON COTTAGE

$ CHRIST'S HOSPITAL TERMACE - LINGCOLN
Drwwing Title

EXISTING ELEVATIONS
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

Date JAN 2022 Drawe AL Cheched MAW
Scake 1:1002A3 stawxs P LANNING
Job Draaing Numbur Ruelsion

...... 15721 A1005 -

Existing East Elevation



09¢

Proposed West Elevatian

e =
p—
?—.MD ]
MK - —
=mr—r

Proposed South Elevation

Capprgti 2 i
rapradnnd e,
q e

e g
S awp VRINIEN CAlmen S0 e rEY
0O ALY XTAcE SPr THIN EHawN

Fur .n-m:m Deidding survey requimd far -Iuln}ta} cesgn

I* I8 DIURT AR

- AL AT.0127 lasued for Planming
Rux Orwan Date Commant

QAWEEDON s

T
v

architacts ...Lhuess

Project

HILTON COTTAGE

5 CHMIST 'S HOSAITAL TERRACE - LINCOLN
Qrawing Tile

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

Catn JAN 2022 Drawn AL Checkes MIW
Seale 1:10082A3 susmx PLANNING
Job Drawing Numbur Ravison

15721 A1006 -



[tem No. 5e

Application Number: | 2022/0058/LBC

Site Address: 5 Christs Hospital Terrace, Lincoln, Lincolnshire (LBC)

Target Date: 24th March 2022

Agent Name: Weedon Architects

Applicant Name: Mr Simon Green

Proposal: Removal of brick built shed to facilitate erection of a two storey

extension (including basement) to south elevation. Associated
alterations including blocking up of window and creation of new
window opening to south elevation at basement level, creation
of new opening and door opening on south elevation at ground
floor, installation of new partition to create bathroom at first
floor, removal of wall and installation of new partitions to alter
layout at second floor. (Listed Building Consent).

Background - Site Location and Description

This application for planning permission relates to the three storey house at the
intersection of Steep Hill, Christ's Hospital Terrace, Michaelgate and Wordsworth Street,
opposite the Harlequin. The house has its gable facing Steep Hill and to its immediate
south is a yard at basement level within which is a single storey outbuilding. The
application property is listed grade Il and we have an associated application for listed
building consent.

The application proposal is to extend the property into the yard, taking down the single
storey outbuilding and erecting a ground floor structure to form a bedroom and above it, at
first floor and part glazed building serving the main house as additional living space. There
is a wall and railings to the Steep Hill side of the yard, at the back of the existing footway
and it is proposed that this wall would remain, and the new structures be constructed
behind it.

The visible parts of the extension would be fully glazed to the Steep Hill frontage and the
face would be set back from the front of the existing house by approximately 650mm at the
northern end of the extension. The ground floor of the extension would all be within the
existing basement yard and be enclosed by the existing surrounding walls and so would
not be visible from outside the site. The first floor southern wall of the extension is
proposed to be brickwork, matching that of the existing house and then the eastern
elevation, enclosed from view by an existing boundary wall would also be wholly glazed.
The roof of the extension will be a metal standing seam the details of which will be
reported further at your meeting.

This application for listed building consent deals specifically with the impact of the

proposals on the significance of the listed building. In addition, there are also some minor
internal works proposed to the existing house.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 25" February 2022.

261



Policies Referred to

The following policies are relevant to the consideration of this application:

e National Planning Policy Framework - 16. Conserving and Enhancing the Historic
Environment

e Central Lincolnshire Local Plan - Policy LP25: The Historic Environment; Policy
LP26; Policy 29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character.

Issues

The issue to be considered is that of the impact of the proposal upon the significance of
the listed building.

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2018.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Highways & Planning Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

No responses received.

— responses received on associated application, 2022/0057/HOU, for planning permission
are relevant and are copied in full on that report.

Consideration

The application proposal involve attaching a new structure to the southern elevation of the
existing house and forming openings at basement and ground floor level between the two.
The application also proposes the additional of some internal partitioning to create an
additional bathroom at first floor level and some internal reconfiguration at the second
floor.

The formation of the new openings at basement and ground floor will, by definition, involve
the loss of some original fabric, as will the removal of the single storey outbuilding.
However, the extensions that are proposed are sensitively designed and will not harm the
setting or significance of the existing building, as explained in the associated report for
planning permission. The loss of the historic fabric would therefore be considered to be
less than substantial harm and the extensions facilitate significant improvements to the
existing building which is considered to outweigh that less than substantial harm.

262




Conclusion

The detailed proposals for the extension have been carefully considered and will not cause
harm to the significance of the existing listed building. The formation of new openings to
join the extension to the existing house are, when weighed in the balance, considered to
be acceptable.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted.

263



This page is intentionally blank.



ltem No. 5f

Application Number: | 2022/0039/RG3

Site Address: Hartsholme Country Park Dam Wall , Hartsholme Park, Lincoln

Target Date: 29th March 2022

Agent Name: None

Applicant Name: Aaron Wilson

Proposal: Raising of the concrete bridge and restoration of current brick
culverts, installation of a trash screen and graded walkway ramp
following removal of current concrete deck and supports.

Background - Site Location and Description

The application site is the Hartsholme Country Park a Grade Il Listed Historic Park and
Garden.

The proposal relates specifically to the existing dam wall and culverts located to the north of
the lake, adjacent to Skellingthorpe Road.

The application proposes works to the existing outfall culverts, concrete slab and

surrounding walls to facilitate an increased capacity and improve the safety for the existing
reservoir.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 24th February 2022.

Policies Referred to

e National Planning Policy Framework
e Policy LP22 Green Wedges
e Policy LP25 The Historic Environment
e Policy LP29 Protecting Lincoln’s Setting and Character
Issues
To assess the proposal with regard to:
1. Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy
2. Impact on visual amenity and the character or setting of the designated heritage asset
as a Historic Park and Garden
3. Works to Trees

4. Ecological Impacts

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2018.

265



Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Highways & Planning Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

No responses received.

Consideration

Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy

National Planning Policy

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development

on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the
asset's

conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less
than

substantial harm to its significance.

Paragraph 200 further states that Local planning authorities should look for opportunities for
new

development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the setting of
heritage assets, to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those
elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal
its

significance) should be treated favourably.

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan

Hartsholme Country Park is located within the larger Green Wedge and therefore Policy LP
22 would be relevant in safeguarding the existing provision of an accessible recreational
resource and conserving and enhancing local wildlife and protection of links between wildlife
sites to support wildlife corridors.

The policy states that planning permission will not be granted for any form of development,
including changes of use, unless it can be demonstrated that the development is not contrary
or detrimental to the above functions and aims.

Policy LP25 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan states that development would be

supported where it would protect the significance of the designated heritage asset by
protecting its character and appearance.

266



Policy LP 29 states that_proposals for development should seek to make a positive
contribution to the built and natural environment and quality of life in the Lincoln area. The
following key principles are relevant to this application:

- Proposals within, adjoining or affecting the setting of the 11 Conservation Areas and
3 historic parks and gardens within the built up area of Lincoln, should preserve and
enhance their special character, setting, appearance and respecting their special
historic and architectural context

- Protect, conserve and, where appropriate, enhance heritage assets, key landmarks
and their settings and their contribution to local distinctiveness and sense of place,
including through sensitive development and environmental improvements;

- Seek to improve the public realm as part of development proposals to enhance
Lincoln’s attractiveness;

The proposals shall therefore be considered on the above principles.

Impact on Visual Amenity and the Character or Setting of the Designated Heritage Asset

The development proposes the following works:

- Replacement and raising of existing concrete slab over culvert by lifting existing brick
piers.

- Installation of graded walkway access ramp, handrails and raked screens

- Removal of existing surrounding brick columns and stonework to facilitate build-up of
brick base by 420mm. Columns and stonework then replaced as existing.

- Regrading of existing embankment and walkway where necessary to facilitate raising
of ground level.

The works are required to increase the capacity of the culvert from the reservoir by lifting
the ground level over the existing culvert that runs under Skellingthorpe Road and towards
the canalised channel within the woodland habitat to the north.

As a result of raising the ground level the existing stone columns and wall would be removed
and retained to be reinstalled above a new raised footprint of engineering bricks. The
existing railings and gate would be retained, providing access to the new graded walkway
for any required maintenance above the entrance to the culvert.

Whilst the works would include the addition of a new walkway structure, handrail system
and trash screens, they are considered to be essential to maintaining the safety of the lake.
The structures would be located within the existing void with the majority of the metalwork
located at ground level and above with the stonework and columns providing some
screening of the views from the existing pathway.

The impact upon existing planting and greenery would be limited to some clearance of
vegetation along the embankment with alterations to existing path to facilitate the raising of
the ground level.

The proposals seek to retain the existing historic stonework walls and columns ensuring that

the character and appearance of this section of the walkway would be preserved and
protected.

267



Works to Trees

Due to the nature of the works and limited access to the application site there is a
requirement for a compound to be located to the north of the playground within the grounds
of the park. All trees on site are protected by a blanket TPO and the proposed compound is
surrounded by 8 trees that would potentially require adequate root protection as per
guidelines set out in BS5387:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction
to Construction.

It has been suggested within the submitted report that some crown lifting may also be
required to facilitate the instalment of the compound, however, these works are considered
to be minor and would not result in any significant impact to amenity.

Further works are required to create adequate clearance for vehicular access to the culvert
from the proposed compound. These works include crown lifting of various trees and the
removal of others as it has been suggested that the clearance would result in high
percentage canopy loss meaning tree retention is impractical.

It is recommended that details of the tree protection measures are conditioned to be
submitted prior to the commencement of the works on site.

Ecological Impacts

A preliminary appraisal was carried out by JBA Consulting to assess the potential impact
upon ecology as a result of the proposed works. The report’s findings suggest that the
proposed works will take place in an area of the Country Park which is of low value to wildlife
and will not result in any detrimental impact on important habitat or notable species within
the area.

The appraisal raises no direct concerns; however, it does conclude that it is not able to rule
out the presence of bats within the culverts or brick voids that may exist within the existing
structure. It is therefore recommended that an informative is included within any permission
to notify of the applicants of their duty under the protection acts.

As indicated within the report, the protection of several species is covered under UK and
international legislation, including the under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended), the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and
other specific legislation.

Conclusion

The proposed works are essential to maintaining the safety of the lake, whilst preserving
and protecting the character and setting of the Historic Park and Garden in accordance with
policies LP22, LP25 and LP 29 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

268



Recommendation

That the application is granted conditionally.

Recommended Conditions

01)

02)

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning
with the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this consent,
the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the approved
plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved
plans.

Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works

03)

Prior to works commencing on site details of measures to protect the trees on site
during construction shall be submitted to and approved by the City Council as Local
Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented on site prior to works
commencing on site and shall be retained until work has completed.

Reason: In order to protect the trees on the site from the development.

Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented

None

Conditions to be adhered to at all times

None

Table A
The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings
identified below:

Drawing No. Versio | Drawing Type Date Received

GSN-JBAU-00-00-DR-C- : Elevations - Proposed 19th January 2022

GSN-JéOAOUl-OO-OO-DR-C- Elevations - Proposed 19th January 2022

GSN-JéOAOLiOO-OO-DR-C- Plans - Proposed 19th January 2022

GSN-JéOAOUZ-OO-OO-DR-C- Plans - Proposed 19th January 2022
1004

269




Informatives

All bat species found in the U.K. are protected under the Conservation of Species and
Habitats Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended).

It is a criminal offence to kill, injure, capture or disturb a bat and to damage, destroy or
obstruct access to a bat roost.

During all building renovation, demolition and extension works there is a very small risk of
encountering bats which can occasionally be found roosting in unexpected locations.
Contractors should be aware of the small residual risk of encountering bats and should be
vigilant when working in roof spaces and removing roof tiles etc. If a bat should be
discovered on site, then development works must halt, and a licensed ecologist and Natural
England (0845 601 4523) contacted for advice on how to proceed. The Local Planning
Authority should also be informed.

270



Photographs

271



272



Wit

(i

273



Site Location

Existing Drawings




FON OF STEEL BEAMS
00m BACK FROM FACE

[1.00 —

[0.00

9.00

8.00 —

7.00

ﬁgs\ 750—

7.58,

?59(5 "7 60

6.92' \~

6.99 \/“\

‘e

8

METAL RAILS —

CARVED STONE
WALL

~
o?

Ao

s,
EXISTING STONE

COLUMNS
—11.00

105 116 | 1.00
| | 10.00
I

9.00
—8.00
7.00

/J r_."Ir Illul
S/ - = T A
! T A P B | ~,
(35
BRI R R R B R IR
DO SN M MMM M S| S| WD D) D D e e | = 00000000 00—
M O PO P v P~ D00 W0 = O O P~ T O =| | D
R R = S S S IR IR

275



HIGHWAY

EMBAMKMENT

- FLOW

— CONCRETE DECK. WITH 2nao.

STEEL BEAMS SET AT 1.0m 11.00
& 2.0m BACK FROM FACE
METAL RAILINGS/GATE — 10.00
o ?ﬂ\ — 0.00
T gh
g WL 7.78 (22-08-21) =00
7 ﬁl 7.00

276



Proposed Drawings

. X
/ N

07 3\\
AN

g’
b2

COLUMNS 10 BE
CYORK COUMSE.
L BY 370mm AND
ZED ASEXISTING

ST SCREEN WITH — b \ p 3 - h f =" ; ZZE4 7 Sovp
Nmin NFFR RARE 4 S Fr T Y E Rt e T T o - B o
A00mm CONTRES ? B

INTERMAL BRICKWORK PIERS — — PROPOSED 250mm THICK CONCRETE
TO BE RAISED IN ENGIMEERING C32/40 SLAB WITH B12 BARS IN TOP
BRICK TGO 5UIT AND BOTTOM FACE AT 250 CTRS TO
REPLACE EXISTING
4.04
563
& 1.45 116 1.43
913
v - B2 o R
8.16 A 813
5 thr 2 277777
= ci0 1
T.56
W
CULVERT X554
INCREASED
BY 1.18m*

277



1
_|'
1 EiD | 05 | 505 | 850
_ L 1 “ L | “ ] | L _ L
_ Ee= Detall 2 _ _ _ 320
o| /3eeDasm 1 |/ \ 1 i w it
Eao
M __m M [=}
— & Ea ]
| = | | HE:
| | L i
| o
w
2085 5120
s |- EXIETING BRICKWORK BAZE
L TO BE RAIEED IN ENGINEERING
Section A-A I 2 5535 570 EBRUSKTOSUIT
Scake 120 15237 LS 2.230
I - I
Handrailing Upper Platform
Bcalke 120
_h.
“l E10 l_l 205 l_l 505 I_l 508 L_l B10 L_ 9.530
w
_ _ _ _ oo
ELEg
l| == _ _ | | A
(L
T i i i i i ZZafp
heme
0 E
H | | ' i s1a0 m__m
| Padlozk I
4 _ i _ _ _ EXIETING BRICKWIRK BAZE
_ ' _ _ _ _ T BE RAIEED IN ENGINEERING
EE55 £700 ERICKTOEUT
hr) =
152237 UC ' !

Section A-A

Scake 120

Handrailing Lower Platform

Scalke 120

£.£30
. ~ I

278



PROPOSED 250mm THICK CONCRETE C32/40 —

~ EXISTING RAILINGS

DLALE 10U

~ CARVED STOME WALL AND GOLUMNS TO BE

SLAB WITH B12 BARS IN TOF AND BOTTOM AND GATE TO BE TAKEN DOWN TO THE BRICKWORK COURSE.
FACE AT 250 CTRS TO REPLACE EXISTING REUSED AND BOLTED BRICKWORK TO BE RAISED BY 430mm AND
TO CONCRETE SLAB STOME WORK REPLACED AS EXISTING
EMBANKMENT
EMBANKMENT
REGARDED PROPOSED
TOSUIT CONGRETE SLAB Cm
121, 425 1.45 1.35 @ % ® :
(=1 [+=] c3
10.00
¢ 7'y
A
q.__. _ M \\.1_// .n_uﬂ_ \
Y o5
w$w [2k] C2
T O g g mv/ {—a.00
; a - S ZAN
1 P S 2 A— S I | S— T A
. _ X

756
v

WL 778 {22-09-21)

8.00

INTERMAL mx.n%mx\;
RIERE TO BE RAISED IM
ENGINEERING BRICK TO
suIT

STOR LOGS TO SUIT —

279



REMOVABLE 35:x5mm 34/100 GALVANISED STEEL
TWIST-GRIF SERRATED WORKING PLATFORM
FIXED TO FLANGES USING M10 LINDAPTERS
GRATE FAST GF10 OR SIMILAR APPROVED

HIMGED 35x8mm 24/100 GALYAMISED —
STEEL TWIST-GRIP SERRATED OPEN
MESH FOR EYPASE

-]

L
_u..“_dmc |__m_r;

|L_E

SEEDETAIL A

‘— ZEEDETAILB

1527 |\
SEE DETAIL

SEEDETAILD

1=]

— DOUEBLE RAIL MILD STEEL INDUSTRIAL
HANDRAIL TO BS EM 10255, GRADE HFW2

MINIMUK 1100mm HIGH CRAMKED SAFETY
HANDRAIL WITH REMCWABLE MIDDLE RAIL

FIXEDTOF

2.730
2

[ REMOWABLE 25x5mm 34/100 GALVAMIZED STEEL
TWIET-GRIP SERRATED WORKING PLATFORM

LANGES USING M10 LINDAPTERS

GRATE FAST GF10 OR SIMILAR APPROVED

T HINGED 25:xSmnm 24/100 GALVANISED
STEEL TWIST-GRIP SERRATED OPEM
MESH FOR ACCESS TO STOPLOGS

COUBLE RAIL MILD STEEL
INDUSTRIAL HANDRAIL TO BS EN
10255, GRADE HFW2 MIMNIMUM
1100mm HIGH CRANKED SAFETY
HANDRAIL WITH REMOVABLE
MIDDLE RAIL

FLAT 12mm THICK BY 100mm DEEP
BARS TO FORM LOWER RAKED
SCREEM, BARS AT 200 CTRE. ZEE
DETAIL X FOR FIXING TO FFC

~— SEE DETAIL <

15075 PFC

Section Through Centreline of Screen

Scale 1:20

/F SEE DETAILE

SEEDETAILG

SEEDETAILF o 7

280



Compound at location A

281



This page is intentionally blank.



Written Representations

Warren Peppard

Head of Development Management
Lincalnshire County Council

County Offices

Mewland

Lincoln LN1 1¥L

Tel: 01522 782070
developmentmanagement@incolnshire gov.uk

To:  Lincoln City Council Application Ref: 2022/0039/RG3

Proposal: Raising of the concrete bridge and restoration of current brick culverts, installation
of a trash screen and graded walkway ramp following removal of current concrete
deck and supports

Location: Hartsholme Country Park Dam Wall , Hartsholme Park, Lincoln

With reference to the above application received 1 February 2022

Motice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
This proposal will have no impact on the public highway or surface water flood risk.

MO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as Highway
Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed development is
acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning application.

Case Officer: Date: 14 February 2022
Becky Melheishr

for Warren Peppard

Head of Development Management

283



This page is intentionally blank.



Item No. 59

Application Number: | 2021/0175/TRC

Site Address: Blue Lagoon, Farrington Crescent, Lincoln

Target Date: 17th February 2022

Agent Name: Deadwood

Applicant Name: Mr Andrew Founds

Proposal: T001 Goat willow x2 - Fell. TO02 Silver Birch- Fell. TO03 Silver

Birch- Fell. TOO4 Silver Birch- Fell. TO0O5 Sycamore- Fell.
T005.1 Oak- Crown lift to 3m. TO06 Oak- Crown lift to 5.2m.
TOO7 Silver Birch- Fell. TOO8 Goat willow- Coppice. TO09
Silver Birch- Fell. TO10 Silver Birch- Fell. TO11 Silver Birch-
Fell. TO14 Goat willow- Coppice. TO15 Goat willow- Coppice.
T016 Oak- Reduce canopy back to suitable growth point over
footpath. TO17 Oakx2- Crown lift to 5.2m for highway
clearance.

Various tree species- Silver Birch, Willow.- Fell (Removing no
more than 5m3 of timber) (Part Retrospective)

Background - Site Location and Description

The Blue Lagoon is a lake situated off Farrington Crescent to the southwest of Lincoln. Its
retention was required as an amenity space when the area was developed for housing in
the 70s. Two conditions were attached to the planning permission at that time, the first
required consent to be obtained from the City Council prior to carrying out any work to the
remaining trees on the site and the second condition was the one which required the
retention of the largest lake as an amenity area that is known locally as the Blue Lagoon.
The lake is surrounded by narrow banks containing mostly self-set indigenous tree species
and dense undergrowth, but only the trees are protected by the planning condition.

Site History

The area was never conveyed over to the City Council to be maintained at public expense
and has remained in private ownership since the completion of the development during the
80s. Despite this, the land has remained open for public benefit and is used frequently by
local residents as an accessible amenity area to walk around. Numerous properties back
onto this area and therefore benefit from the view it provides. The lake was owned and
managed by the police federation for the benefit of its members who fished there for
several decades, but more recently was owned by a private local company prior to its
transfer to the current owner and applicant. It would appear that this lake has been a small
scale private fishing venue and used as such since the 70s.

The new owner received a grant from the Environment agency in 2020 to carry out works
which sought to improve the biodiversity of the lake for the benefit of the fish and wildlife,
which in turn would improve the angling experience for club members. The improvements
included works to the banks and verges to clear organic matter and add beneficial
planting. The owner started carrying out work to the area in November 2020 which
included pruning and felling trees around the lake. Any work to trees in this area requires
consent from the City Council in accordance with the planning condition, but no application
was submitted, and the works were carried out in breach of the regulations.

Enforcement Officer Site Visit

The City Council became aware of these works following an enquiry from a member of the
public as to whether the activities taking place had consent. No application was recorded

285



on the planning system and so an enforcement officer visited the site to investigate further.
The officer discovered that numerous trees had been pruned or felled and, as there was
not consent in place for such works, was of the view that a breach of the planning
condition had occurred.

Issues

Following the visit by the enforcement officer, the City Council’s Arboricultural officer
inspected the works and concluded that he would have been unlikely to agree to the works
that had been undertaken as they had not been carried out to British Standards. Officers
therefore concluded that had the works been applied for prior to being undertaken, they
would not have received a positive recommendation. The owner was advised of the
suspected breach and further advised not to carry out any more work. The owner complied
immediately with this request. The owner stated that they would like to continue to manage
the area for the benefit of the lake and apply to carry out some more works to the trees
with the City Councils consent, as the area had been unmanaged for decades and still
required attention to improve biodiversity.

Public Consultation Responses

Whilst there is no formal consultation process for this type of application, because
recommendations are based on a scientific assessment of the trees and their amenity
value, local residents have expressed their objections to the work that took place without
consent via the enforcement team. Some of that objection was because the owner had not
obtained consent correctly where others have taken the trouble to do so and that this is not
equitable. Officers always encourage landowners to engage in the correct process where
consent is required, but there are still times when breaches occur. The sanction in this
instance is the threat of enforcement action and a notice to replace the felled/destroyed
trees. However, on this occasion, the landowner was apologetic once notified that a
breach had occurred and explained that they had proceeded with the works on account of
a misunderstanding around whether the trees were protected. The owner stopped work
immediately upon notification of the breach and has cooperated with every request from
officers, including one to submit an application.

Other complaints received related to the impact on wildlife and loss of trees, which in
principle should be avoided due to the screening and view they provide, in addition to the
benefits in relation to climate change. The land is privately owned, and the City Council
has no lawful ability to prevent the submission of applications in relation to this area. The
City Council also have no ability to require the owners to permit public access, nor is there
a right to a view or screening from this private land. This matter is therefore one that
cannot be taken into consideration as part of the assessment of this application.

The final issue that has been a cause of concern for local residents is the use of the area
as a fishing venue. The owner has obtained grant funding from the Environment Agency to
improve the biodiversity of the lake. Residents were concerned that the purpose of this
was to increase fishing at the lake, which would be detrimental to residential amenity due
to increased on-street parking on Farrington Crescent and activity around the lake. There
are also no welfare facilities on site, so the prospect of anglers spending long periods of
time at the lake is also a matter of concern for local residents. Officers have assessed the
environmental grant works that have taken place, whether they would require planning
permission and whether it would result in an increase in activity at the site, which could
also require planning permission.

286



The works in themselves are small scale and considered de minimis as there has been
very little operational development resulting from the improvements. The level of use of
the lake for fishing is also ancillary to its allocation as an amenity area and the
environmental works are not considered extensive enough to allow for an increase in
anglers. The owner has stated that it will remain a member’s only fishing venue that is
intended to attract small scale family fishing for a few hours and would be for small species
such as Rudd. There is no intention to stock the lake with larger species, like Carp, or
encourage competition fishing which would see an increase in the number of anglers or for
a longer period. The use was assessed by officers and considered ancillary to the amenity
use, operating at a level that does not require planning permission.

Consideration

An application was submitted in February 2021, but it did not contain the tree survey that
officers had requested and so the application was not progressed. Due to covid restrictions
and the availability of the tree specialist appointed by the owner, that report was not
submitted until January 2022. The application to be considered includes works to trees
that the owner would like to carry out and lists the work that was carried out in breach. The
application has been considered by the City Council’'s Arboricultural officers and the report
of this assessment forms part of this application. Officers are not proposing to recommend
approval for the unauthorised works that have taken place as it is unlikely the City Council
would have permitted the extent of works undertaken or the manner in which they were
carried out. However, as part of the consideration process, officers have assessed
whether it would be necessary and appropriate to require replacement planting.

Whilst it is acknowledged that the retrospective works were not appropriate, the tree cover
remains very dense around the lake, and it is considered that some of the trees are
certainly supressing each other. In the interests of the proper planning and management
of the area, it is not considered appropriate or necessary to replant any trees to replace
the ones which were removed without consent as there remains a large number of mature
trees. In considering the proposed works, officers are of the view that not all of these
works are appropriate or necessary and support the assessment of the City Council’s
Arboricultural officer in recommending refusal of certain elements (as explained in the tree
report within the application).

Whilst there have been several objections from residents regarding the activities of the
owner, the City Council can only consider matters relevant to the tree application that has
been submitted. The environmental grant works and use of the lake are not elements that
can be taken into account in considering the proposed tree works, these elements have
been concluded separately and do not form part of this application.

Conclusion

The owner has submitted a 10 year plan for the site and now fully understands his
obligations in relation to the planning conditions and the need to apply for the City
Council’'s consent prior to undertaking any future works. It is not considered that any of the
proposed works will have a detrimental impact on the amenity of the lake, as required to
be preserved by the planning condition, nor is it considered that there will be any detriment
to the amenity of the area by permitting further works to be carried out to the remaining
trees.

287



Application Determined within Target Date

No.

Recommendation

That the application is Split

That partial consent is granted to carry out certain works as detailed in the extract below
from the City Council's tree report and that consent is refused for those works identified by
the City Council's Arboricultural officer as not being appropriate.

T001 Goat willow x2 - Fell approve

T0O02 Silver Birch- Fell approve

TOO03 Silver Birch- Fell approve

T0O04 Silver Birch- Fell refuse

TOO05 Sycamore- Fell approve

T005.1 Oak- Crown lift to 3m approve

T006 Oak- Crown lift to 5.2m approve

TOO7 Silver Birch- Fell approve

T008 Goat willow- Coppice approve

TOO09 Silver Birch- Fell approve

TO10 Silver Birch- Fell refuse

TO11 Silver Birch- Fell refuse

T014 Goat willow- Coppice approve

T015 Goat willow- Coppice approve

T016 Oak- Reduce canopy back to suitable growth point over footpath refuse
T017 Oakx2- Crown lift to 5.2m for highway clearance approve

Additional works
T018 Goat Willow- Coppice for highway clearance approve
Retrospective works

Various tree species- Silver Birch, Willow. - Fell (Removing no more than 5m3 of timber)
no replacements required

Standard Conditions
01) The approved works must be carried out within two years of the date of this letter,
any additional works, repeat works or works beyond this date will require a new

application. All works must comply with British Standard BS3998:2010 Tree work -
Recommendations.

288



	Agenda
	1a 12 January 2022
	1b 26 January 2022
	1c 23 February 2022
	4 Work to Trees in City Council Ownership
	5a 10 - 11 Lindum Terrace, Lincoln
	10-11 Lindum Terrace plans and photos LS
	10-11 Lindum Terrace consultation responses LS

	5b Former William Sinclair Holdings Site, Firth Road, Lincoln
	2021.0817.HYB Plans and Photos LS
	2021.0817.HYB Firth Road Comments LS

	5c Land at Derwent Street, Lincoln
	Derwent Street Plans LS
	Derwent Street Comments LS

	5d 5 Christs Hospital Terrace, Lincoln
	5 Christ's Hospital Terrace Plans and objections LS

	5e 5 Christs Hospital Terrace, Lincoln (LBC)
	5f Hartsholme Country Park Dam Wall , Hartsholme Park, Lincoln
	Hartsholme Country Park Plans 2022.0039.RG3 LS
	Hartholme Country Park Responses 2022.0039.RG3 LS

	5g Blue Lagoon, Farrington Crescent, Lincoln

